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OPERATIONAL RESULTS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS

The Company Revenue from Operations during 2016-17 was ` 1594 
Crores as against ` 1504 Crores during 2015-16.

The profit before interest, depreciation and tax (PBIDT) is ` 199 
Crores as against ` 251 Crores in previous year. The profit after tax 
of the Company is ` 55 Crores as against ` 77 Crores in previous 
year.

During the year, the Company had export revenue of ` 424 Crores 
as against ` 407 Crores in previous year. The exports constituted 
above 26% of the total revenue of the Company.

The basic and diluted EPS during the year is ` 13.85 as against  
` 19.54 during 2015-16. There is no change in nature of Company’s 
business during the year.

EXPANSION

The Company’s project of ̀  198 Crores taken in hand in the previous 
year for installation of 26736 Nos. Spindles at new site at Village 
Soniyana, Dist. Chittorgarh (Raj.), 74 Nos. Weaving Machines at 
existing site at Village Atun, Dist. Bhilwara and one indigo Denim 
Fabric Processing Line at the existing site at Village Billiya Kalan 
Dist. Bhilwara has been completed. 

Further the Company has taken in hand Capex Program of  
` 135 Crores for installation of one Rope Indigo Dyeing Line with 
73 new wide width imported Weaving Machines, Machinery for 
modernization and balancing in spinning and processing divisions 

and pollution control equipment. The project is being implemented 
as per schedule.

The above Capex Program is being funded by term loans of ̀  103.50 
Crores and balance from internal accruals.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE 

The Board of Directors of the Company propose to transfer an 
amount of ` 30.00 Crores (previous year ` 30 Crores) to General 
Reserve of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2017.

DIVIDEND 

In view of the satisfactory performance, your directors are pleased 
to recommend for your approval, dividend of 20% on 3,94,21,559 
equity shares of ` 10/- each for the financial year 2016-17 
aggregating to ` 7.88 Crores which is subject to approval at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The Company would also pay 
dividend distribution tax on distributed dividend.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION 
AND PROTECTION FUND

In terms of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, unclaimed or 
unpaid Dividend relating to the financial year 2009-10 is due for 
remittance on 06th November, 2017 to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund established by the Central Government.

Directors’ Report
The Board of Directors present the 31st Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the Financial Year 
ended 31st March, 2017.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s financial performance, for the year ended 31st March, 2017 is summarized below:

(` in Crores)

Particulars  31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

Revenue from Operations 1593.64 1504.40

Profit before Tax & Depreciation 135.61 186.97

Depreciation 72.58   76.19

Provision for Doubtful Debts/Advances 0.45 0.35

Profit before Tax 62.58 110.43

Tax Expense

Current Tax 6.85 34.59

Deferred Tax 8.93 1.70

Tax Expense for Earlier Years (7.80) (2.90)

Profit after Tax 54.60 77.04

Brought forward Profit 128.22 90.67

Proposed Dividend - 7.88

Tax on Dividend - 1.61

Transfer to General Reserve 30.00 30.00

Carried to Balance Sheet 152.82 128.22
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PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the general 
public within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and rules made thereunder.

DIRECTOR AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, on recommendation of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and in accordance with provisions 
of Section 196 and 197 of the Companies Act 2013, consent of the 
members were taken for ratification of continuation of Shri R.P. 
Soni as Whole Time Director as Chairman after attaining age of 
70 years. 

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet 
the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1)(b) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of 
Association of the Company, Shri S.N. Modani, Managing Director 
& CEO of the Company retire by rotation and being eligible offer 
himself for re-appointment at the ensuing annual general meeting.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key 
Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) of your company are Shri R.P. Soni, 
Chairman & Whole Time Director, Shri S.N. Modani, Managing 
Director & CEO, Shri V.K. Sodani, Whole Time Director and Shri 
Anil Jain, CFO & Company Secretary. There has been no change in 
KMP’s during the year.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Four meeting of the Board were held during the year. The detail 
of meetings of the Board held during the year forms part of the 
Corporate Governance Report.

The Composition of the Board and its committees has also been 
given in the report on Corporate Governance.

COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of Shri Achintya Karati, Independent 
Director, Shri T.K. Mukhopadhyay, Independent Director and Shri 
R.P. Soni, Executive Director. Shri Achintya Karati is the Chairman of 
the Committee and Mr. Anil Jain is the Secretary of the Committee. 
All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were 
accepted by the Board.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE,	
GUARANTEES GIVEN AND SECURITIES PROVIDED

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given 
and securities covered under section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 form part of the notes to the financial statements provided in 
this Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH 
RELATED PARTIES

All related party transactions that were entered into during the 
financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary 
course of business. There are no materially significant related party 
transactions made by the Company with promoters, Directors, key 

managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have 
a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. All 
Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee 
as also the Board for approval. There are no material subsidiary 
companies as define in Regulation 16(c) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the 
Board is available on the website of the Company’s at weblink:  
http://www.sangamgroup.com/financials/Policies/RPT%20Policy.pdf

Particulars of Related Parties contracts or arrangements under 
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in Form AOC-2 
and forming part of the report as Annexure-I.

Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note no. 34 to 
the standalone financial statement which sets out related party 
disclosures.

WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

During the year, Sangam Lifestyle Ventures Limited (“SLVL”) was 
incorporated on 14th June, 2016 as a Wholly Owned Subsidiary 
of the Company. The Subsidiary Company is engaged in business 
of Readymade Garments. During the year the Company’s total 
revenue stood of ` 84 Lakhs.

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a statement 
containing salient features of the financial statements of 
Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures is given in Form 
AOC-1 and forming part of the report as Annexure-II.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are 
prepared in accordance with relevant Accounting Standards 
viz. AS-21, AS-23 and AS-27 issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and also as per section 129 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements are 
provided in the Annual Report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules 
made thereunder, it is mandatory to rotate the statutory auditors 
on completion of the maximum term permitted under the said 
section. The audit committee of the Company has proposed, and on 
16th August, 2017, the Board of the Company has recommended 
the appointment of M/s Rajendra & Co. (FRN: 108355W) and  
M/s O.P. Dad & Co. (FRN: 002330C) as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company, will hold office for a period of five consecutive years from 
the conclusion of the 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company 
scheduled to be held on 29th September, 2017, till the conclusion 
of the 36th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2022 
(subject to ratification of their appointment at every AGM to be held 
after 31st AGM). 

AUDITORS’ REPORT

As regards Auditors observations, the relevant notes on account 
are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further 
comments.
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The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation 
or adverse remark.

COST AUDITORS

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of Audit 
Committee, has re-appointed M/s K.G. Goyal & Company, Cost 
Accountants, Jaipur (Firm Registration No. 000017), and M/s V.K. 
Goyal & Company, Cost Accountants, Bhilwara (Firm Registration 
No. 000550), as Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 
2017-18 to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company’s units 
as allotted to them.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules 2014, the Board of Directors had appointed M/s 
S.P. Jethlia & Co., a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to 
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Report of the 
Secretarial Audit for the year ended 31st March, 2017 is annexed 
herewith and forming part of the report as Annexure-III.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest standards 
of Corporate Governance and adheres to the stipulations set out 
in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and have implemented all the prescribed 
requirements.

A separate report on Corporate Governance forming part of the 
Annual Report of the Company is annexed hereto. A certificate from 
M/s S.P. Jethlia & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries regarding 
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated 
under Corporate Governance Clauses of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is 
annexed to the report on Corporate Governance.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of 
Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

1. 	� In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures;

2.	� They have selected such accounting policies and applied 
them consistently and made judgments, and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2017 
and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that 
date;

3.	� They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities;

4.	� They have prepared the annual accounts of the Company 
for the year ended on 31st March, 2017 on a going concern’ 
basis.

5. 	� They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed 
by the Company and that such internal financial controls are 
adequate and were generally operating effectively; and

�6.	� They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with 
the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 
are adequate and operating effectively.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Independent Directors of your company, in a separate meeting 
held without presence of other Directors and management 
evaluated performance of the Chairman, Managing Director and 
Executive Director along with performance of the Board/Board 
Committees based on various criteria recommended by Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee. A report on such evaluation done by 
Independent Directors was taken on record by the Board.

Further your Board, in compliance with requirements of Companies 
Act,2013 and the Listing Regulations, evaluated performance of 
all Independent Directors based on various parameters including 
attendance, contribution etc.

COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, 
PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR 
DUTIES

The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection 
and appointment of Directors, KMPs, Senior Management 
personnel and their remuneration is available on the Company’s  
website at the http://www.sangamgroup.com/financials/Policies/
Remuneration%20Policy.pdf

The Policy contains, inter-alia, director’s appointment and 
remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes, independence of a director etc. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE 
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN 
THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial 
position of the Company occurred between the ends of the financial 
year to which this financial statement relate to the date of this 
report.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Your Company has formulated Familiarization Programme in 
accordance with Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Schedule 
IV of the Companies Act, 2013 which provides that the Company 
shall familiarize the Independent Directors with the Company, their 
roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of Industry 
in which the Company operates, business model of the Company, 
etc. through various programmers. The details of the programme 
are put up on the website of the Company at the weblink: 
http://www.sangamgroup.com/financials/Policies/FP%20Policy.pdf

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The directors take this opportunity to inform the members that 
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Company had always been following its core philosophy of serving 
the society ever since its inception. Your Company endeavours to 
be involved in whole gamut of activities such as sanitation and 
safe drinking water, promoting education, empowering women, 
ensuring environmental sustainability, ecology balance, protection 
of national heritage, promoting rural sports and building roads for 
village etc. Apart from activities as above, Company supports all 
other activities in the nearby localities by means of donations and 
other contributions.

The directors inform the members that the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee comprising Shri R.P. Soni, Shri S.N. 
Modani and Shri Ramawatar Jaju formed by the Board of Directors 
of your Company monitor the expenditure incurred on the CSR 
activities and formulate an annual budget for these activities.

The Company has identified following focus areas for CSR:

•	 Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition

•	 Promoting Health care including Preventive Health care

•	� Ensuring environmental sustainability and ecological balance 
through

•	� Employment and livelihood enhancing vocational skills and 
projects

•	� Promotion of education especially among children, women, 
elderly and the differently abled

•	 Promoting gender equality and empowering women

•	� Contribution or funds provided to technology incubators 
located within academic institutions

•	 Rural Development Projects

The details of the CSR spend by the Company is annexed 
as Annexure IV forming part of this report. The CSR Policy 
may be accessed on the website of the Company’s at  
weblink: http://www.sangamgroup.com/financials/Policies/
CSR%20Policy.pdf

RISK MANAGEMENT

During the year, the Audit Committee evaluated the Risk Management 
Policy of the Company to make it more focused in identifying and 
prioritizing the risks role of various executives in monitoring and 
mitigation of risk and reporting process. The Risk Management 
Policy has been reviewed and found adequate to the requirements of 
the Company by the Board.

The Audit Committee evaluated various risks and that there is no 
element of risk identified that may threaten the existence of the 
Company.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM

The Vigil Mechanism of the Company, which also incorporates 
a whistle blower policy in terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 aims to provide a 
channel to the employees and Directors to report to the management 
concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or 
violation of the Code of Conduct or policy. The mechanism provides 
for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and 
Directors to avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access 

to the Chairman/ Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional 
cases.

The Policy on whistle blower policy as approved by the Board may 
be accessed on the website of the Company at weblink: http://www.
sangamgroup.com/financials/Policies/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.
pdf

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORK PLACE

The Company is an equal opportunity employer and believes in 
providing opportunity and key positions to women professionals. 
The Group has endeavoured to encourage women professionals by 
creating proper policies to tackle issues relating to safe and proper 
working conditions, and create and maintain a healthy and conducive 
work environment that is free from discrimination. This includes 
discrimination on any basis, including gender, as well as any form of 
sexual harassment. During the year, there was no complaint received. 
The Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) 
for various business divisions and offices, as per the requirements 
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/ KMP/
EMPLOYEES

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required 
Under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure - V.

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Energy conservation continues to be an area of major emphasis in 
our Company. Efforts are made to optimize the energy cost while 
carrying out the manufacturing operations. The information relating 
to energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings 
and outgo required to be disclosed under section 134(3)(m) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 
given in Annexure VI to this report.

GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in 
respect of the following items as there were no transactions on these 
items during the year under review:

a)	� Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, 
voting or otherwise.

b)	� Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of 
the Company under any scheme.

c)	� No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators 
or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern status 
and Company’s operations in future.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 

The directors feel that adequate control systems are the backbone 
of any Company. The directors endeavour to place adequate control 
systems commensurating with the size of the Company to ensure 
that all assets are properly safeguarded and that all the information 
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By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sangam (India) Limited

R.P Soni 
Place: Bhilwara Chairman
Date: 16th August, 2017 (DIN 00401439)

provided to the management is reliable and also the obligations 
of the Company are properly adhered. The Directors inform the 
members that in pursuit of strengthening internal control systems, 
your Company has put in place a system whereby all areas of the 
operations of the Company are reviewed by the internal as well as 
external professionals and independent audit firms. Your Company 
takes adequate measures with respect to gaps, if any, reported. The 
Audit Committee of your Company regularly monitors the annual 
operating plans, risk assessment and minimization procedures as 
well as mitigation plans. Your Directors endeavour to continuously 
improve and monitor the internal control systems.

A Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed to 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financial Statements 
and to Independent Auditors Report on Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as required by SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, forms part of this Report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules 2014, the extract of annual return is annexed herewith and 
forming part of the report as Annexure-VII.
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1.	� Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at 
arm’s length basis

(a)	 Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Nil

(b)	 Nature of contracts /arrangements/transactions: Nil

(c) 	 Duration of contracts /arrangements/transactions: Nil

(d)	� Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions including the value, if Any: Nil

(e)	� Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements 
or transactions: Nil

(f)	 Date(s) of approval by the Board: Nil

(g) 	 Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

(h)	� Date on which the special resolution passed in General 
Meeting as required under first proviso to section 188: Nil

2.	� Details of material contracts or arrangements or 
transactions at arm’s length basis

(a)	 Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Nil

(b) 	 Nature of contracts /arrangements/transactions: Nil

(c) 	 Duration of contracts /arrangements/transactions: Nil

(d) 	� Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions including the value, if Any: Nil

(e)	 Date(s) of approval by the Board: Nil

(f) 	 Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

Annexure - I
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) 
of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
For Sangam (India) Limited

R.P Soni 
Place: Bhilwara Chairman
Date: 16th August, 2017 (DIN 00401439)
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Annexure - II
Form No. AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

For and on behalf of the Board

R.P Soni 
Place: Bhilwara Chairman
Date: 16th August, 2017 (DIN 00401439)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in `)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars Description

1. Name of the subsidiary Sangam Lifestyle Ventures Ltd.
2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s 

reporting period
31st March, 2017

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year 
in the case of foreign subsidiaries

N.A.

4. Share capital 5,00,000
5. Reserves & surplus (63,10,015)
6. Total assets 36,719,078
7. Total Liabilities 42,529,093
8. Investments -
9. Turnover 84,26,485
10. Profit before taxation (89,90,987)
11. Provision for taxation -
12. Profit after taxation (63,10,015)
13. Proposed Dividend -
14. % of shareholding 100

Note

1.	 Names of Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations. – NA

2.	 Names of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year – NA
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Annexure - III
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31st MARCH, 2017

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members
Sangam (India) Limited

Atun, Chittorgarh Road, Bhilwara – 311001

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable 
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices 
by Sangam (India) Limited (hereinafter called the Company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct 
of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company 
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 
31st March, 2017 complied with the statutory provisions listed here 
under and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for 
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017 according to the 
provisions of:

(i)	� The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made 
thereunder;

(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and 
the rules made thereunder;

(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye laws 
framed thereunder;

(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules 
and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings (Not applicable to the Company 
during the Audit period);

(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’) :-

(a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

(d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock 
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 
Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to the Company during the 
Audit period);

(e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing 
of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit period);

(f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an 
Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding 
the Companies Act and dealing with client (Not applicable to 
the Company during the Audit period);

(g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of 
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit period); and

(h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of 
Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable to the Company 
during the Audit period);

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the 
following:

(a)	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India.

(b)	 The 	 SEBI	 (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (The Listing Regulations) entered into by the 
Company with Stock Exchanges,

During the period under review the Company has complied with the 
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, 
etc. mentioned above.

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is 
duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in 
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board 
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31st MARCH, 2017  (Contd.)

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014]  

Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are 
carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings 
of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case 
may be.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in 
the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the Company has 
undertaken the following events/actions in pursuance of the above 
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. which in our 
opinion have a major bearing on the Company’s affairs:

(a)	 Ratification of continuation of Shri R.P. Soni as Whole-time 
Director designated as Chairman after attaining age of 70 
years under sections 196 and 197 of the Act, 2013 read with 
Schedule V Part I(c);

(b)	 Adoption of new Articles of Association of the Company under 
Sections 5, 14 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Act, read with the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014;

(c)	 Approval of Related Party Transactions with Related Parties 
under section 188 of Act. 

For S.P. Jethlia & Co.
Company Secretaries

Place: Bhilwara SP Jethlia
Date: 16th August, 2017 FCS No. 3464, CP No.4844
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Annexure - IV
STATEMENT CONTAINING INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 135 READ WITH THE RULE 8 OF COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY) RULES, 2014 AND FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2017

1.  The Board of Directors adopted the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy on 31st July 2014 which is available 
on the Company website: www.sangamgroup.com. The 
CSR activities are carried out directly and also through 
registered trust/society of the Company. The focus areas of 
the Company under its CSR programme are promotion of 
education,healthcare, rural infrastructure and development, 
protection of national heritage, sanitation and environment 
and any other projects as defined in Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The primary focus of the Company’s 
CSR initiatives during the year 2016-17 was on projects and 
programmes for skill development education facility, safe 
drinking water and health care within the vicinity of the 
Company’s units located at Bhilwara District in Rajasthan.

2.  	 Composition of CSR Committee - the Committee has been 
constituted by the Board of Directors to formulate CSR Policy, 
recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the 
activities and monitor CSR Policy. The committee consists of 
three Directors:

•	 Shri R.P. Soni (Executive Director as Chairman)

•	 Shri S.N. Modani (Executive Director as Member)

•	 Shri Ramawatar Jaju (Non-executive Director as member)

3.    	 The average Net Profit of the Company for last three financial 
years is ` 8,087.16 Lakhs.

4.    	 Prescribed CSR Expenditure is ` 161.74 Lakhs (Computed 
as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014.

5.    	 Details of CSR spend during the financial year.

	 (a)   �Total amount to be spent for the financial year: `161.74 
Lakhs

	 (b)   �Total amount spent directly by the Company during the 
financial year: ` 81.18 Lakhs

	 (c)   Amount unspent, if any: ` 80.56 Lakhs

( Amount in `)
Sl. 
No.

CSR Project/ activity identified Sector in which 
the project is 
covered

Projects/ 
Programmes
1. Local
Area/others
2. Specify
the state and 
district area

Amount 
outlay 

(budget) 
project/ 

programme 
wise

Amount spent 
on the project/ 
programmes 

Subheads

Cumulative 
spend 

up to the 
reporting 

period

Amount spent: 
Direct/ through 

implementing 
agency

Direct Overhead

1 Distribution of Plants and Tree 
Guards in Bhilwara City and 
for other CSR activities

Insuring 
Environmental 
sustainability

Local Area 
Bhilwara

22,00,000 0 22,00,000 22,00,000 M/s Badrilal 
Soni Charitable 
Trust, bhilwara 

(Raj.)
2. Contribution given to Govt. 

Sr Sec. School, Kochriya, 
Bhilwara for construction of 
class room

Promoting 
education

Local Area 
Bhilwara

1,00,000 0 1,00,000 1,00,000 M/s Badrilal 
Soni Charitable 
Trust, bhilwara 

(Raj.)
3 Contribution given to Prasad 

Bipasa Associates for 
Rajasthan Heritage Textiles 
Development project

Protection 
of National 
Heritage, Art and 
Culture

Jaipur, 
Rajasthan

2,00,000 2,00,000 0 2,00,000 Direct

4 Promoting primary and 
secondary education in Rural 
and Socially/ economically 
backward communities

Promoting 
education

Local Area 
Bhilwara

53,702 53,702 0 53,702 Direct

5 Contribution to build statue of 
Maharana Pratap

Protection 
of National 
Heritage, Art and 
Culture

Dist Udaipur 
(Rajasthan)

5,00,000 0 5,00,000 5,00,000 Direct

6 Purchase of ambulance 
and Lab Equipment for Soni 
hospital to giving preferential 
treatment of medical and 
Legal aid to road accident 
victims, disaster relief and 
trauma car

Promoting Health 
Care including 
preventive health 
care 

Local Area 
Bhilwara

16,79,369 0 16,79,369 16,79,369 Smt. Kesar Bai 
Soni Charitable 
Trust, bhilwara 
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STATEMENT CONTAINING INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 135 READ WITH THE RULE 8 OF COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY) RULES, 2014 AND FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2017  (Contd.)

( Amount in `)
Sl. 
No.

CSR Project/ activity identified Sector in which 
the project is 
covered

Projects/ 
Programmes
1. Local
Area/others
2. Specify
the state and 
district area

Amount 
outlay 

(budget) 
project/ 

programme 
wise

Amount spent 
on the project/ 
programmes 

Subheads

Cumulative 
spend 

up to the 
reporting 

period

Amount spent: 
Direct/ through 

implementing 
agency

Direct Overhead

7 Contribution to Rajasthan 
State Sports Council for 
promote nationally recognized 
sports and training

Promote Rural 
Sports, Nationally 
Recognized 
Sports, 
Paralympic 
Sports and 
Olymic Sports

Jaipur, 
Rajasthan

19,00,000 0 19,00,000 19,00,000 Direct

8 Construction of Public 
Community Building

Rural 
Development

Gram 
Panchayat, 
Kherabad 
Dist. 
Bhilwara

5,00,000 0 5,00,000 5,00,000 Direct

9 Supply of food to poor and 
indigent people, children etc. 
and other deprived sections of 
the society 

Eradicating 
hunger, poverty 
and malnutrition

Local Area 
Bhilwara

4,58,040 0 4,58,040 4,58,040 Smt. Kesar Bai 
Soni Charitable 
Trust, bhilwara 

10 Contribution to Mewar 
Chamber of Commerce, 
bhilwara for protection of 
national heritage& art

 Protection 
of National 
Heritage, Art and 
Culture

Local Area 
Bhilwara

5,00,000 0 5,00,000 5,00,000 Direct

11 Disaster Relief sanitation and 
making available 
safe drinking 
water

Local Area 
Bhilwara

27,000 27,000 0 27,000 Direct

81,18,111 81,18,111

6.	 The Company’s CSR initiatives usually involve setting the foundation of various programs at a small scale to learn from on-ground realities, 
getting feedback from community and then putting an enhanced sustainable model to ensure maximum benefit to the community. For 
this reason, during the year, the Company’s spend on the CSR activities has been less than the limits prescribed under Companies Act, 
2013. The CSR activities are scalable which coupled with new initiatives that may be considered in future, moving forward the Company 
will endeavor to spend on CSR activities in accordance with the prescribed limits.

	 Further, in addition to what is stated above, the Company implements many CSR initiatives of substantial value through its Group 
Charitable Trusts.	

7.	 The CSR committee confirms that the implementation andmonitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy 
of the Company.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
For Sangam (India) Limited

R.P Soni 
Chairman

Place: Bhilwara  (DIN 00401439)
Date: 16th August, 2017 (Chairman of CSR Committee)
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Annexure - V
STATEMENT CONTAINING INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 READ WITH RULES 5(1) OF COMPANIES 
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017

1.	 The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) during the financial year 2016-17, ratio of 
the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year 2016-17 and the 
comparison of remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance of the Company are given hereunder:

Sl. 
No.

Name of Director Designation Remuneration 
of Director/ 

KMP (` in 
Lakhs)

Percentage 
increase/ 

decrease in 
remuneration

Ratio of 
remuneration 

of Director 
to median 

remuneration 
of employees

Comparison of the 
Remuneration of the 
Director/ KMP against 
the performance of the 
Company

1 Shri R.P. Soni Chairman Executive Director 252.44 (12.30%) 279.22 : 1

Profit before tax 
decreased by 43% and 
Net Profit decreased by 
29% in financial year
2016-17

2 Shri S.N. Modani Managing Director & CEO 
Executive Director

177.10 (16.94%) 195.89 : 1

3 Shri V.K. Sodani Whole-time Director 
Executive Director

55.14 (14.79%) 60.99 : 1

4 Shri Achintya Karati Independent Director Non-
executive

3.65 (6.41%) 4.04 : 1

5 Shri Ramawatar Jaju Independent Director Non-
executive

0.85 (29.17%) 0.94 : 1

6 Shri T.K. Mukhopadhyay Independent Director Non-
executive

2.60 (8.77%) 2.88 : 1

7 Ms. Seema Srivastava Independent Director Non-
executive

0.40 (61.90%) 0.44 : 1

8 Shri Anil Jain CFO & Company Secretary 32.60 (1.66%) 36.06 : 1

2.	 No. of permanent employees who worked for whole year on 
the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2017 was 3420 
Nos. and as on 31st March, 2016 was 3953 Nos.;

3.	 The median remuneration of employees of the Company 
during the financial year was ` 90408/-

4.	 Relationship between average increase in remuneration and 
company performance:-

	 The Profit before tax for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2017 decreased by 43% whereas the increase in median 
remuneration was 18.43% as per industry trend/inflation/
individual performance.

5.	 Comparison of Remuneration of the Key Managerial 
Personnel(s) against the performance of the Company :

	 The total remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel 
decreased by 13.632% from ` 598.90 lakhs in 2015-16 to 
` 517.28 lakhs in 2016-17 whereas the Profit before Tax 
decreased by 43% to ` 62.58 crore in financial year 2016-17 in 
comparison of ` 110.43 crore in financial year 2015-16.

6.	 Variation in market capitalization of the Company, price 
earnings ratio as at the closing date of the current financial 
year and previous financial year and percentage increase 
over decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the 
Company in comparison to the rate at which the Company 
came out with the last public offer:

(a)	� Variation in the market capitalization during the Financial 
Year 2016-17 of the Company

Increase in (` in crore) Percentage increase (%)
106.24 10.82

(b)	 Price Earning Ratio

As at 31st March, 2017 As on 31st March, 2016
19.93 12.74

(c)	� Percentage increase or decrease in the market quotations of 
the shares of the Company in comparison to the rate at which 
the Company came out with last public offer (Right Issue) in 
the year 2003-04 : 1838.67%

7.	� The key parameters for the variable component of 
remuneration availed by the directors are considered by 
the Board of Directors based on the recommendations 
of the Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

8.	� No employee has received remuneration in excess of highest 
paid Director of the Company during the financial year 2016-17.

9.	� It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid as per the 
Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and other Employees.
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Annexure - VI

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(i)	 Energy Conservation measures taken

	 1.		� Modified the ETP (Effluent Treatment plant) to improve 
the water quality to reuse the water.

	 2.		 Installation of Inverter on Carding for Doffer to reduce 
the friction loss.

	 3.		 Installed the new modified PVC line for Air compressor 
to reduce the friction losses as well as to eliminate the 
corrosion problem.

	 4.		 Smaller size and energy efficient rings and spindles 
have been used in Ring Frames instead of bigger size 
rings and spindles.

	 5.		 Provided invertors in the suction fans of Auto Coner 
Winding Machines.

	 6.		 Modified the Doffer part in LC1/3 Carding and installed 
the inverter with new energy efficient type motor to save 
the energy as well as save from friction losses.

	 7.		 Changed the Motor and Suction fan, where ever the low 
suction is required to save the energy.

	 8.		 Installed the LED tube in All Plant to save the energy 
from existing Fluorescent lamp and also to improve 
the illumination level in the plant and also Changed 
the Existing Metal Halide Street Light with LEDT Street 
Light. 

	 9.		 Used High temperature and High Speed Grease 
(Synthox–HT) with Energy Efficient imported SKF bearing 
to reduce the losses of Friction and improvement of life 
of bearing and reduction of maintenance of Motors.

	 10.	 Modified the NDE cover of Main Motor in Jingwei Ring 
Frame and changed the bearing from 6210C3 to 6310C3 
to reduce the frequent failure of bearing and installed 
our Grease and imported bearing to save the energy 
and friction loss also 

	 11.	  Installation of Servo/Constant Voltage Stabilizer for 
lighting load after assembling all wiring at Central 
location.

	 12.	 Installation of Energy Efficient Motor (IE-3) in TFO and 
other useful places like Fans, Humidification etc.

	 13.	 Installed the new TFO with energy efficient motor to 
save the energy as well as increase the production also.

	 14.	 Use of Treated water at following areas for reduction of 
input water:-Humidification Plant Air Washer, Cooling 
Towers, Gardening, Agriculture, Floor Washing, Ash 
quenching and Coal Spray etc.

	 15.	 Installed the 8 MVA Transformer to increase the 
efficiency of 33 KV sub-station by reducing the break 
down losses by changing the old transformer.

	 16.	 Installed the Transport Fan in place of condenser in 
Blow room to save the energy as well as improve the 
house keeping at false ceiling also.

	 17.	 Installed the standby meter for proper metering with 
AVVNL.

	 18.	 Insulation at Condensate Recovery Line

	 19.	 Insulation at Jet Dying & WR Heat Exchanger

	 20.	 Optimization of Waste Collection System for knitting

	 21.	 Replacement of MS pipeline of compressed air network 
with PPCH pipeline

	 22.	 Replacement of 74 old inefficient looms with energy 
efficient looms

	 23.	 Modification in Weaving H-plant

	 24.	 Steam Line Optimization

	 25.	 Installation of waste heat recovery system on senter

	 26.	 Installation of single stage back pressure turbine 
induction generator set

	 27.	 Installation of harmonics filters

(ii)	� The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate 
sources of energy

	 The Company has installed 1 MW solar power plant on roof 
top of some of its units. We also have co-generation thermal 
power plant to meet the power and steam requirement.

(iii) 	 the capital investment on energy conservation equipments;

	 The Company keeps on replacing old machines with new 
energy efficient machines. Also the Company has replaced 
old motors with new energy efficient motors.

B) 	 Technology absorption-

	 (i) 	 the efforts made towards technology absorption;

			�   The Company has installed “ZLD” ETP plants. The 
company has developed variety of slub, fancy yarns and 
gridnle yarn. Variety of seamless garments have been 
developed.

	 (ii)	� the benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution;

			�   Technological upgradation of various machineries has 
improved the product quality, reduction in customer 
complaints, cost reduction, manpower engagement 
and energy savings.
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	 (iii)	� in case of imported technology (imported during the 
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year)-

			   (a)	 the details of technology imported;

				�    The Company has imported latest seamless 
technology from Italy for producing seamless 
garments.

			   (b)	 the year of import;

				�    The Company imported the seamless technology 
in the year 2015-16.

			   (c)	 whether the technology been fully absorbed;

				    Yes, fully absorbed.

			   (d)	� if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has 
not taken place, and the reasons thereof; and

				    -N.A.-

	 (iv)	  �the expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development

			�   The Company has incurred ` 1.50 Crore on research 
and development during the year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

(` in Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2017 As on 31st March, 2016
a) Total Foreign Exchange used 59.81 53.20
b) Earning in Foreign Exchange 419.20 402.58
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Annexure - VII
Form No. MGT-9

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014.
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN L17118RJ1984PLC003173
ii Registration Date 29th December, 1984
iii Name of the Company SANGAM (INDIA) LIMITED
iv Category of the Company Public Company
v Address of the Registered office & contact details

Address : Atun, Chittorgarh Road,
Town / City : Bhilwara
State : Rajasthan-311001
Country Name : India
Telephone (with STD Code) : 01482-305000
Fax Number : 01482-304120
Email Address : secretarial@sangamgroup.com
Website, if any: www.sangamgroup.com

vi Whether listed company Yes
vii Name and Address of Registrar & Transfer Agents ( RTA ):-

Name of RTA: Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd.
Address : 1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, 

Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai
Town / City : Mumbai
State : Maharashtra
Pin Code: 400059
Telephone : 022-62638200
Fax Number : 022-62638299
Email Address : investor@bigshareonline.com 

II.	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY

	� All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

Sl. 
No.

Name and Description of main products / services
NIC Code of the Product / 

service
% to total turnover of the 

Company

1 Textiles
131- Spinning, Weaving and 

finishing of textiles
100%

III.	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl.  
No.

Name and Address of The 
Company

CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary /
Associate

% of shares held Applicable 
section

1 Sangam Lifestyle Ventures Limited U52609RJ2016PLC055219 Wholly Own Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
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IV. 	 SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

	 (i) 	 Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year 1st April, 2016

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
31st March, 2017

% Change 
during 

the year      Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian 

a) Individual/ HUF 3169433  - 3169433 8.04% 3169433 - 3169433 8.04% 0.00%

b) Central Govt  -  -  -  -  - -  -  -  - 

c) State Govt(s)  -  -  -  -  - -  -  -  - 

d) Bodies Corp. 15497693  - 15497693 39.31% 15497693 - 15497693 39.31% 0.00%

e) Banks / FI  -  -  -  -  - -  -  -  - 

f) Any other  -  -  -  -  - -  -  -  - 

(2) Foreign
a) NRI - Individual/  -  - - -  -  - - - -

b) Other - Individual/  -  - - -  -  - - - -

c) Bodies Corp.  -  - - -  -  - - - -

d) Banks / FI  -  - - -  -  - - - -

e) Any Others  -  - - -  -  - - - -

Total shareholding of Promoter (A) 18667126  - 18667126 47.35% 18667126 - 18667126 47.35% 0.00%

B. Public Shareholding

(1) Institutions 
a) Mutual Funds  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

b) Banks / FI 49299  - 49299 0.13% 52534  - 52534 0.13% 0.01%

c) Central Govt  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

d) State Govt(s)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

e) Venture Capital Funds  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

f) Insurance Companies 1354549  - 1354549 3.44% 1119612  - 1119612 2.84% (0.60%)

g) FIIs 3737692  - 3737692 9.48% 1025367  - 1025367 2.60% (6.88%)

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds -  -  -  - -  -  -  -  - 

i) Foreign Portfolio Investors - -  - - 4363583  - 4363583 11.07% 11.07%

Sub – Total (B)(1):- 5141540  - 5141540 13.04% 6561096  - 6561096 16.64% 3.60%
(2) Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i)     Indian 9879869 1500 9881369 25.07% 10178548 1500 10180048 25.82% 0.76%

ii)    Overseas 1220988  - 1220988 3.10% -  - - 0.00% (3.10%)

b) Individuals

i)      �Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital upto ` 1 lakh

1640018 190714 1830732 4.64% 1450825 183634 1634459 4.15% (0.50%)

ii)     �Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital in excess of ` 1 lakh

1370956  - 1370956 3.48% 717422  - 717422 1.82% (1.66%)

c) NBFCs - - - - 21010 - 21010 0.05% 0.05%

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN  (Contd.)
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Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year 1st April, 2016

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
31st March, 2017

% Change 
during 

the year      Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

d) Others

Trust 1000 - 1000 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

Clearing Member 110034 110034 0.28% 147008 - 147008 0.37% 0.09%

NRI 1168208 29606 1197814 3.04% 1465784 27606 1493390 3.79% 0.75%

Sub - Total (B)(2):- 15391073 221820 15612893 39.60% 13980597 212740 14193337 36.00% (3.60%)

Total Public Shareholding (B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 20532613 221820 20754433 52.65% 20541693 212740 20754433 52.65% 0.00%

C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs - - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 39199739 221820 39421559 100.00% 39208819 212740 39421559 100.00% 0.00%

	 (ii)	 Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)

Sl 
No.

Shareholders Name Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the 

end of the year

% change in 
shareholding 

during the year
No. of 

shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

% of shares 
pledged 

encumbered to 
total shares

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 

of the 
Company

% of shares 
pledged 

encumbered to 
total shares

1 ANJANA SONI 3750 0.01%  - 3750 0.01%  - Nil

2 ANTIMA SONI 46050 0.12%  - 46050 0.12%  - Nil

3 ANURAG SONI 39397 0.10%  - 1645397 4.17%  - 4.07%

4 ARCHANA SODANI 60774 0.15%  - 60774 0.15%  - Nil

5 BADRILAL RAMPAL SONI 
HUF

1734268 4.40%  - 128268 0.33%  - (4.07%)

6 MAMTA MODANI 105404 0.27%  - 105404 0.27%  - Nil

7 RADHA DEVI SONI 377761 0.96%  - 377761 0.96%  - Nil

8 RAMPAL SONI 453950 1.15%  - 453950 1.15%  - Nil

9 RAMPAL SONI HUF 248300 0.63%  - 248300 0.63%  - Nil

10 SRINIWAS MODANI 99779 0.25%  - 99779 0.25%  - Nil

11 FINWORTH INVESTMENT 
PVT LTD

475260 1.21%  - 475260 1.21%  - Nil

12 HAWAMAHAL FINANCE 
PVT LTD

2335500 5.92%  - 2335500 5.92%  - Nil

13 NECCO SHIPPING 
COMPANY PVT LTD

282450 0.72%  - 282450 0.72%  - Nil

14 NEELGAGAN COMMERCIAL 
CO LTD.

1400000 3.55%  - 1400000 3.55%  - Nil

15 NIKITA CREDITS PVT LTD 358200 0.91%  - 358200 0.91%  - Nil

16 PARK VIEW INVESTMENT 
PVT LTD

226065 0.57%  - 226065 0.57%  - Nil

17 SAHYOG FINANCE LTD 172750 0.44%  - 172750 0.44%  - Nil

18 SANGAM BUSINESS 
CREDIT LTD

4951783 12.56%  - 5982812 15.18%  - 2.62%

19 SANGAM FINCAP LTD 2216145 5.62%  - 2216145 5.62%  - Nil

20 SANGAM GRANITES PVT 
LTD

120815 0.31%  - 120815 0.31%  - Nil

21 SANGAM INFRATECH LTD. 1031029 2.62%  - 0 0.00%  - (2.62%)

22 SANGAM SUITING PVT LTD 263670 0.67%  - 263670 0.67%  - Nil

23 SARVODAYA HOLDING 
PVT LTD

1127771 2.86%  - 1127771 2.86%  - Nil

24 SCORPIO CREDITS PVT 
LTD

536255 1.36%  - 536255 1.36%  - Nil

TOTAL 18667126 47.35%  - 18667126 47.35%  - 
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	 (iii)	 Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 
No.

Name of Promoter Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 1st April, 2016

Transaction Detail Shareholding at the end of 
the year 31st March, 2017

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company

Date Increase/
Decrease

Reason No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company

1 SANGAM BUSINESS 
CREDIT LTD

4,951,783 12.56% 16.11.2016 1,031,029 Purchase of 
Shares

5,982,812 15.18%

2 SANGAM INFRATECH LTD. 1,031,029 2.62% 16.11.2016 1,031,029 Sale of Shares 0 0%

3 ANURAG SONI 39,397 0.10% 24.03.2017 1,606,000 Purchase of 
Shares

1,645,397 4.17%

4 BADRILAL RAMPAL SONI 
HUF

1,734,268 4.40% 24.03.2017 1,606,000 Sale of Shares 128,268 0.33%

	 (iv)	� Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl. 
No.

Name of Shareholder Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 1st 

April, 2016

Increase / Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year

Reason Shareholding at the end 
of the year 31st March, 

2017
No. of 

shares
% of total 

shares 
of the 

Company

Date No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 

of the 
Company

1 Mentor Capital Limited 2795251 7.09 31.03.2016 0 0 0 0.00
08.04.2016 -33862 -0.09 Transfer 2761389 7.00
15.04.2016 11140 0.03 Transfer 2772529 7.03
22.04.2016 93100 0.24 Transfer 2865629 7.27
29.04.2016 46672 0.12 Transfer 2912301 7.39
06.05.2016 9498 0.02 Transfer 2921799 7.41
13.05.2016 21662 0.05 Transfer 2943461 7.47
20.05.2016 21328 0.05 Transfer 2964789 7.52
27.05.2016 36182 0.09 Transfer 3000971 7.61
03.06.2016 -142905 -0.36 Transfer 2858066 7.25
10.06.2016 15621 0.04 Transfer 2873687 7.29
17.06.2016 1970 0.00 Transfer 2875657 7.29
24.06.2016 57590 0.15 Transfer 2933247 7.44
30.06.2016 5866 0.01 Transfer 2939113 7.46
01.07.2016 500 0.00 Transfer 2939613 7.46
08.07.2016 9254 0.02 Transfer 2948867 7.48
15.07.2016 25917 0.07 Transfer 2974784 7.55
22.07.2016 23139 0.06 Transfer 2997923 7.60
29.07.2016 -80086 -0.20 Transfer 2917837 7.40
05.08.2016 50136 0.13 Transfer 2967973 7.53
12.08.2016 16656 0.04 Transfer 2984629 7.57
19.08.2016 -168403 -0.43 Transfer 2816226 7.14
26.08.2016 3401 0.01 Transfer 2819627 7.15
02.09.2016 23955 0.06 Transfer 2843582 7.21
09.09.2016 30000 0.08 Transfer 2873582 7.29
16.09.2016 33402 0.08 Transfer 2906984 7.37
23.09.2016 108679 0.28 Transfer 3015663 7.65
30.09.2016 1968 0.00 Transfer 3017631 7.65
07.10.2016 -35024 -0.09 Transfer 2982607 7.57
14.10.2016 -218761 -0.55 Transfer 2763846 7.01
21.10.2016 65181 0.17 Transfer 2829027 7.18
28.10.2016 -99657 -0.25 Transfer 2729370 6.92
04.11.2016 32737 0.08 Transfer 2762107 7.01
11.11.2016 -130844 -0.33 Transfer 2631263 6.67
18.11.2016 48935 0.12 Transfer 2680198 6.80
25.11.2016 29262 0.07 Transfer 2709460 6.87
02.12.2016 68181 0.17 Transfer 2777641 7.05
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Sl. 
No.

Name of Shareholder Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 1st 

April, 2016

Increase / Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year

Reason Shareholding at the end 
of the year 31st March, 

2017
No. of 

shares
% of total 

shares 
of the 

Company

Date No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 

of the 
Company

06.01.2017 37405 0.09 Transfer 2815046 7.14
13.01.2017 39383 0.10 Transfer 2854429 7.24
20.01.2017 9606 0.02 Transfer 2864035 7.27
27.01.2017 4000 0.01 Transfer 2868035 7.28
03.02.2017 26463 0.07 Transfer 2894498 7.34
10.02.2017 530 0.00 Transfer 2895028 7.34
17.02.2017 9900 0.03 Transfer 2904928 7.37
24.02.2017 3000 0.01 Transfer 2907928 7.38
28.02.2017 -2507928 -6.36 Transfer 400000 1.01
03.03.2017 2507928 6.36 Transfer 2907928 7.38
17.03.2017 127238 0.32 Transfer 3035166 7.70
24.03.2017 200038 0.51 Transfer 3235204 8.21
31.03.2017 -81602 -0.21 Transfer 3153602 8.00
31.03.2017 0 0.00 Transfer 3153602 8.00

3,153,602 8.00 31.03.2017 0 0.00 Transfer 3153602 8.00
2 Nidhi Marcentile Limited 4,898,833 12.43 31.03.2016 0 0.00 Transfer 4,898,833 12.43

28.02.2017 -4898833 -12.43 Transfer 0 0.00
03.03.2017 4898833 12.43 Transfer 4,898,833 12.43

4,898,833 31.03.2017 0 0.00 Transfer 4,898,833 12.43
3 General Insurance 

Corporation of India
923,360 2.34 31.03.2016 0 0.00 Transfer 0 0.00

22.04.2016 -72165 -0.18 Transfer 851,195 2.16
29.04.2016 -51195 -0.13 Transfer 800,000 2.03
27.05.2016 -681 0.00 Transfer 799,319 2.03
03.06.2016 -42570 -0.11 Transfer 756,749 1.92
10.06.2016 -179 0.00 Transfer 756,570 1.92
17.06.2016 -6570 -0.02 Transfer 750,000 1.90
16.09.2016 -4117 -0.01 Transfer 745,883 1.89
23.09.2016 -5883 -0.01 Transfer 740,000 1.88
14.10.2016 -16503 -0.04 Transfer 723,497 1.84
21.10.2016 -3497 -0.01 Transfer 720,000 1.83
20.01.2017 -5000 -0.01 Transfer 715,000 1.81
27.01.2017 -5000 -0.01 Transfer 710,000 1.80
28.02.2017 -710000 -1.80 Transfer 0 0.00
03.03.2017 710000 1.80 Transfer 710,000 1.80
17.03.2017 -13849 -0.04 Transfer 696,151 1.77
24.03.2017 -7728 -0.02 Transfer 688,423 1.75

688,423 31.03.2017 0 0.00 Transfer 688,423 1.75
4 Life Insurance Corporation 

of India
431,189 1.09 31.03.2016 0 0.00 Transfer 431,189 1.09

28.02.2017 -431189 -1.09 Transfer 0 0.00
03.03.2017 431189 1.09 Transfer 431,189 1.09

431,189 31.03.2017 0 0.00 Transfer 431,189 1.09
5 Shilpa Stock Broker Pvt Ltd 389,789 0.99 31.03.2016 0 0.00 0 0.00

15.04.2016 -1874 0.00 Transfer 387,915 0.98
22.04.2016 250 0.00 Transfer 388,165 0.98
29.04.2016 211889 0.54 Transfer 600,054 1.52
06.05.2016 54900 0.14 Transfer 654,954 1.66
13.05.2016 120000 0.30 Transfer 774,954 1.97
20.05.2016 -500 0.00 Transfer 774,454 1.96
27.05.2016 52447 0.13 Transfer 826,901 2.10
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Sl. 
No.

Name of Shareholder Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 1st 

April, 2016

Increase / Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year

Reason Shareholding at the end 
of the year 31st March, 

2017
No. of 

shares
% of total 

shares 
of the 

Company

Date No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 

of the 
Company

03.06.2016 -48662 -0.12 Transfer 778,239 1.97
10.06.2016 -1000 0.00 Transfer 777,239 1.97
17.06.2016 43 0.00 Transfer 777,282 1.97
24.06.2016 12212 0.03 Transfer 789,494 2.00
30.06.2016 -192988 -0.49 Transfer 596,506 1.51
01.07.2016 179189 0.45 Transfer 775,695 1.97
08.07.2016 -28884 -0.07 Transfer 746,811 1.89
15.07.2016 182704 0.46 Transfer 929,515 2.36
22.07.2016 -25754 -0.07 Transfer 903,761 2.29
29.07.2016 -8306 -0.02 Transfer 895,455 2.27
05.08.2016 -54809 -0.14 Transfer 840,646 2.13
12.08.2016 1050 0.00 Transfer 841,696 2.14
26.08.2016 -1552 0.00 Transfer 840,144 2.13
02.09.2016 17309 0.04 Transfer 857,453 2.18
09.09.2016 -1762 0.00 Transfer 855,691 2.17
16.09.2016 -112998 -0.29 Transfer 742,693 1.88
23.09.2016 -1324 0.00 Transfer 741,369 1.88
30.09.2016 157250 0.40 Transfer 898,619 2.28
07.10.2016 -81400 -0.21 Transfer 817,219 2.07
14.10.2016 -900 0.00 Transfer 816,319 2.07
21.10.2016 -75000 -0.19 Transfer 741,319 1.88
28.10.2016 -11083 -0.03 Transfer 730,236 1.85
04.11.2016 -7000 -0.02 Transfer 723,236 1.83
11.11.2016 -70000 -0.18 Transfer 653,236 1.66
18.11.2016 37000 0.09 Transfer 690,236 1.75
25.11.2016 -10700 -0.03 Transfer 679,536 1.72
02.12.2016 2000 0.01 Transfer 681,536 1.73
09.12.2016 -14197 -0.04 Transfer 667,339 1.69
16.12.2016 13030 0.03 Transfer 680,369 1.73
06.01.2017 -13000 -0.03 Transfer 667,369 1.69
20.01.2017 -12744 -0.03 Transfer 654,625 1.66
27.01.2017 60 0.00 Transfer 654,685 1.66
03.02.2017 -49950 -0.13 Transfer 604,735 1.53
10.02.2017 -105 0.00 Transfer 604,630 1.53
17.02.2017 -107000 -0.27 Transfer 497,630 1.26
24.02.2017 20200 0.05 Transfer 517,830 1.31
28.02.2017 -77800 -0.20 Transfer 440,030 1.12
03.03.2017 162940 0.41 Transfer 602,970 1.53
10.03.2017 -35625 -0.09 Transfer 567,345 1.44
17.03.2017 24020 0.06 Transfer 591,365 1.50
24.03.2017 14000 0.04 Transfer 605,365 1.54
31.03.2017 59564 0.15 Transfer 664,929 1.69

664,929 1.69 31.03.2017 0 0.00 Transfer 664,929 1.69
6 GMO EMERGING DOMESTIC 

OPPORTUNITIES FUND, A 
SERIES OF GMO TRUST

1,607,271 4.08 31.03.2016 0 0.00 Transfer 1,607,271 4.08
28.02.2017 -1607271 -4.08 Transfer 0 0.00
03.03.2017 1607271 4.08 Transfer 1,607,271 4.08

1,607,271 4.08 31.03.2017 0 0.00 Transfer 1,607,271 4.08
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Sl. 
No.

Name of Shareholder Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 1st 

April, 2016

Increase / Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year

Reason Shareholding at the end 
of the year 31st March, 

2017
No. of 

shares
% of total 

shares 
of the 

Company

Date No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 

of the 
Company

7 SATPAL KHATTAR 800,000 2.03 31.03.2016 0 0.00 Transfer 800,000 2.03
19.08.2016 190000 0.48 Transfer 990,000 2.51
11.11.2016 150000 0.38 Transfer 1,140,000 2.89
28.02.2017 -1140000 -2.89 Transfer 0 0.00
03.03.2017 1140000 2.89 Transfer 1,140,000 2.89

1,140,000 2.89 31.03.2017 0 0.00 Transfer 1,140,000 2.89
8 POLUS GLOBAL FUND 860,000 2.18 31.03.2016 0 0.00 Transfer 860,000 2.18

28.02.2017 -860000 -2.18 Transfer 0 0.00
03.03.2017 860000 2.18 Transfer 860,000 2.18

860,000 2.18 31.03.2017 0 0.00 Transfer 860,000 2.18
9 ELARA INDIA 

OPPORTUNITIES FUND 
LIMITED

135,000 0.34 31.03.2016 0 0.00 Transfer 135,000 0.34
29.07.2016 10000 0.03 Transfer 145,000 0.37
26.08.2016 10000 0.03 Transfer 155,000 0.39
02.09.2016 201669 0.51 Transfer 356,669 0.90
09.09.2016 90428 0.23 Transfer 447,097 1.13
23.09.2016 25689 0.07 Transfer 472,786 1.20
30.09.2016 44000 0.11 Transfer 516,786 1.31
07.10.2016 57000 0.14 Transfer 573,786 1.46
14.10.2016 -30000 -0.08 Transfer 543,786 1.38
28.10.2016 85000 0.22 Transfer 628,786 1.60
04.11.2016 6200 0.02 Transfer 634,986 1.61
09.12.2016 53800 0.14 Transfer 688,786 1.75
27.01.2017 -10000 -0.03 Transfer 678,786 1.72
03.02.2017 40000 0.10 Transfer 718,786 1.82
28.02.2017 -718786 -1.82 Transfer 0 0.00
03.03.2017 718786 1.82 Transfer 718,786 1.82
24.03.2017 21000 0.05 Transfer 739,786 1.88
31.03.2017 60000 0.15 Transfer 799,786 2.03

799,786 2.03 31.03.2017 0 0.00 Transfer 799,786 2.03
10 GMO EMERGING MARKETS 

FUND, A SERIES OF GMO 
TRUST

529,398 1.34 31.03.2016 0.00 Transfer 529398 1.34
15.04.2016 62693 0.16 Transfer 592,091 1.50
20.05.2016 -27107 -0.07 Transfer 564,984 1.43
27.05.2016 -27350 -0.07 Transfer 537,634 1.36
03.06.2016 -5530 -0.01 Transfer 532,104 1.35
28.02.2017 -532104 -1.35 Transfer 0 0.00
03.03.2017 532104 1.35 Transfer 532,104 1.35

532,104 1.35 31.03.2017 0 0.00 Transfer 532,104 1.35
11 VESPERA FUND LIMITED 169,331 0.43 31.03.2016 0 0.00 Transfer 169,331 0.43

06.05.2016 17223 0.04 Transfer 186,554 0.47
27.05.2016 200000 0.51 Transfer 386,554 0.98
03.06.2016 60000 0.15 Transfer 446,554 1.13
17.06.2016 13279 0.03 Transfer 459,833 1.17
24.06.2016 9498 0.02 Transfer 469,331 1.19
29.07.2016 30000 0.08 Transfer 499,331 1.27
28.02.2017 -499331 -1.27 Transfer 0 0.00
03.03.2017 499331 1.27 Transfer 499,331 1.27

499,331 1.27 31.03.2017 0 0.00 Transfer 499,331 1.27
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	 v) 	 Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. 
No.

Name of Director and KMP

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 1st 

April, 2016

Increase / Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year

Shareholding at the end 
of the year 31st March, 

2017

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

Company
No. of shares % of total shares 

of the Company
No. of 

shares

% of total 
shares of the 

Company

a. Directors

1 Shri Rampal Soni 453950 1.15%  -  - 453950 1.15%

2 Shri Sriniwas Modani 99779 0.25%  -  - 99779 0.25%

3 Shri Vinod Kumar 
Sodani  -  -  -  -  -  - 

4 Shri Achintya Karati  -  -  -  -  -  - 

5 Shri Tapan Kumar 
Mukhopadhyay  -  -  -  -  -  - 

6 Shri Ram Awatar Jaju  -  -  -  -  -  - 

7 Smt. Seema Srivastava  -  -  -  -  -  - 

b. Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP)

1 Shri Anil Jain  -  -  -  - - - 

V	 INDEBTEDNESS

	 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(` In Lakhs)

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans Deposits Total 

Indebtedness

i) Principal Amount 63222 1663  -   64885

ii) Interest due but not paid  -    -    -    -   

iii) Interest accrued but not due 53  -    -   53

Total (i+ii+iii) 63275 1663  -   64938

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans Deposits Total 

Indebtedness

• Addition 14117  -    -   14117

• Reduction 6564 1663  -   8227

Net Change 7553 -1663  -   5890

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans Deposits Total 

Indebtedness

i) Principal Amount 70826  -    -   70826

ii) Interest due but not paid  -    -    -    -   

iii) Interest accrued but not due 2  -    -   2

Total (I + II + III) 70828  -    -   70828
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VI.	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

	 A.	 	 Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(` in lakhs)
Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager
Shri Sriniwas 

Modani                                        
(Managing 
Director & 

CEO)

Shri Vinod 
Kumar Sodani                                           

(Executive 
Director)

Shri Ram Pal 
Soni (Whole 

Time Director)

Total Amount

1. Gross salary
a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 

of the Income-tax Act, 1961
90.56 35.06 165.51 291.13

b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of Income Tax Act, 
1961

10.33  -   3.80 14.13

c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of 
Income-tax Act, 1961

 -    -    -    -   

2. Stock Option  -    -    -    -   
3. Sweat Equity  -    -    -    -   
4. Commission 67.74 16.93 67.74 152.41

-  as % of profit 1% 0.25% 1%
-  others, specify  -    -    -    -   

5. Others, please specify Provident Fund (Co’s 
Contribution), Medical Reimbursement (Exempted), 
HRA (Exempted)	

8.47 3.15 15.39 27.01

Total (A) 177.10 55.14 252.44 484.68

Ceiling as per the Act 10% of Profits calculated under section 198 of the Companies Act, 
2013

	 B.	 	 Remuneration to other directors:

(` in lakhs)
Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors
Shri Achintya 

Karati
Shri T.K. 

Mukhopadhyay
Shri 

Ramawatar 
Jaju

Smt. Seema 
Srivastava

Total Amount

1. Independent Directors
Fee for attending board committee 
meetings

3.65 2.60 0.85 0.40 7.50

Commission  -  -  -  -  - 
Total (A) 3.65 2.60 0.85 0.40 7.50

2. Other Non-Executive Directors
Fee for attending board committee 
meetings

 -  -  -  -  - 

Commission  -  -  -  -  - 
Others, please specify  -  -  -  -  - 
Total (2)  -  -  -  -  - 

Total (B)=(1+2) 3.65 2.60 0.85 0.40 7.50

Total Managerial Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act The Remuneration of IDs was within the ceiling as per the Act @1% of profit 

calculated under section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013
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	 C.		 Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD

(` in lakhs)

Sl. 
No. Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Anil Jain, CFO & Company Secretary

1. Gross salary
a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 

Income-tax Act, 1961
29.63

b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 0.14
c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income-tax 

Act, 1961
 -   

2. Stock Option -
3. Sweat Equity -
4. Commission

 -  as % of profit -
Others, please specify -

5. Others, please specify Provident  Fund (Co’s Contribution), Medical 
Reimbursement (Exempted),  HRA (Exempted)

2.83

Total (A) 32.60

VII	 PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type
Section of the 

Companies Act
Brief 

Description

Details of Penalty 
/ Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority 
[RD / NCLT/ 

COURT]

Appeal made, 
if any (give Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty  - - - - - -
Punishment  - - - - - -
Compounding  - - - - - -

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty  - - - - - -
Punishment  - - - - - -
Compounding  - - - - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty  - - - - - -
Punishment  - - - - - -
Compounding  - - - - - -
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Corporate Governance Report
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Market regulator Securities and Exchange Board of India 
has stipulated a set of Corporate Governance standard for 
the Listed Companies. The Corporate Governance standards 
demonstrate inalienable rights vested with various stakeholders 
and strong commitment to values, ethics and business conduct. 
The Company is committed to good corporate governance, based 
on an effective independent Board, separation of supervisory 
role from the executive management and the constitution of 
committees to oversee critical areas thus upholding the standards 
practically at every sphere ranging from action plan to performance 
measurement and consumer satisfaction.

Sangam (India) Limited Corporate Governance philosophy is about 
intellectual honesty, whereby the governance is not just about 
encompassing regulatory and legal requirements but also strives to 
enhance stakeholders’ value as a whole. The Company’s philosophy 
includes protection and facilitation of shareholder’s rights, provide 
adequate and timely information, opportunity to participate 
effectively in general meeting and ensure equitable treatment to 
all shareholders. The Company also ensures timely and accurate 
disclosure on all material matters including the financial situation, 
performance, ownership and governance of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board is broad-based and consists of eminent individuals 
from industry, management, technical, financial and marketing 
background. The Company is managed by the Board of Directors in 
co-ordination with the Senior Management team. The composition 
and strength of the Board is reviewed from time to time for 
ensuring that it remains aligned with statutory as well as business 
requirements. The Board along with its Committees provide 
leadership and guidance to the Company’s management and 
directs, supervises and controls the performance of the Company. 

The Company has a balanced Board with combination of Executive 
and Non-Executive Directors to ensure independent functioning 
and the current composition of the Board is in conformity with 
Regulation 17(1) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations”). The Board of 
Directors presently consists of Seven (7) Directors comprising 
3 Promoters and Executive Directors, 4 Independent and Non-
Executive Directors.

COMPOSITION

Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as on 31st March, 2017 was as under with details of other directorships and committee 
chairmanship and memberships: -

Name Status

No. of other Directorship and Committee 
Chairmanship and Memberships in other Public 

Company

   Other 
Directorships

Chairman of 
the Committee

Member of the 
Committee

Shri R.P. Soni (DIN: 00401439) Promoter Executive /Chairman 6 Nil Nil

Shri S.N. Modani (DIN: 00401498) Promoter Executive/ Managing Director & CEO Nil Nil Nil

Shri V.K. Sodani (DIN: 00403740) Promoter Executive Director 3 Nil 2

Shri Ramawatar Jaju (DIN: 00083218) Independent Director & Non-Executive Director 1 Nil Nil

Shri Achintya Karati (DIN: 00024412) Independent Director & Non-Executive Director 7 1 6

Shri T.K. Mukhopadhyay (DIN: 00239251) Independent Director & Non-Executive Director 1 Nil Nil

Ms. Seema Srivastava (DIN: 07142986) Independent Director & Non-Executive Director Nil Nil Nil

Notes:
1.	� Excluding Directorship in private limited companies, foreign companies and companies under Section 8 of Companies Act, 2013, 

(hereinafter referred to as “Act”), alternate directorship and trust.
2.	 Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee have been considered as per Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations.
3.	� Shri S.N. Modani, Shri V.K. Sodani and Shri R.P. Soni are related to each other. Shri S.N. Modani and Shri V.K. Sodani are the Sons in Law 

of Shri R.P. Soni. No other Director is related to any other Director on the Board.
4.	� The membership of Company’s Directors on the Audit Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee given below elsewhere in this report.
5.	� In terms of Regulation 25(1) of the Listing Regulations, out of the reported 7 public companies, Shri Achintya Karati holds the position of 

Independent Director in 6 listed companies (including Sangam (India) Limited).
6.	� None of the Directors hold the office of director in more than the permissible number of companies under the Act, or Regulation 25 and 

26 of the Listing Regulations.
7.	 None of the Non-Executive Directors hold Shares and Convertible Instruments as on 31st March, 2017
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BOARD MEETING

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on 
business strategies/policies and review the financial performance 
of the Company and its subsidiary. The Board Meetings are pre-
scheduled and a tentative annual calendar of the Board is circulated 
to the directors well in advance to facilitate the directors to plan their 
schedules. In case of business exigencies, the Board’s approval is 
taken through circular resolutions. The circular resolutions are 
noted at the subsequent Board Meeting.

The notice and detailed agenda along with the relevant notes and 
other material information are sent in advance separately to each 
Director and in exceptional cases tabled at the Meeting with the 
approval of the Board. This ensures timely and informed decisions 
by the Board. The Board reviews the performance of the Company 
vis-à-vis the budgets/targets.

Four meetings of the Board were held during the financial year 
2016-17 on 09.05.2016, 13.08.2016, 12.11.2016 and on 13.02.2017. 
The last Annual General Meeting was held on 30th September 2016.

Attendance at Board meetings during the year and last Annual 
General Meeting: -

Sl.
No.

Name of Director
No. of Board 

Meetings 
attended

Whether 
attended Last 

AGM
1 Shri R.P. Soni All Yes
2 Shri S.N. Modani All Yes
3 Shri V.K. Sodani Three Yes
4 Shri Ramawatar Jaju One No
5 Shri Achintya Karati All Yes
6 Shri T.K. Mukhopadhyay All No
7 Ms. Seema Srivastava One No

APPOINTMENT AND MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Terms and Conditions of Independent Director’s appointment 
are available on the website of the Company at the weblink:  
http://www.sangamgroup.com/financials/Policies/Conditions.pdf

Independent Directors to meet at least once in a year to deal with 
matters listed out in Schedule IV of the Act and Regulation 25(3) 
of the Listing Regulations which inter-alia includes, review the 
performance of non-independent directors, chairman and the Board 
as a whole and assess quality and quantity of flow of information to 
perform the duties by the Board of Directors.

One meeting of Independent Director was held during the financial 
year 2016-17 on 09.05.2016.

BOARD FAMILIARIZATION AND INDUCTION PROGRAM

The Company has adopted a well-structured induction policy for 
orientation and training of the Non-Executive Directors to provide 
them with an opportunity to familiarize themselves with the 
Company, its management, its operations and the industry in which 
the Company operates. The induction programme includes one-
to-one interactive sessions with the Executive Directors, CFO and 
Senior Management including the CEO and also includes visit to 
Company’s plant sites and locations.

Further, in every quarterly Board meeting a detailed review on 
the various business divisions is presented in order to update 
the Directors and to ensure their effective participation in the 
Company’s strategy, business performance, operations, finance, 
investor relations, human resources, IT and other related 
matters. The presentations to the Board includes update on risk 
management, company’s policies and quarterly performance 
report which includes information on business performance, 
operations, financial parameters, litigations compliances.

During the year, the Independent Directors visited the Spinning 
plant at Village Biliya Kalan, Chittorgarh Road, Bhilwara. The 
Directors are presented in advance with the Board Calendar for the 
entire year which includes coverage of businesses and corporate 
functions to keep them fully updated on key developments of 
the Company. Any other important development related to the 
Company, is periodically communicated to the Non- Executive/ 
Independent Directors.

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

The Managing Director & CEO and CFO & Company Secretary of the 
Company have certified to the Board as required under provision of 
schedule-II of the clause 17(8) of the Listing Regulation covering all 
aspects enumerated therein.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR BOARD

Sangam (India) Limited has laid down a code of conduct for all 
Board Members and senior management of the Company. All 
Board Members and designated senior management personnel 
have affirmed compliance with this code of conduct. The code of 
conduct is available on the website of the Company at the weblink: 
http://www.sangamgroup.com/financials/Policies/Code%20
Conduct%20for%20Directors.pdf

 A declaration to this effect, signed by the Managing Director of the 
Company is attached at the end of this report.

INSIDER TRADING CODE

The Company has adopted an ‘Internal Code of Conduct for 
Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trades by Insiders’ (“the 
Code”) in accordance with the requirements of the SEBI (Prohibition 
of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015. This Code is available on the 
website of the Company at the weblink: http://www.sangamgroup.
com/financials/Policies/Code%20of%20Conduct%20for%20
Insider%20Trading.pdf

The Code is applicable to Promoters and Promoter’s Group, all 
Directors and such Designated Employees who are expected to 
have access to unpublished price sensitive information relating to 
the Company. The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for 
monitoring adherence to the said Regulations.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board of Director has constituted Board Committees to deal 
with specific areas and activities which concern the Company 
and requires a closer review. The Board Committees are formed 
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with approval of the Board and function under their respective 
Charters. These Committees play an important role in the overall 
management of day-to-day affairs and governance of the Company. 
The Board Committees meet at regular intervals and take 
necessary steps to perform its duties entrusted by the Board. The 
Minutes of the Committee meetings are placed before the Board 
for noting. The Board currently has the following Committees:

(A)	 AUDIT COMMITTEE

	 Constitution

	� Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (“the Audit 
Committee”) is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise 
the Company’s internal controls and financial reporting 
process. The composition, quorum, powers, role and scope are 
in accordance with Section 177 of the Act and the provisions 
of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. All members 
of the Audit Committee are financially literate and bring in 
expertise in the fields of Finance, Taxation, Economics, Risk 
and International Finance. It functions in accordance with its 
terms of reference that defines its authority, responsibility 
and reporting function.

	� The Chairman of the Committee is Shri Achintya Karati, an 
Independent & Non-Executive Director. Invitees to the Audit 
Committee include Managing Director & Chief Executive 
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and representatives of the 
Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors. The Company 
Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

	 Composition

	� The Composition of the Audit Committee as on 31st March, 
2017 was as follows:

Shri Achintya Karati Chairman (Independent Director)
Shri T.K. Mukhopadhyay Member (Independent Director)
Shri R.P. Soni Member (Executive Director)

	 Meeting and Attendance

The details of meetings held during the year, and the 
attendance thereat, are as follows:

	� Date of meetings - four meetings of the Audit Committee 
of Board of the Company were held during the financial 
year 2016-17 on 09.05.2016, 13.08.2016, 12.11.2016 and on 
13.02.2017.

	 Attendance

Name of Director No. of Meeting Attended
Shri Achintya Karati All
Shri T.K. Mukhopadhyay All
Shri R.P. Soni All
 

The Statutory Auditors of the Company are invited to join Audit 
Committee meetings for discussions. The Audit Committee holds 
discussions with the Statutory Auditors and their report on the 
audit of the yearly accounts, the yearly audit plan, matters relating 

to compliance of accounting standards, their observations arising 
from the limited review report/ annual audit of the Company’s 
accounts and other related matters.

The Audit Committee during its four meetings reviewed with the 
management and the auditors (both external and internal) all 
issues, which are required to be reviewed by the audit Committee 
pursuant to the Listing Regulations and as also the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the observations 
of the internal and statutory auditors in relation to all areas of 
operations of the Company as also the internal control systems. In 
addition, the committee has been examining all areas associated 
with the taxation matters (direct and indirect) and has reviewed 
the measures initiated by the Company for mitigating the risks. 
The Audit Committee has also reviewed the actions taken by the 
Company on various observations and queries of the auditors.

Role of Audit Committee

(1)	� Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and 
the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

(2)	� Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms 
of appointment of auditors of the Company;

(3)	� Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other 
services rendered by the statutory auditors;

(4)	� Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial 
statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission 
to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

	 (a)	 Matters required to be included in the director’s 
responsibility statement to be included in the board’s 
report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 
134 of the Act;

	 (b)	 Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices 
and reasons for the same;

	 (c)	 Major accounting entries involving estimates based on 
the exercise of judgment by management;

	 (d)	 Significant adjustments made in the financial 
statements arising out of audit findings;

	 (e)	 Compliance with listing and other legal requirements 
relating to financial statements;

	 (f) 	 Disclosure of any related party transactions;

	 (g)	 Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report; 

(5)	 Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial 
statements before submission to the board for approval;

(6) 	 Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses/
application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, 
rights issue, preferential issue etc.), the statement of funds 
utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document /prospectus / notice and the report submitted 
by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of 
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter;
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(7)	 Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and 
performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

(8) 	 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of 
the Company with related parties;

(9)  	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(10)	 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever 
it is necessary;

(11)	 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management 
systems;

(12)	 Reviewing with the management, performance of statutory 
and internal auditor’s adequacy of the internal control 
systems;

(13)	 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, 
including the structure of the internal audit department, 
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, 
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

(14)	 Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings 
and follow up there on;

(15)	 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the 
internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud 
or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a 
material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

(16) 	 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit 
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as 
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

(17)	 To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the 
payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders 
(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

(18)   	To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

(19) 	 Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after 
assessing the qualifications, experience and background etc. 
of the candidate;

(20)  	Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms 
of reference of the audit committee.

Review of information by Audit Committee

The Audit Committee review the following information:

1.	 Management discussion and analysis of financial condition 
and results of operations;

2. 	 Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined 
by the audit committee), submitted by management;

3.	 Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses 
issued by the statutory auditors;

4.  	 Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; 
and

5.  	 The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the 
Chief Internal Auditor shall be subject to review by the Audit 
Committee

6.   	 Statement of deviations:

	 (a)	 Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of 
monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock 
exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of the Listing 
Regulations.

	 (b) 	 Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other 
than those stated in the offer document/ prospectus/
notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) of the Listing 
Regulations.

(B)	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been 
constituted as per provisions of Section 178 of the Act and 
Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations.

	 Composition

	 The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee as on 31st March, 2017 was as follows:

Shri Achintya Karati Chairman (Independent Director)
Shri Ramawatar Jaju Member (Independent Director)
Shri R.P. Soni Member (Executive Director)

	 Meeting and Attendance

	 One meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
was held during the financial year 2016-17 on 09.05.2016 and 
all members of Committee were present in the meeting.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for:

(i)	 Reviewing the structure, size and composition (including 
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least 
annually and making recommendations on any proposed 
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s 
corporate strategy, with the objective to diversify the Board;

(ii)	 Recommending to the Board on the selection of individuals 
nominated for Directorship;

(iii)	 Making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration 
payable to the Directors;

(iv)	 Assessing the independence of independent directors;

(v)	 Such other key issues/matters as may be referred by 
the Board or as may be necessary in view of the Listing 
Regulations and provision of the Act and Rules thereunder.

(vi)	 To make recommendations to the Board concerning any 
matters relating to the continuation in office of any Director at 
any time including the suspension or termination of service of 
an Executive Director as an employee of the Company subject 
to the provision of the law and their service contract;

(vii)	 Ensure that level and composition of remuneration is 
reasonable and sufficient, relationship of remuneration to 
performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks;
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(viii)	  To devise a policy on Board diversity;

	 Sitting Fees pursuant to the Articles of Association of the 
Company, the Board of Directors to determine the sitting 
fee payable to a director of the Company for attending the 
meeting of the Board or its Committee not exceeding such 
amount as permissible under the Act and Rules made 
thereunder.

	 Sitting fees to be paid to the Non-Executive Directors as given 
hereunder:

S.No. Type of Meeting Sitting Fees
1 Board Meeting  40,000/-
2 Audit Committee Meeting 25,000/-
3 Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee Meeting 20,000/-

4 Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee Meeting 25,000/-

5 Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee Meeting Nil

	 Details of remuneration paid to the Whole-time/ Independent 
Directors are given in the Extract of Annual Return in Form 
MGT 9 which is included in this Annual Report.

	 PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Regulation 17 of 
the Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out the annual 
evaluation of its own performance, its Committees and 
Directors individually. The performance evaluation of the 
Chairman and Managing Director and the Non-Independent 
Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. 

(C)	 STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

	 The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee has been 
constituted as per provisions of Section 178 of the Act and 
Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations.

	 Composition

	 The Composition of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee as 
on 31st March, 2017 was as follows:

Shri Achintya Karati Chairman (Independent Director)
Shri Ramawatar Jaju Member (Independent Director)
Shri R.P. Soni Member (Executive Director)

	 Shri Anil Jain, CFO & Company Secretary is the Compliance 
Officer of the Company. 

	 Meeting and Attendance

	 The details of meetings held during the year and the 
attendance thereat, are as follows:

	 Date of meetings - four meetings of the Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee of Board of the Company were held 
during the financial year 2016-17 on 09.05.2016, 13.08.2016, 
12.11.2016 and 13.02.2017

	 Attendance

Name of Director No. of Meeting Attended
Shri Achintya Karati All
Shri Ramawatar Jaju One
Shri R.P. Soni All

	 The main function of the Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee is to strengthen the investor relations. The 
Committee looks into redressal of shareholders’ complaints 
and proper and timely attendance on the investors’ grievances. 
The key responsibilities of the Committee are as under:

	 (i)		� Review statutory compliances relating to all security 
holders;

	 (ii)	� Consider and resolve the grievances of security holders 
of the Company, including complaints related to the 
Non-receipt of Annual Report/declared dividends/
notices/ balance sheet;

	 (iii)	� Oversee compliances in respect of dividend payments 
and transfer of unclaimed amounts to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund;

	 (iv)	 Approve issue of duplicate certificates of the Company;

	 (v)		� Review movements in shareholding and ownership 
structures of the Company;

	 (vi)	� Ensure setting of proper controls and oversee the 
performance of the Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agents;

	 (vii)	� Recommend measures for overall improvement of the 
quality of investor services.

	 The Secretarial Department of the Company and the 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Bigshare Services 
Private Limited attend to all grievances of the shareholders 
received directly or through SEBI, Stock Exchanges, Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs, Registrar of Companies etc. The Minutes 
of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee Meetings are 
circulated to the Board and noted by the Board of Directors at 
the Board Meetings.

	 Continuous efforts are made to ensure that grievances are 
more expeditiously redressed to the complete satisfaction of 
the investors.

	 Shareholders are requested to furnish their updated 
telephone numbers and e-mail addresses to facilitate prompt 
action.

Shareholders’ Complaints

The total number of complaints received 48 and resolved during the 
year ended 31st March, 2017 was 46. There were two complaints 
outstanding as on 31st March, 2017. The number of pending share 
transfers and pending requests for dematerialization as on 31st 
March, 2017 were Nil. Shareholders’/Investors’ complaints and 
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other correspondence are normally attended to within seven working days except where constrained by disputes or legal impediments. No 
investor grievances remained unattended / pending for more than thirty days as on 31st March, 2017.

S. 
No. Nature of Complaints Pending as on 1st 

April, 2016
Complaints Received 

during the year 
Complaints Redressed 

during the year
Pending as on 31st 

March, 2017
1 Non-receipt of Dividend 0 24 22 2
2 Non-Receipt of Annual Report 0 11 11 0
3 Change of Postal Address 0 4 4 0
4 Others 0 9 9 0
Total 0 48 46 2

	 The above table includes Complaints received from SEBI SCORES by the Company.

(D)	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

	 The Board of Directors has constituted Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee of Directors as required under 
Section 135 of the Act. The role of the Committee is to 
formulate and recommend to the Board, a corporate social 
responsibility policy, recommend the amount of expenditure 
to be incurred on activities and monitor CSR Policy.

	 Composition

	 The composition of Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee as on 31st March, 2017 was as follows:

Shri R.P. Soni Chairman (Executive Director)

Shri S.N. Modani
Member (Managing Director & 

CEO)
Shri Ramawatar Jaju Member (Independent Director)

	 Meeting and Attendance 

	 The details of meetings held during the year, and the 
attendance thereat, are as follows:

	 Date of meetings – Three meetings of the CSR Committee 
of Board of the Company were held during the financial year 
2016-17 on 09.05.2016, 13.08.2016 and 12.11.2016.

	 Attendance

Name of Director No. of Meeting Attended
Shri R.P. Soni All
Shri S.N. Modani All
Shri Ramawatar Jaju One

	� The Company formulated CSR Policy, which is uploaded 
on the website of the Company at the weblink: http://www.
sangamgroup.com/financials/Policies/CSR%20Policy.pdf

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

	 General Meeting

 	 Details of location and time of holding the last three Annual General Meeting:

General Body Meeting Day, Date Time Venue   Detail of Special Resolution passed
28th AGM-2014 Tuesday, 30th 

September, 
2014

4.00 P.M. “The Palm”, Mangrop Road, Harni 
Kalan, Bhilwara-311001 (Raj.)

- �Re-appointment of Shri S.N. Modani as 
Managing Director of the Company for a 
period of 5 years effective from 1st October, 
2014.

- �Revision in the terms of remuneration of 
Shri V.K. Sodani, Executive Director of the 
Company.

- �Borrowing Limit under section 180(1)( c) of 
the Companies Act, 2013

29th AGM-2015

Wednesday, 
30th 

September, 
2015

4.00 P.M.
“Sangam House”, Atun, Chittorgarh 
Road, Bhilwara-311001 (Rajashtan)

- �Appointment of Shri R.P. Soni as Whole 
Time Director.

- �Enhancement of investment limit of FIIs in 
the Company.

30th AGM-2016
Friday, 30th 
September, 

2016
4.00 P.M.

“Sangam House”, Atun, Chittorgarh 
Road, Bhilwara-311001 (Rajashtan)

- �Ratification of continuation of Shri R.P. 
Soni as Whole time Director designated as 
Chairman after attaining age of 70 years
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	 Extra-ordinary General Meeting:

	� No Extraordinary General Meeting of the Members was held 
during the year 2016-17

	 Postal Ballot

	 No Postal Ballot was conducted during the year 2016-17 

AFFIRMATION AND DISCLOSURE

	 Related Party Transaction:

	 Details of relevant related party transactions entered into 
by the Company are included in the Notes to Accounts. The 
Company has framed a Policy on related party transactions 
setting out (a) the materiality thresholds for related 
parties and (b) the manner of dealing with transactions 
between the Company and related parties based on the 
provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations requirements. 
The policy is available on website of the Company at the  
weblink: http://www.sangamgroup.com/financials/Policies/
RPT%20Policy.pdf

	 During the year, materially significant transactions with 
related parties, as per the policy adopted by the Company, 
were in the normal course of business, priced on an arm’s 
length basis and did not have potential conflict with the 
interests of the Company at large. All transactions with 
related parties entered into by the Company were in the 
normal course of business on an arms’ length basis and were 
approved by the Audit Committee.

    	 Statutory Compliance, Penalties and Strictures:

	 The Company has complied with various rules and regulations 
prescribed by the Stock Exchanges, Securities and Exchange 
Board of India or any other statutory authority relating to 
the capital markets during the last 3 years. No penalties or 
strictures have been imposed by them on the Company. 

	 Vigil Mechanism Policy (Whistle Blower Policy):

	 The Audit Committee has established a Vigil Mechanism 
and adopted a Whistle-Blower Policy, which provides a 
formal mechanism for all Directors and employees of the 
Company to approach the Management of the Company 
and make protective disclosures to the Management about 
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation 
of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy. A copy of 
policy is also uploaded on the website of the Company at the 
weblink: http://www.sangamgroup.com/financials/Policies/
Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf

	 The disclosures reported are addressed in the manner and 
within the time frames prescribed in the Policy. The Company 
affirms that no director or employee of the Company has been 
denied access to the Audit Committee.

	 Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:

	 The Company has followed the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
to the extent applicable, in the preparation of the financial 
statements.

	 Details of Compliance with Mandatory Requirements:

	 The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements 
laid down under the provision of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	 Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

	 A qualified practicing Company Secretary carried out a share 
capital audit to reconcile the total admitted equity share and 
the total issued and listed equity share capital. The audit 
report confirms that the total issued/ paid-up capital is in 
agreement with the total number of shares in physical form 
and the total number of dematerialized shares held with 
NSDL and CDSL.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

(I)	 The Unaudited quarterly/ half yearly results are announced 
within forty-five days of the close of the quarter. The audited 
financial results are announced within sixty days from the 
closure of the financial year as per the requirement of the 
Listing Regulations.

(II)	 The approved financial results are forthwith sent to the 
Stock Exchanges and are published in a national English 
newspaper. In addition, the same are published in local 
language newspaper, within forty-eight hours of approval 
thereof. 

(III)	 The Company’s financial result is displayed on the Company’s 
Website- www.sangamgroup.com. 

(IV)	 Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of the 
Annual Report, which is sent to the shareholders of the 
Company.

(V)	 The quarterly results, shareholding pattern, quarterly 
compliances and all other corporate communication to 
the Stock Exchanges viz. BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited are filed electronically. The 
Company has complied with filing submissions through 
BSE’s BSE Listing Centre. Likewise, the said information 
is also filed electronically with NSE through NSE’s NEAPS 
portal.

(VI)	 A separate dedicated section under “Investors Relation”, 
on the Company’s website gives information on unclaimed 
dividends, shareholding pattern, quarterly/half yearly results 
and other relevant information of interest to the investors / 
public.
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	 BSE Listing Centre

	 BSE Limited has launched an Online Portal - BSE Corporate 
Compliance & Listing Centre (the “Listing Centre”) for 
submission of various filings by listed companies. All 
disclosures and periodic filings submitted to the BSE are also 
uploaded on the Listing Centre.

	 NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS)

	 The Company also files information through NEAPS – a web 
based application provided by NSE which facilitates online 
filing of Corporate Governance Report, the Shareholding 
Pattern by companies, Results and other disclosures.

	 Extensive Business Reporting Language (XBRL)

	 XBRL is a language for electronic communication of business 
and financial data. It offers major benefits to all those who 
have to create, transmit, use or analyze such information 
which aids better analysis and decision making. Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its circular No. 37/2011 dated 
June 7, 2011, had mandated certain companies to file their 
Annual Accounts vide this mode. The Company has filed its 
Annual Accounts on MCA through XBRL.

	 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)

	 The Company has periodically filed all the necessary 
documents with the MCA.

	 SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

	 A centralized web based complaints redress system which 
serves as a centralized database of all complaints received, 
enables uploading of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by the 
concerned companies and online viewing by the investors of 
actions taken on the complaint and its current status.

	 Annual Report

	 The Annual Report containing inter alia the Audited 
Financial Statements, Board’s Report, Auditors’ Report and 
other important information is circulated to the investors. 
Management Discussion and Analysis is forms part of the 
Annual Report. Pursuant to the Green Initiative launched by 
the MCA, the Company also sends e-copies of the Annual 
Report to Members who have registered for the same.

	 The Annual Reports is also available in the Investor Relations 
section on the Company’s website www.sangamgroup.com.

	 Green Initiative

	 In support of the “Green Initiative” undertaken by Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs, the Company had during the financial 
year 2016-17 sent various communications by email to those 
members, whose email addresses were registered with the 
Depositories or the Registrar and Transfer Agents. Physical 
copies sent to only those members whose email addresses 
were not available.

	 In view of the Listing Regulations with the Stock Exchanges, 
the Company has emailed soft copies of its Annual Report 
to all those shareholders who have registered their email 
address for the said purpose. We would greatly appreciate 
and encourage more members to register their email 
address with their Depository Participant or the Registrar and 
Transfer Agent of the Company to receive soft copies of the 
Annual Report, Notices and other information disseminated 
by the Company on a real-time basis without any delay

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

a. 31st Annual General Meeting

- Date and Time Friday, 29th September, 2017 at 4.00 p.m.
- Venue “Sangam House”, Atun, Chittorgarh Road, Bhilwara-311001 (Raj.)

B. Tentative Financial Calendar

- Unaudited results for the quarter ending June 2017 August, 2017
- Un-audited results for the quarter/half year ending September 
2017

November, 2017

- Un-audited results for the quarter ending December 2017 February, 2018
- Audited results for the year ending March, 2018 May 2018

C. Book closure date 23.09.2017 to 29.09.2017 (both days inclusive)

D.
The listing fee has been paid up to date, to all the Stock 
Exchanges.

Yes

e. Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)

i.  Scrip code 514234
ii. Scrip ID SANGAM
Trading symbol at National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) SANGAMIND
Demat ISIN Numbers in NSDL & CDSL INE495C01010
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	 Dividend

	 The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 30th May, 2017, have recommended a Dividend of 2/- per share for the year ended 31st 
March, 2017, subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 31st Annual General Meeting. If approved, the dividend will be paid to 
the shareholders within 30 working days from the date of Annual General Meeting. The Company will continue to use NECS/ECS or any 
other electronic mode for payment of dividend to the shareholders located in places where in such facilities/system is in existence.

	 Unclaimed/Unpaid Dividend

	 The unclaimed dividend for a period of seven years is compulsorily deposited in Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Account in 
accordance with Section 125 of the Act administered by the Central Government which cannot be claimed by the Shareholders/Investors. 
The details of unclaimed dividend are posted on the website of the Company.

	 Details of Unclaimed Dividend and due dates for transfer are as follows as on 31st March, 2017:

S . 
No. Year of Declaration of Dividend Date of Declaration of Dividend Unclaimed Amount Due date for transfer to 

IEPF Account
1 2009-10 30th September, 2010 866518.00 06.11.2017
2 2010-11 30th September, 2011 338583.00 06.11.2018
3 2011-12 28th September, 2012 201024.00 04.11.2019
4 2012-13 30th September, 2013 365278.80 06.11.2020
5 2013-14 30th September, 2014 344713.50 06.11.2021
5 2014-15 30th September, 2015 422410.00 06.11.2022
7 2015-16 30th September, 2016 428100.00 06.11.2023

	 Stock Market Data

	 The reported high and low prices of equity shares of Sangam (India) Limited traded during fiscal 2017 on BSE and NSE are set out in the 
following table:

Month Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) 
Share Price Sensex Share Price S&P CNX NIFTY
High Low High Low High Low High Low

April, 2016 286.00 246.30 26100.54 24523.2 286.70 246.60 7992.00 7516.85
May, 2016 305.00 261.35 26837.2 25057.93 292.20 262.05 8213.60 7678.35
June, 2016 293.85 263.00 27105.41 25911.33 294.00 264.50 8308.15 7927.05
July, 2016 281.90 264.55 28240.2 27034.14 282.00 263.70 8674.70 8287.55
August, 2016 282.00 250.10 28532.25 27627.97 278.00 248.70 8819.20 8518.15
September, 2016 270.00 244.05 29077.28 27716.78 270.00 242.60 8968.70 8555.20
October, 2016 325.00 250.80 28477.65 27488.3 325.00 248.00 8806.95 8506.15
November, 2016 325.00 225.00 28029.8 25717.93 325.80 222.55 8669.60 7916.40
December, 2016 271.30 235.00 26803.76 25753.74 269.00 235.00 8274.95 7893.80
January, 2017 299.50 237.40 27980.39 26447.06 299.30 241.10 8672.70 8133.80
February, 2017 304.50 253.00 29065.31 27590.1 304.90 257.35 8982.15 8537.50
March, 2017 280.00 236.00 29824.62 28716.21 285.00 241.55 9218.40 8860.10

	 Share Transfer System

	 The Company’s shares are traded in the Stock Exchanges compulsorily in Demat mode. Share in physical mode, which are lodged for 
transfer are processed and returned to the shareholders within the stipulated time. In compliance with the listing guidelines, every six 
months the share transfer system is audited by a practicing Company Secretary and a certificate to that effect is issued by him. 
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(i)	 Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2017

Category Range – Shares
Shareholders Shareholders

Number Percentage Number of Shares Percentage
Up to 500 6403 89.54 811024 2.06
501-1000 349 4.88 289348 0.73
1001-2000 138 1.93 209994 0.53
2001-3000 66 0.92 168456 0.43
3001-4000 30 0.42 105743 0.27
4001-5000 14 0.20 65302 0.17
5001-10,000 47 0.66 375003 0.95
10,001 and above 104 1.45 37396689 94.86
TOTAL 7151 100.00 39421559 100.00

(ii)	 Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2017

Category No. of Shares held % of Shareholding
Promoters holding
(a) Individual Promoters 3169433 8.04
(b) Persons acting in Concerts 15497693 39.31
Others
Mutual Funds and UTI
Banks, Financial Institution, Insurance Companies, 
NBFCs registered with RBI (Central/State Govt. 
Institutions/ Non-Govt. Institutions)

1193156 3.03

Foreign Portfolio Investors 4363583 11.07
Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs) 1025367 2.60
Private Corporate Bodies 10180048 25.82
Indian Public 2351881 5.97
NRI's / OCBs 1493390 3.79
Trust 0 0.00
Clearing Members 147008 0.37
Total 39421559 100.00

	 Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

	� Shares of the Company are traded in electronic form. SEBI has stipulated the shares of the Company for compulsory delivery in 
dematerialization form only, by all investors from December 2000. About 99.46% of the shares holdings have already been dematerialized. 
Shares of the Company are actively traded in Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) 
and have reasonably good liquidity.

	 Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity:

	 As on date there are no outstanding warrants or any convertible instruments. The Company has not issued GDR/ADR.

	 Commodity Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging activities

	 Disclosure on risks are forming part of Management Discussion and Analysis Report during the period under review
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Office and works

Registered Office
Atun, Chittorgarh Road 
Bhilwara - 311 001 (Raj.) 
Ph.: +91 1482 305028
Fax: +91 1482 304120
E-mail: secretarial@sangamgroup.com 
website: www.sangamgroup.com

Plant Location
Spinning
Unit - I: Vill. Biliya Kalan, Chittorgarh Road, 
Bhilwara - 311 001 (Raj.)
Unit - II: 91 K.M. Stone, N.H.-79, Vill. Sareri, 
Dist. Bhilwara - 311 024 (Raj.)
Unit - III: NH-79, Village Naga Ka Khera, 
Soniyana, Tehsil Gangrar,
Distt. Chittorgarh 312901 (Raj).

Weaving, Processing and Seamless Garments
Vill. Atun, Chittorgarh Road, 
Bhilwara - 311 001 (Raj.)

Denim
Vill. Biliya Kalan, Chittorgarh Road, 
Bhilwara - 311 001 (Raj.)

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
Bigshare Services Private Limited,
1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, 
Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road,
Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 059
Fax No.: 022-62638299, Tel. No.: 022-62638200
E-mail: investor@bigshareonline.com

Address for Correspondence
All matters relating to Dividend, Annual Reports and other related 
matters

Company Secretary
Sangam (India) Limited,
Atun, Chittorgarh Road, Bhilwara - 311 001 (Raj.) 
Ph.: +91 1482-305020,  
Fax: +91 1482 304120 
email: secretarial@sangamgroup.com
Website: www.sangamgroup.com

DECLARATION BY THE CEO UNDER REGULATION 26(3) READ WITH PARA D OF SCHEDULE V OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 REGARDING ADHERENCE TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT

Pursuant to sub-regulation (3) of Regulation 26 read with Para D of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board members and the Senior Management personnel of the Company have affirmed 
compliance to their respective Code of Conduct, as applicable to them for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2017.

S.N. Modani

Place: Bhilwara (Managing Director & CEO)
Date: 16th August, 2017 DIN: 00401498
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Practicing Company Secretaries’ Certificate  
on Corporate Governance
To 
The Members of 
Sangam (India) Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Sangam (India) Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 31st 
March, 2017 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, clause (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C, D & E of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”)
The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our examination was limited 
to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representations made by the Directors 
and the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing 
Regulations.
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For S.P. Jethlia & Co.

Practicing Company Secretary

S.P. Jethlia 

FCS: 3464 CP: 4844

Place: Bhilwara

Date: 16th August, 2017
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To the Members of 

M/s. Sangam (India) Limited 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements 
of M/s. Sangam (India) Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise 
the balance sheet as at 31st March, 2017, the statement of profit 
and loss and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone 
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 
stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with 
respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone 
financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account 
the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards 
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the standalone financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s 
preparation of the standalone financial statements that give a 
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made 
by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the standalone financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
standalone financial statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a)	� In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31st March, 2017;

(b)	 in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit 
for the year; and

(c)	 in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 
(“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in 
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in the 
paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.	 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

	 (a)	 we have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

	 (b)	 in our opinion, proper books of account as required by 
law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books.

Independent Auditor’s Report  
ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SANGAM (INDIA) LIMITED
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	 (c)	 the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and 
the cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

	 (d)	 in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

	 (e)	 on the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on 31st March, 2017 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 
is disqualified as on 31st March, 2017 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 
Act; 

	 (f) 	 with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate report in “Annexure B”; and 

	 (g)	 with respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us: 

			   i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position in its standalone 
financial statements – Refer Note 35.

			   ii.	 The Company does not have any long-term 
contracts including derivatives contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

			   iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, 
required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

			   iv.	 The Company has provided requisite disclosures 
in its standalone financial statements as to 
holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank 
Notes during the period 8th November, 2016 to 
30th December, 2016 and these are in accordance 
with the books of account maintained by the 
Company - Refer Note 15.

Independent Auditor’s Report  
ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SANGAM (INDIA) LIMITED (Contd.)

For R. Kabra & Co. For B L Chordia & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.104502W) (Firm Registration No.000294C)

(R L Kabra) (B L Chordia) 
Partner Partner
Membership No. 016216 Membership No. 010882
Camp : Bhilwara Place : Bhilwara
Date:  30th May, 2017 Date:  30th May, 2017
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Annexure referred to in Point 1 of the Auditor’s Report of even date 
to the members of Sangam (India) Limited for the year ended 31st 
March 2017.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in 
terms of the information and explanations given to us during the 
course of the audit, we state as under:

i)	 (a)	 The Company is maintaining proper records showing 
full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets.

	 (b) 	 According to the information and explanation given to 
us, these fixed assets have been physically verified by 
the management at reasonable intervals in terms of the 
phased program of verification adopted by the Company 
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification

	 (c) 	 As per the information and explanations given to us 
by the management, all the title deeds of immovable 
properties are held in the name of the Company and 
the original documents are deposited with /mortgaged 
to the banks for the financial assistance obtained which 
we are unable to verify the original title deeds.

ii)	 As per the information and explanations given to us, the 
inventories (excluding stock, materials and work in progress, 
which are in transit & stock lying with third parties) have been 
physically verified during the year by the management and no 
material discrepancies were noticed during such verification. 
In our opinion and having regard to the nature and location 
of stocks, the frequency of the physical verification is 
reasonable. 

iii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us the Company has not granted any 
secured or unsecured loans to companies, firms, limited 
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register 

maintained under section 189 of the Act and therefore clause 
iii b and iii c of the Order are not applicable.

iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us in respect of loans, investments, 
guarantees and security, the provisions of sections 185 and 
186 of the Act have been complied with. 

v)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any 
deposits. Therefore, the compliance with respect to directives 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act 
and the rules framed there under are not applicable to the 
Company.

vi)	 In our opinion, the maintenance of cost records has been 
specified by the Central Government sub section (1) of section 
148 of the Act and such accounts and records have been so 
made and maintained by the Company. We have however, not 
made a detailed examination of the records with a view to 
determining whether they are accurate or complete.

vii)	 (a)	� According to information and explanation given to 
us and the records examined by us, the Company 
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty 
of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory 
dues to the appropriate authorities. There were no 
undisputed dues as on the last day of the financial year 
concerned for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable

Annexure “A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SANGAM (INDIA) LIMITED (REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT OF 
EVEN DATE) 

	 (b) 	 According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, 
duty of excise and value added tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, except as under:

Sr. 
no.

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount of disputed 
demand (` In Lakhs)

Period to which 
the amount relate

Forum where dispute 
is pending

Gross Net of 
Deposited

1 Central Excise Act 1944 Excise Duty 119.41 112.56 2011-12 to 2016-17 Commissioner of 
Excise (Appeals), 
Jaipur

2 Central Excise Act 1944 Excise Duty 11.32 11.32 2012-13 CESTAT, Delhi
3 Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 190.43 170.73 2012-13 to 2016-17 Commissioner of 

Service Tax (Appeals), 
Jaipur

4 Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 33.41 7.17 2010-11 to 2013-14 CESTAT, Delhi
5 Rajasthan Stamp Duty Act, 1998 Stamp Duty 108.91 88.91 2006-07 Rajasthan Highcourt, 

Jodhpur
6 Rajasthan Value Added Tax Act, 

2003
Value Added Tax 94.30 77.64 2012-13 Tax Board, Ajmer

7 Rajasthan Value Added Tax Act, 
2003

Value Added 
Tax with RIPS 
Incentive on 

Exports

341.10 313.73 2010-11 to 2012-13 Tax Board, Ajmer
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Annexure “A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SANGAM (INDIA) LIMITED (REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT OF 
EVEN DATE) (Contd.)

Sr. 
no.

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount of disputed 
demand (` In Lakhs)

Period to which 
the amount relate

Forum where dispute 
is pending

Gross Net of 
Deposited

8 Rajasthan Value Added Tax Act, 
2003 Value Added Tax 6.45 0.00** 2016-17 D.C. (Appeals), 

Udaipur
9 Rajasthan Value Added Tax Act, 

2003 Value Added Tax 34.87 32.98 2006-07 Tax board & High 
Court, Jodhpur

10 The Rajasthan Tax on Entry of 
Goods into Local Areas Act, 
1999

Entry tax and 
Interest 24.90 21.46 2013 - 14

Special Leave 
Petition with 
Supreme Court

The Rajasthan Tax on Entry of 
Goods into Local Areas Act, 
1999

Entry tax and 
Interest 147.73 14.76 2014 - 15 D.C. (Appeals), Ajmer

11 Electricity Act, 2003 Fixed Charges 
Recovery 19.57 14.57 2009-10 to 2010-11 Rajasthan High 

Court, Jodhpur
			   ** Bank Guarantee given ` 6.50 Lakhs.

viii)	 Based on our audit procedures and the information and 
explanations provided by the management, we are of the 
opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment 
of loans or borrowing to financial institutions, banks and 
Government. The Company does not have any debenture 
holders. 

ix)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the term loans raised during the 
year have been applied for the purpose for which those loans 
were raised. The Company has not raised money by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer, including debt 
instruments.

x)	 During the course of our examination of the books and 
records of the Company carried in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices in India and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by 
the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees 
has been noticed or reported during the year

xi)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us the managerial remuneration 
has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Act.

xii)	 Since the Company is not a nidhi company, clause xii of para 
3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii)	 In our opinion, and based on such checks as we considered 
appropriate, all the transactions with the related parties 
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act 
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the 
Standalone Financial Statements, etc. as required by the 
applicable Accounting Standards.

xiv)	 The Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year under review.

xv)	 In our opinion, and based on such checks as we considered 
appropriate, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not entered in 
to any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with them.

xvi)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be 
registered under section 45 - IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934.

For R. Kabra & Co. For B L Chordia & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.104502W) (Firm Registration No.000294C)

(R L Kabra) (B L Chordia) 
Partner Partner
Membership No. 016216 Membership No. 010882
Camp : Bhilwara Place : Bhilwara
Date:  30th May, 2017 Date:  30th May, 2017
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Annexure referred to in Point 2(f) of the Auditor’s Report of even 
date to the members of Sangam (India) Limited for the year ended 
31st March 2017.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Sangam (India) Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st 
March, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on “the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by ICAI and the Standards 
on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that: 

(1)	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

(2)	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the Company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; 
and

Annexure “B” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE 
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(3)	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 
2017, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For R. Kabra & Co. For B L Chordia & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.104502W) (Firm Registration No.000294C)

(R L Kabra) (B L Chordia)
Partner Partner
Membership No. 016216 Membership No. 010882
Camp : Bhilwara Place : Bhilwara
Date:  30th May, 2017 Date:  30th May, 2017
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(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Note As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ Funds

Share Capital 2 3,942 3,942
Reserves and Surplus 3 45,443 39,983

49,385 43,925

Non-Current Liabilities

Long Term Borrowings 4 32,711 28,134
Deferred Tax Liability (net) 5 5,098 4,205

37,809 32,339

Current Liabilities

Short Term Borrowings 6 31,991 30,150
Trade Payables 7 10,216 7,647
Other Current Liabilities 8 13,578 13,748
Short Term Provisions 9 717 1,417

56,502 52,962

TOTAL 1,43,696 1,29,226

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets 10 65,376 58,415
Intangible Assets 10 64 59
Capital Work-in-Progress 10 1,098 1,420
Non-Current Investments 11 590 585
Long Term Loans and Advances 12 1,806 1,971

68,934 62,450

Current Assets

Inventories 13 35,970 29,449
Trade Receivables 14 25,814 27,110
Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 547 361
Short Term Loans and Advances 16 9,676 7,643
Other Current Assets 17 2,755 2,213

74,762 66,776

TOTAL 1,43,696 1,29,226

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial 
Statements 1 to 39

Balance Sheet 
as at 31st March, 2017

As per our report of even date attached
For R. Kabra & Co. For B.L. Chordia & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 104502W) (Registration No. 000294C)

(R.L. Kabra) (B.L. Chordia) (R.P. Soni) (S.N. Modani) (V.K. Sodani)
Partner Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO Executive Director
M.Ship No. 016216 M.Ship No. 010882 (DIN 00401439) (DIN 00401498) (DIN 00403740)

Camp  : Bhilwara Place : Bhilwara (Anil Jain)
Date: 30th May, 2017 Date: 30th May, 2017 CFO & Company Secretary 

(M No.: F-3147)
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STATEMENT of Profit & Loss  
for the year ended 31st March, 2017

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Note 2016-17 2015-16

INCOME

Revenue from Operations 18 1,59,364 1,50,440

Other Income 19 2,334 2,465

Total Revenue 1,61,698 1,52,905

EXPENDITURE :

Cost of Materials Consumed 20 90,676 83,032

Purchases of Traded Goods 21 4,646 1,249

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Process and Stock-in-Trade 22 (4,172) (2,223)

Employee Benefits Expense 23 16,013 13,990

Power & Fuel 24 17,293 15,792

Finance Costs 25 6,359 6,396

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 26 7,258 7,619

Other Expenses 27 17,322 15,972

Total Expenses 1,55,395 1,41,827

Profit Before Exceptional Item and Tax 6,303 11,078

Exceptional Items

Provision for Doubtful Debts/ Advances 45 35

Profit Before Tax 6,258 11,043

Tax Expenses

Current Tax (Net of Mat Credit Entitlement) 685 3,459

Deferred tax 893 170

Tax Expense for Earlier Years (780) (290)

Profit for the year 5,460 7,704

Earnings per equity share of face value of ` 10 each

Basic and Diluted (in `)  13.85  19.54 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements  1 to 39 

As per our report of even date attached
For R. Kabra & Co. For B.L. Chordia & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 104502W)    (Registration No. 000294C)

(R.L. Kabra) (B.L. Chordia) (R.P. Soni) (S.N. Modani) (V.K. Sodani)
Partner Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO Executive Director
M.Ship No. 016216 M.Ship No. 010882 (DIN 00401439) (DIN 00401498) (DIN 00403740)

Camp : Bhilwara                                                Place : Bhilwara (Anil Jain)
Date: 30th May, 2017                  Date: 30th May, 2017 CFO & Company Secretary 

(M No.: F-3147)
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1.	 Significant Accounting Policies
1.1	B asis of Accounting

	 a)		� The financial statements have been prepared under 
the historical cost convention on an accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India (“GAAP” or “Indian 
GAAP”) and as per the Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 and the 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

	 b)		� Accounting policies not specifically referred to 
otherwise, have been followed consistently and are 
in consonance with generally accepted accounting 
principles.

1.2	U se of Estimates

	 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with 
Indian GAAP requires the management to make estimates 
and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and 
the reported income and expenses during the year. The 
management believes that the estimates used in preparation 
of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. 
Future results could differ due to these estimates and the 
difference between the actual results and the estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the results are known/
materialized.

1.3	 Fixed Assets

	 a)		� Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of Cenvat/ VAT, if any, 
less accumulated depreciation/impairment if any.

	 b)	�	� Cost includes purchase price, taxes and duties as 
applicable, freight, and other incidental expenses 
incurred till the commencement of commercial 
production. Incidental expenses include establishment 
expenses, interest on borrowed funds used for qualifying 
assets and other related direct costs attributable to the 
same.

	 c)	�	� Capital Work in Progress includes pre-operative 
and other incidental expenses pending allocation/ 
apportionment in respect of the uninstalled/ incomplete 
fixed assets.

1.4	 Intangible Assets

	 Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty 
credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortization and 
cumulative impairment.

	 Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the 
future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset 
will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be 
measured reliably. 

	 Intangible assets are amortized over their useful life. 
Accordingly useful life of software is considered and 
amortized over 5 years 

1.5	D epreciation

	 a)	�	� Depreciation is provided under straight line method 
(SLM) over the estimated useful lives of the Fixed 
Assets as prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies 
Act, 2013 on all assets, except in case of the following 
assets, where useful life is estimated to be different 

than those prescribed under Schedule II, based on 
technical evaluation:

Particulars Useful Life
Plant & Machinery and Electric 
Installations (for Textile)

9.19 Years

Plant & Machinery and Electric 
Installations (for Power Generation)

18 Years

	 Depreciation on addition/deletion to/from fixed assets during 
the year is computed on pro rata basis. 

	 b)		 Intangible Assets

			�   Intangible assets comprise of computer software and 
are amortized on straight line basis over a period 
of 5 years, based on estimated useful life, which in 
management’s view represents the period during which 
economic benefits will be derived from the software.

1.6	 Revenue Recognition

	 a)	�	� Sales is recognized, net of returns and trade discounts, 
on transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership 
to the buyer, which generally coincide with the delivery 
of goods to the customers. 

		�	�   Sales include income from services, export incentives 
and exchange fluctuations, other recurring and non-
recurring incentives from the Government at the 
national and state levels. Sale of products is presented 
gross of excise duty where applicable, and net of other 
indirect taxes. Turnover is excluding Inter Division Sales 
and Sales tax

	 b)	�	� Claim lodged with insurance companies are recognized 
as income on acceptance by the Insurance Company. 
The Excess / Shortfall of claims passed are adjusted in 
the year of receipt. 

	 c)	�	� Dividend income from investments, if any, is accounted 
on the receipt basis.

1.7	 Inventories

	 Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, 
after providing for obsolesce and damages as follows: 

	 Cost is ascertained as under:

a) Raw Material, Packing 
Material & Stores and 
Spares

At cost, on FIFO/ weighted 
average basis.

b) Finished goods At cost, plus appropriate 
production overheads, 
including excise duty paid/ 
payable on such goods if 
applicable.

c) Material in Process At Cost, plus appropriate 
production overheads.

	 Net realizable value is estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business less estimated cost of completion and 
selling expenses.

1.8	 Foreign Exchange Transaction/Translation

	 a)		 Monetary and Non-monetary items /transactions 
denominated in foreign currencies are normally 
recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of 
transaction.

Notes
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	 b)		 Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies 
at the year end and not covered by forward exchange 
contracts are translated at the year-end rates and those 
covered by forward exchange contracts are translated at 
the rate ruling on the date of transaction as increased 
or decreased by the proportionate difference between 
the forward rate and exchange rate on the date of 
transaction. Such differences are recognized over the 
life of the contract.

	 c)		 Exchange differences in respect of monetary and non-
monetary items are recognized as income or expense in 
the profit and loss account for the relevant year except 
otherwise disclosed in other notes.

	 d)		 Outstanding derivatives contracts, other than those 
covered under AS-11, at the year-end  are marked to 
market rate, and loss, if any, are accounted for in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. As prudent accounting 
policy, gain on marked to market at the end of year are 
not accounted for.

1.9	 Research and Development 

	 Revenue expenditure on research is expensed under 
respective heads of account in the period in which it is 
incurred. Capital expenditure is shown as addition to fixed 
assets.

1.10	 Retirement Benefits
	 a)		 Defined Contribution Plan

			   The Company contributes to Government Provident 
Fund Scheme. The Company’s contribution paid/ 
payable under the scheme is recognized as an expense 
in the statement of profit and loss during the period in 
which the employee renders the related service.

   	  b)	 Defined Benefit Plan

			   The Company’s liabilities on account of gratuity and 
leave encashment are determined at the end of each 
financial year on the basis of actuarial Valuation as per 
requirements of Accounting Standard 15 (revised 2005) 
on “Employee Benefits”.

1.11	B orrowing Costs

	 Borrowing costs relating to acquisition/ construction of 
qualifying assets are capitalized until the time all substantial 
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their 
intended use are complete. A qualifying asset is one that 
necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for 
its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to 
revenue. 

1.12	A ccounting for Taxes on Income

	 a)		 Current tax is provided as per the provisions of the 
Income Tax Act 1961 as applicable.

	 b)		 Tax expenses comprise of current and deferred tax. 
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected 
to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the 
Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax reflects the 
impact of current year timing differences between book 

profit and taxable income for the year and reversal of 
timing differences of earlier years.

	 c)		 The deferred tax for timing differences between the 
book profit and taxable income for the year is accounted 
for using the tax rates and laws that have been 
substantially enacted as of the Balance Sheet date. 
Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent 
that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such 
deferred tax assets can be realized. If the Company 
has carry forward unabsorbed depreciation and tax 
losses, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the 
extent there is virtual certainty supported by convincing 
evidence that sufficient taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

			   Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognized 
as an asset only when there is a convincing evidence 
that the Company will pay normal income tax during 
the specified period. In the year in which the MAT 
credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset 
in accordance with the recommendations contained 
in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of 
a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown 
as MAT Credit entitlement. The Company reviews the 
same as at each Balance Sheet date and write down the 
carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent 
there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that 
the Company will pay normal income-tax during the 
specified period.

1.13	 Impairment of Assets 

	 Factors giving rise to any indication of impairment of the 
carrying amount of the Company’s assets are appraised at 
each Balance Sheet date to determine and provide/revert an 
impairment loss, if any. 

1.14	�P rovisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

	 Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation 
in measurement are recognized when there is present 
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that 
there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities 
are not recognized but are disclosed by way of the notes. 
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the 
financial statements.

1.15	E arning Per Share

	 Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net 
profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders 
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year is adjusted for events of preferential issue/ 
allotment of equity shares. For the purpose of calculating 
diluted earning per shares, the net profit or loss for the year 
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted 
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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1.16	C ash Flow Statement

	 The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method 
set out in Accounting Standard 3 on Cash Flow Statements 
and presents the cash flows by operating, investing 
and financing activities of the Company. Cash and cash 
equivalents presented in the Cash Flow Statement consist of 
cash on hand and demand deposits with banks.

1.17	 Investments

	 Long term investments are carried at cost less provision for 
permanent diminution, if any, in value of such investments. 
Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair 
value.

1.18	G overnment Grants

	 Capital grants relating to specific fixed assets are reduced 
from the gross value of the Fixed Assets and those relating to 
revenue are netted from the related expenditure. Government 
grants are recognized when the right to receive is established.

1.19	 Miscellaneous Expenditure

	 Miscellaneous Expenditure is debited fully in the year in 
which expenditure is incurred.

1.20	 Segment Reporting

	 Primary Segments are identified based on the nature of 
products and services, the different risks and returns and 
the internal business reporting system. Revenue, Expense, 
Assets and Liabilities, which relate to the Company as a 
whole and cannot be allocated to segments on a reasonable 
basis, are classified as unallocated.

	 Secondary segment is identified based on geography by 
location of customers i.e. in India and outside India.

	 Inter-segment revenue are accounted for based on the 
transaction price agreed to between the segments, which is 
primarily market based.

1.21	 Leases
	 (i)		 Finance lease

			   Assets acquired under finance leases are recognized 
as an asset and a liability at the commencement of the 
lease, at the lower of the fair value of the assets and 
the present value of minimum lease payments. The 
finance expense is allocated to each period during the 
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate 
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Assets given under finance leases are recognized as 
receivables at an amount equal to the net investment in 
the lease and the finance income is based on a constant 
rate of return on the outstanding net investment.

	 (ii)	 Operating lease

			   Leases other than finance lease, are operating leases, 
and the leased assets are not recognized on the 
Company’s Balance Sheet. Payments / rental income 
under operating leases are recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the lease 

1.22	E xtraordinary and exceptional Items

	 Income or expenses that arise from events or transactions 
that are clearly distinct from the ordinary activities of the 
Company are classified as extraordinary items. Specific 
disclosure of such events/transactions is made in the 
financial statements. Similarly, any external event beyond 
the control of the Company, significantly impacting income or 
expense, is also treated as extraordinary item and disclosed 
as such. On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence 
of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary 
activities of the Company, is such that its disclosure improves 
an understanding of the performance of the Company. Such 
income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and 
accordingly disclosed in the notes to accounts.

Notes 
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(` in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

2. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized Share Capital:

6,40,00,000 (Previous Year 6,40,00,000) Equity share of ` 10 each fully 
paid up

6,400 6,400

1,85,00,000 (Previous Year 1,85,00,000) Non - Cumulative Redeemable 
Preference Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up

1,850 1,850

8,250 8,250

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up:   

3,94,21,559 (Previous Year 3,94,21,559) Equity share of ` 10 each fully 
paid up

3,942 3,942

Total 3,942 3,942

2.1 The details of Shareholders’ holding more than 5% shares :

As at 31st March, 2017  As at 31st March, 2016

Name of the Shareholder No. of Shares % held No. of Shares % held

Sangam Business Credit Limited 59,82,812  15.18 49,51,783 12.56

Nidhi Mercantiles  Limited 48,98,833  12.43 48,98,833  12.43 

Mentor Capital Limited (formerly known as Pacific Corporate 
Services  Limited)

31,53,602  8.00 27,95,251 7.09

Hawamahal Finance Private  Limited 23,35,500  5.92 23,35,500  5.92 

Sangam Fincap  Limited 22,16,145  5.62 22,16,145  5.62 
TOTAL 1,85,86,892  47.15 1,71,97,512 43.62

2.2 The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:        

Particulars As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016
No. of Shares No. of Shares

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 3,94,21,559 3,94,21,559
Add: Shares Issued During the year  -    -   
Equity Shares at the end of the year 3,94,21,559 3,94,21,559

2.3 Rights, Preferences and Restrictions:

i. The Company has only one class of shares referred to as Equity Shares having par value of ` 10 Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled 
to one vote per share.

ii. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by 
the shareholders.

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

3. RESERVES & SURPLUS
Capital Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet 297 297
Securities Premium Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet 5,868 5,868
Preference Share Capital Redemption Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet 1,178 1,178
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(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

3. RESERVES & SURPLUS (contd.)
General Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet 19,818 16,818
Add: Transferred from Profit & Loss Account 3,000 3,000
Closing Balance 22,818 19,818
Profit & Loss Account

As per last Balance Sheet 12,822 9,067
Add: Profit for the year 5,460 7,704
Less: Appropriations
Transferred to General Reserve 3,000 3,000

Proposed Dividend of ` 2/- per Equity Share in the previous year 
(Refer Note 3.1) - 788

Tax on Dividend - 161
Closing Balance 15,282 12,822
TOTAL 45,443 39,983

3.1		�P  roposed Dividend: Equity Share

		�  According to the revised AS 4 – Contingencies and events occurring after the balance sheet date as notified by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs through amendments to Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendments Rules, 2016 , the company has not accounted for 
proposed dividend ( including tax) as a liability for the year ended 31st March, 2017.

		�  The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30th May, 2017 has recommended a dividend of ` 2/- per equity share for the year ended 
31st March, 2017. The declaration and payment of dividend is subject to requisite approvals.

(` in Lakhs)
 Non - Current  Current Maturities 

4. LONG TERM BORROWINGS
As at 31st 

March, 2017
As at 31st 

March, 2016
As at 31st 

March, 2017
As at 31st 

March, 2016

(A) Secured

(a) Term Loans From Banks 

Rupee Loans 32,533  26,237 5,988 6,465

(b) Vehicle Loans From Banks 165  196 111 110

(c) Vehicle Loans From Others 13  38 25 26

TOTAL (A) 32,711 26,471 6,124 6,601

(B) Unsecured
Term Loans From Banks 

Foreign Currency Loans (Buyers Credit)  -    1,663  -    -   

TOTAL (B)  -    1,663  -    -   

TOTAL (A)+(B) 32,711 28,134 6,124 6,601

4.1	 	� All Term Loans  from banks (including current maturities) except vehicle loan are secured by a joint equitable mortgage  by deposit 
of title deeds in respect of all immovable properties and first hypothecation  of the entire moveable properties of the company , both 
present and future (save and  except book debts) subject to prior charges created/to be created in favour of  bankers for securing 
working capital borrowing, ranking pari-passu with the charges  created/to be created in favour of other participating bankers. The 
above Term Loans are further secured by personal guarantee of two directors of the Company.

4.2		�  Vehicle Loans (including current maturities) are secured by hypothecation of respective vehicle(s) and are repayable over the term of 
the loan ranging from 2 to 7 years.

4.3		�  Foreign Currency Loans (Buyers Credit) ` NIL (Previous Year ` 1,663 Lakhs) obtained @ 0.46-0.85% p.a. was repayable over 90-91 days. 
The ultimate payment of the above loan of ` 1,663 Lakhs (Previous Year ` NIL) is made from the term loans during the year.

4.4		  There is no default in repayment or interest of any loans on due dates.
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 Term Loan from Banks 

4.5 Terms of Repayment :  As at 31st March, 2017 Repayments

(` in Lakhs) No. of due 
Installments Periodicity

1,463 12 - 16 Quarterly Equal

34,326 16 - 32 Quarterly Graded

2,732 34 Quarterly Graded

TOTAL 38,521

Less: Current Maturity 5,988

32,533

Note:	 Rate of Interest is Base Rate / MCLR + Spread of 0.15% to 2.25%  on the above different term loans. 

 Term Loan from Banks 

As at 31st March, 2016 Repayments

(` in Lakhs) No. of due 
Installments Periodicity

1,900 16 - 20 Quarterly Equal

27,977 20 - 32 Quarterly Graded

2,825 2 Quarterly Graded

TOTAL 32,702

Less: Current Maturity 6,465

26,237

Note: Rate of Interest is Base Rate + Spread of 0.90% to 2.25% on the above different term loans. 

 Vehicle Loan from Banks 

 As at 31st March, 2017 Repayments

(` in Lakhs) No. of due 
Installments Periodicity

199 1 - 45 Monthly

77 83 Monthly

TOTAL 276

Less: Current Maturity 111

165

Note: Rate of Interest is 8.51% to 11.00%
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 Vehicle Loan from Banks 

 As at 31st March, 2016 Repayments

(` in Lakhs) No. of due 
Installments Periodicity

8 1 - 12 Monthly

298 13 - 57 Monthly

TOTAL 306

Less: Current Maturity 110

196

Note: Rate of Interest is 8.51% to 11.00%

 Vehicle Loan from Others 

As at 31st March, 2017 Repayments

(` in Lakhs) No. of due 
Installments Periodicity

38 8 - 45 Monthly

Less: Current Maturity 25

13

Note: Rate of Interest is 7.01% to 10.50%

 Vehicle Loan from Others 

As at 31st March, 2016 Repayments

(` in Lakhs) No. of due 
Installments Periodicity

64 20 - 57 Monthly

Less: Current Maturity 26

38

Note: Rate of Interest is 7.01% to 10.50%

(` in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

5. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (Net)

A) Deferred Tax Liability

Related to fixed assets 5,601 4,622

TOTAL (A) 5,601 4,622

B) Deferred Tax Assets

Disallowance u/s 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 416 346

Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 87 71

TOTAL (B) 503 417

C) Deferred Tax Liability (Net) (A-B) 5,098 4,205

Notes 
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(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

6. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Secured

Loans Repayable on Demand
From Banks (Rupee) 27,880 30,150

From Banks (Foreign Currency) 4,111  -   

TOTAL 31,991 30,150

6.1		  Borrowings from Banks for working capital are secured by hypothecation of inventories and charge on book debts both present and 
future and second charge on all the immovable and movable fixed assets of the Company. The above borrowing are further secured by 
personal guarantee of two directors of the Company. There is no default in repayment or interest of any loans on due dates.

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

7. TRADE PAYABLES
Dues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises (Refer Note No. 7.1)  -    -   

Dues to other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 10,216 7,647

TOTAL 10,216 7,647

7.1		D  ues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises:-

		  The Company has not received any intimation from its suppliers being registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 (MSME). Since the relevant information is not readily available, necessary disclosure required under MSME 
Act, 2006 can not be made. However, the Company generally makes payment to its suppliers within agreed credit period and thus the 
management is confident that the liability of interest under this Act, if any, would not be material.

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

8. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturities of long term debt 6,124 6,601
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 2 53
Unpaid Dividends # 30 26
Creditors for Capital Expenditure 1,058 645
Security Deposit 504 464
Advance from Customers 341 272
Liability towards Staff and Workers 1,167 1,008
Commission Payable on Sales 1,186 983
Liabilities for Expenses 2,895 2,818
Income Tax Payable (Net)  -   475
Statutory Dues 271 403
TOTAL 13,578 13,748

		  # 	 There is no overdue amount to be credited to investor education & protection fund.

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

9. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Provisions for Gratuity/ Leave Encashment (Refer Note No. 23.1) 717 468

Proposed Dividend on Equity Share - 788

Tax on Dividend - 161

TOTAL 717 1,417

Notes 
on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017 (Contd.)
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(` in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

11. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
(Long Term Investments) (Valued at Cost)

Unquoted Non - Trade Investment

In Equity Shares -

Unquoted, fully paid up

Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid

In Wholly Owned Subsidiary

Sangam Lifestyle Ventures Limited  5  -   

50000 (Previous Year NIL) at par

Other Investments-

Keti Sangam Infrastructure (India) Limited 581 581

580600 (Previous Year 580600) at premium of ` 90/- per share

PKSS Infrastructure Private Limited  -    -   

3900 (Previous Year 3900) at par

` 39000 (Previous Year ` 39000)

Kalyan Sangam Infratech Limited 4 4

37500 (Previous Year 37500) at par

Equity Shares of ` 20/- each fully paid

AP Mahesh Co-Operative Bank Limited  -    -   

50 (Previous Year NIL) at par

` 1000 (Previous Year NIL)
TOTAL 590 585

Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments  590  585 

Aggregate Provision for diminution in value of Investments (Refer 
Note 11.2)  -    -   

11.1	 	 Sangam Lifestyle Ventures Limited became a wholly owned subsidiary company w.e.f. 14th June,2016 on its incorporation

11.2	 	 As per the management, The Investment in Keti Sangam is long term investment and has potential to give huge appreciation in future. 
The vehicular traffic is increasing day by day and the concession period is about 24 years. Further there is provision of hike in toll 
charges of 15% in every 3 years. Considering the potential of the project the banks have securitized the project from ` 225 Crores to 313 
Crores. Hence this investment is a long term valuable asset of the Company, Accordingly diminution is not provided.

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

12. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured and Considered Good)

Capital Advances - Related Party 227 208

Capital Advances - Others 901 1,161

Security Deposit 593 589

Other Loans & Advances                                                                       20 20

Less : Provision for Doubtful Debts                                                       20  -   20   - 

Prepaid Expenses 85 13

TOTAL 1,806 1,971
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(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

13. INVENTORIES
Raw Materials 12,413 10,422

Stock-in-Process 6,252 4,959

Finished Goods 14,204 11,325

Traded Goods 26 202

Stores, Spares & Fuel 3,075 2,541

TOTAL 35,970 29,449

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

14. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Current)
(Unsecured and Considered Good)

Due over six months

Considered Good 4,563 3,452

Considered Doubtful 232 186

Other Trade Receivables (Refer Note No. 14.1) 21,251 23,658

26,046 27,296

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts 232 186

TOTAL 25,814 27,110

14.1		 Included in the above Receivables due from Companies / Firms in which directors are interested is ` 22 Lakhs (Previous Year `12 Lakhs)	
		  and due from wholly owned Subsidiary Company is ` 353 Lakhs (Previous Year ` Nil)

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

15. CASH & cash equivalents
Earmarked Balances # 29 26

Balance with Banks 486 178

Cash on Hand 27 20

Fixed Deposits with banks ## 5 137

TOTAL 547 361

		  # Balance with Banks against Unclaimed Dividend

		  ## Fixed Deposits Earmarked with Banks including above 12 Months Maturities ` NIL (Previous Year ` 132 Lakhs)

		D  isclosure as required under Notification no. G.S.R. 308(E) dated  30th March, 2017 as per the enclosed sheet:

(Amount in `)
Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) Other Denomination Notes Total

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 514500 1096388 1610888
(+) Permitted receipts  -   8433914 8433914
(-) Permitted payments 40000 8413395 8453395
(-) Amount deposited in Banks 474500 32670 507170
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016  -   1084237 1084237

15.1 		 (i)	 ` 4 Lakhs deposited directly by agent against Tax Payment in SBN Currency, which is not included in above.

15.1 		 (ii)	Opening & Closing Cash in Hand includes Employee Imprest  A/C.

Notes 
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(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

16. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 
(Unsecured and Considered Good)

Balance with Central Excise Authorities 2,347 1,778

Advance tax, MAT Credit Receivables & TDS/Refund Receivable (Net) 1,248  -   

Advance against Supplies / Expenses (Refer Note No. 16.1) 3,163 2,474

Subsidy Receivable 974 1,659

Excise Rebate Claim Receivable 1,000 847

VAT / TED Receivable 462 343

Security Deposits 267 271

Prepaid Expenses 126 100

Advance to Employees 56 78

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind 33 93

TOTAL 9,676 7,643

16.1		 Due from wholly owned subsidiary company is ` 50 Lakhs (Previous Year ` NIL)

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

17. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured and Considered Good)

Interest Receivable - From Trade Debtors/ Others 95 92

DEPB, DBK Incentive Receivable 686 641

Export Growth Entitlement Receivables (Refer Note No.33) 408  -   

Recoverable from Govt. / Others 99 99

Recoverable from NHAI UP (Refer Note No.31) 1,367 1,367

Insurance Claim Receivable 100 14

TOTAL 2,755 2,213

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17 2015 -16

18. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products/ Income from Services 1,63,037 1,53,783

1,63,037 1,53,783

Less:  Excise Duty 3,673 3,343
TOTAL 1,59,364 1,50,440

(` in Lakhs)

18.1 Particulars of Sale of Products/Service 2016-17 2015 -16

Yarn 93,003 83,200
Fabrics 27,684 28,420
Denim Fabric 29,566 32,679
Readymade Garments 313 610
Seamless Garments 1,046 1,284
Waste 584 344

Notes 
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(` in Lakhs)
18.1 Particulars of Sale of Products/Service (Contd.) 2016-17 2015 -16

Job Charge 6,022 5,715
Electricity Income (Wind Power) 201 163
SHIS / IEIS Benefits  -   51
Traded Goods - Yarn 1,470 1,317
Traded Goods - Fabric 3,078  -   
Traded Goods - Readymade Garment 70  -   
TOTAL 1,63,037 1,53,783

18.2		 During the year, exchange fluctuation gain on export sales included in sales is ` NIL (Previous Year ` 716 Lakhs)

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17 2015 -16

19. OTHER INCOME
Interest

From Trade Debtors 723 706
From Others 81 239
Other Non-Operating Income

Toll Arbitration Award (Refer Note No.31)  -   1,248
Earlier Years Income (Export Growth Entitlement) (Refer Note No.33) 408  -   
Miscellaneous Receipts 114 97
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain (Other than considered as 
finance cost) 1,000 146

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) 8 29
TOTAL 2,334 2,465

2016-17 2015 -16

20. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED  ̀  in Lakhs % of Consumption  ` in Lakhs % of Consumption
Imported  2,199  2.43 1,806  2.18 
Indigenous  88,477  97.57 81,226  97.82 
TOTAL 90,676  100.00 83,032  100.00 

(` in Lakhs)

20.1 Particulars of Material Consumed 2016-17 2015 -16

Man Made Fibre  51,665  44,775 
Cotton  21,552  17,830 
POY Yarn  2,871  3,483 
Yarn  7,307  7,606 
Fabrics  697  2,785 
Dyes & Chemicals  6,462  6,434 
Others  122  119 
TOTAL 90,676 83,032

Notes 
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(` in Lakhs)
2016-17 2015 -16

21. Purchases of Traded Goods
Traded Goods – Yarn  1,437  1,249 
Traded Goods – Fabric  3,041  -   
Traded Goods – Readymade Garment  168  -   

4,646 1,249

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17 2015 -16

22. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,  
STOCK-IN-PROCESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
Inventories (at close)

Finished Goods 14,204 11,325
Stock-in-Process 6,252 4,959

20,456 16,284

Inventories (at commencement)

Finished Goods 11,325 9,086
Stock-in-Process 4,959 4,975

16,284 14,061

TOTAL (4,172) (2,223)

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17 2015 -16

23. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and Wages 14,760 12,930
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 1,125 911
Staff Welfare Expenses 128 149
TOTAL 16,013 13,990

23.1		 As per Accounting Standard 15 (Revised) “Employee benefits”, the disclosure as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below:-
		D  efined Benefit Plans

		  The following tables set out the details of amount recognized in the financial statements in respect of Employee benefit schemes.

(` in Lakhs)
Sr. 
No. Particulars As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

 Gratuity  Leave 
Encashment  Gratuity  Leave 

Encashment 
I. Assumptions as at

Mortality  IALM (2006-
08) Ult. 

 IALM (2006-
08) Ult. 

 IALM (2006-
08)Ult 

 IALM (2006-08)
Ult 

Discount Rate 7.44% 7.44% 8.00% 8.00%
Rate of increase in compensation 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50%
Rate of return (expected) on plan assets 8.15% 8.15%

Withdrawal rates  Upto Age 30: 3% 31-44: 2%                                    
45 & Above: 1% 

 Upto Age 30: 3% 31-44: 2%                                           
45 & Above: 1% 
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(` in Lakhs)
Sr. 
No. Particulars As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

 Gratuity  Leave 
Encashment  Gratuity  Leave 

Encashment 
II. Changes in present value of obligations

PVO at beginning of period  1,123.22  345.94  890.24  274.39 
Interest cost  84.58  24.29  65.76  19.92 
Current Service Cost  297.32  235.35  255.37  200.61 
Benefits Paid (131.88) (84.89) (136.40) (50.85)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation 34.22 (116.72) 48.24 (98.13)
PVO at end of period  1,407.46  403.97  1,123.21  345.94 

III. Changes in fair value of plan assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of period  776.18  224.89  716.87  199.75 
Adjustment to Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets  -    -    -    -   
Expected Return on Plan Assets  65.44  18.83  59.83  17.00 
Contributions 147.05 86.32 135.68 58.68
Benefit Paid (131.87) (84.89) (136.40) (50.85)
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets (6.00) (1.60)  0.20  0.31 
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of period  850.80  243.55  776.18  224.89 

IV. Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of period  776.18  224.89  716.87  199.75 
Adjustment to Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets  -    -    -    -   
Actual Return on Plan Assets  59.44  17.23  60.02  17.31 
Contributions 147.05 86.32 135.68 58.68
Benefit Paid (131.87) (84.89) (136.40) (50.85)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of period  850.80  243.55  776.18  224.89 
Funded Status (556.67) (160.42) (347.04) (121.05)
Excess of actual over estimated return on Plan Assets (6.00) (1.60)  0.20  0.31 

V. Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) Recognized

Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) for the period (Obligation) (34.22)  116.72 (48.24)  98.13 
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) for the period (Plan Assets) (6.00) (1.60)  0.20  0.31 
Total Gain/ (Loss) for the period (40.22)  115.11 (48.05)  98.44 
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) recognized for the period (40.22) 115.11 (48.05) 98.44
Unrecognized Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) at end of period  -    -    -    -   

VI. Amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and statement 
of P&L A/c 

PVO at end of period  1,407.46  403.97  1,123.21  345.94 
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of period  850.80  243.55  776.18  224.89 
Funded Status (556.67) (160.42) (347.04) (121.05)
Unrecognized Actuarial Gain/ (Loss)  -    -    -    -   
Net Asset/ (Liability) recognized in the balance sheet (556.67) (160.42) (347.04) (121.05)
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(` in Lakhs)
Sr. 
No. Particulars As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016

 Gratuity  Leave 
Encashment  Gratuity  Leave 

Encashment 
VII. Expense recognized in the statement of P&L A/c

Current Service Cost  297.32  235.35  255.37  200.61 
Interest Cost  84.58  24.28  65.76  19.92 
Expected Return on Plan Assets (65.44) (18.84) (59.83) (17.00)
Net Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognized for the period 40.22 (115.11) 48.05 (98.44)
Expense recognized in the statement of P&L A/c 356.68 125.68 309.35 105.09

VIII Movements in the Liability recognized in Balance Sheet

Opening Net Liability  347.04  121.05  173.37  74.64 
Adjustment to Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets  -    -    -    -   
Expenses as above  356.68  125.68  309.35  105.09 
Contribution Paid (147.05) (86.32) (135.68) (58.68)
Closing Net Liability 556.67 160.42 347.04 121.05

IX. Experience Analysis - Liabilities

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss due to change in bases  83.91  23.09  -    -   
Experience (Gain)/ Loss due to Change in Experience (49.68) (139.81) 48.24 (98.13)
Total  34.22 (116.72)  48.24 (98.13)
Experience Analysis - Plan Assets

Experience (Gain)/ Loss due to Change in Plan Assets 6.00 1.60 (0.20) (0.31)
X. Schedule III Details

Current Liability  556.67  160.42  347.04  121.05 
Non-Current Liability  850.80  243.55  776.18  224.89 

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17 2015 -16

24. POWER & FUEL
Power & Fuel 17,293 15,792
TOTAL 17,293 15,792

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17 2015 -16

25. FINANCE COSTS
Interest Expenses 6,007 5,978
Bank Charges 466 418
Applicable (Gain) / Loss on foreign currency transactions and 
translation (Net) (114)  -   

TOTAL 6,359 6,396

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17 2015 -16

26. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE
Depreciation and Amortization 7,258 7,619
TOTAL 7,258 7,619
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(` in Lakhs)
2016-17 2015 -16

27. OTHER EXPENSES
A. Manufacturing Expenses

Stores & Spares Consumed 3,361 3,382
Packing Material Consumed 1,908 1,905
Processing and Other Job Charges 3,106 2,381
Repairs To: Plant & Machinery 410 368

 Building 85 122
 Others 42 38

Other Manufacturing Expenses 1,341 1,213
TOTAL (A) 10,253 9,409

B. Administrative Expenses

Rent 206 144
Rates & Taxes 41 57
Payments to Auditor: Statutory Audit Fees 13 12

Taxation Matters 9 8
Reimbursement of Expenses 2 2

Cost Audit Fees 1 1
Insurance Premium 144 122
Directors' Travelling 35 44
Travelling & Conveyance 341 301
Telephone & Postage 96 91
Directors' Remuneration 471 435
Printing & Stationery 46 49
Legal & Professional Fees 217 171
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 506 406
Director's Sitting Fees 8 11
Charity and Donations 13 11
Miscellaneous Expenses 173 223
Contribution towards CSR (Refer Note No.37) 81 23
TOTAL (B) 2,403 2,111

C. Selling and Distribution Expenses

Sales Incentive, Commission & Brokerage 1,830 1,908
Rebates & Claims 164 42
Freight, Octroi and Other Selling Expenses 2,672 2,502
TOTAL (C) 4,666 4,452

TOTAL (A+B+C) 17,322 15,972

2016-17 2015 -16

27.1 VALUE OF STORES & SPARES CONSUMED: (` in Lakhs)  % of 
Consumption (` in Lakhs)  % of 

Consumption
Imported  370  11.01  406  12.01 
Indigenous  2,991  88.99  2,976  87.99 
TOTAL 3,361  100.00 3,382  100.00 
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(` in Lakhs)
2016-17 2015 -16

27.2 VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CIF BASIS IN RESPECT OF

Raw Materials 1,856 1,410
Stores & Spares 512 414
Capital Goods 2,782 2,741

5,150 4,565

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17 2015 -16

27.3 EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

Travelling Expenses 50 51
Other Expenses 781 704

831 755

2016-17 2015 -16

28. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
i) Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 

attributable to Equity Shareholders (` in Lakhs)  5,460  7,704 

ii) Weighted Average number of equity shares used as 
denominator for calculating EPS  3,94,21,559  3,94,21,559

iii) Basic and Diluted Earning per share (`)  13.85  19.54 
iv) Face Value per equity share (`)  10  10 

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17 2015 -16

29. EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE

FOB value of exports  41,920  40,258 
 41,920  40,258 

30.		  The Company operates mainly in one segment i.e. Textiles. The Company is also having wind power plant, operation of which is not a 
reportable segment as per AS-17 issued by ICAI.

Secondary Segment Information : (` in Lakhs)
2016-17 2015 -16

Revenue

Domestic 1,20,620 1,13,120
Export  42,417  40,663 
TOTAL 1,63,037 1,53,783

31.		  The Company had executed a toll user fee collection contract with NHAI for Usaka Toll Plaza in U.P. on N.H.25 which commenced on 
9th March, 2013. However due to breach of contract terms and conditions by NHAI, resulting in continued losses, the Company disputed 
and terminated the contract and went into arbitration. The losses incurred by the Company due to the said contract were fully provided 
in the earlier years. After due proceedings, the arbitrator has given award in favour of the Company during the F.Y. 2015-16. Accordingly, 
the principal amount of the award of ` 1,247 Lakhs was recognized as income by the Company and included in other income during  
F.Y. 2015-16. NHAI has filed an appeal against the said Arbitration award in the Hon’ble Delhi High Court. On the basis of the arbitration 
award and legal counsel, the management is virtually certain that the matter will be decided in Company’s favour. The case is yet to be 
decided by the Hon’ble Delhi High Court.
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32.		  The Company is entitled to interest subsidy on certain term loans obtained under Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme (“TUFS”) of 
Central Government and Incentive from Rajasthan Govt. under Rajasthan Investment Promotion Policy (RIPS) 2003, which has been 
hitherto claimed as revenue instead of capital receipt while computing the total income, however based on the judicial decisions the 
same has been now been claimed as capital receipt by filing the revised return. The effect thereof on tax is shown as earlier years tax 
adjustments.

33.		  In the F.Y. 2010-11, The Company had written off ` 408 Lakhs export incentive receivable under the Target Plus Scheme related to 
F.Y. 2005-06 due to Notification dated 12th June, 2006 by which Govt. reduced the incentive from 15% to 5% on incremental exports 
with retrospective effect from 01.04.2005. Subsequently based on the Hon’ble High Court Judgement passed on dated 5th May, 2016 
with regard to Target Plus Scheme Scrips for the exports pertaining to the F.Y. 2005-06 where by the Hon’ble High Court has ordered 
that incentive can not be withdrawn with retrospective effect. The Company had filed its claim in view of the said Hon’ble High Court 
judgement, Based on this The Company is entitled to receive the differential incentive and have therefore accounted for the same in 
current Financial Year 2016-17.

34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

(i) Related Party Transactions

As per Accounting Standard (AS-18) on Related Party Disclosures issued by ICAI, the disclosures of related parties as defined in 
the Accounting Standard is given below:-

Enterprises over which Directors and Relatives of such 
personnel exercise significant influence
Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company
Sangam Lifestyle Ventures Limited
Group Companies
Sangam Business Credit Limited
Mahalaxmi TMT Private Limited
Raj Rajeshwar Enterprises Private Limited
Nikita Credits Private Limited
Fashion Funda.Com Private Limited
Key Management Personnel
Shri R.P. Soni Chairman
Shri S.N. Modani Managing Director & CEO
Shri V.K. Sodani Executive Director
Shri Anil Jain CFO & Company Secretary
Relative of Key Management Personnel Relationship
Smt. Radha Devi Wife of Director Shri R.P. Soni
Ms. Antima Soni Daughter of Director Shri R.P. Soni
Shri Anurag Soni Son of Director Shri R.P. Soni
Shri Pranal Modani Son of Director Shri S.N. Modani
Smt. Mamta Modani Wife of Director Shri S.N. Modani
Smt. Archana Sodani Wife of Director Shri V.K. Sodani
Smt. Anjana Thakur Daughter of Director Shri R.P. Soni
Others
Shri R.P. Soni HUF
M/S Badri Lal Soni Charitable Trust
M/S Kesar Bai Soni Charitable Trust
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34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES: (Contd.)

(ii) Transactions during the year with related parties:

(` in Lakhs)

Nature of Transaction Salary Exp. Insurance 
Premium Rent CSR Expenses Total

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Key Management Personnel  503  468  9  17  -  -  -  -  512  485 
Relatives of Key Management 
Personnel  64  61  5  5  65  63  -  -  134  129 

Others  -  -  -  -  6  6  44  -  50  6 
TOTAL  567  529  14  22  71  69  44  -  696  620 

(` in Lakhs)
Sale of Goods / Job Charges / 
Interest Received

2017 2016

Group Companies 1499 757
Subsidiary Company 353  -   

(` in Lakhs)
Purchase / Job Charges 2017 2016
Group Companies 54 116

(` in Lakhs)
Purchase of Capital Goods 2017 2016
Group Companies 140 123

(` in Lakhs)
Rent Received 2017 2016
Group Companies 1 1
Subsidiary Company 1  -   

(` in Lakhs)
Capital Investment 2017 2016
Subsidiary Company 5  -   

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17 2015 -16

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(I) Contingent Liabilities

(A) Guarantees
Outstanding Bank Guarantees  912  951 

(B) Other Money for which the Company is contingently liable
(i) Liability in respect of bills discounted with Banks 

(including third party bills discounting)  154  45 

(ii) Stamp Duty case with respect to the merger 
of SPBL & Sangam India Limited pending with 
Rajasthan High Court, Jodhpur.

 109  109 

(iii) Various cases pending with Central Excise & 
Service Tax (Net of amount fully provided)  318  27 
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(` in Lakhs)
2016-17 2015 -16

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Contd.)

(iv) Case pending with Rajasthan High Court, Jodhpur 
under Electricity Act, 2003  20  20 

(v) Entry Tax matters for the year 2013-14 and 2014-
15 under dispute with regard to interest / penalty.  28  85 

(vi) Sales Tax case pending with Tax Board, Ajmer. The 
Demand raised for input tax credit not reversed 
properly.

 94  250 

(vii) Sales Tax case pending with Tax Board, Ajmer. 
The demand raised for VAT with RIPS Incentive on 
export.

 341  341 

(viii) Sales Tax case pending with D.C. (Appeals). The 
demand raised due to sales tax incentive benefit 
calculation procedure.

 35  35 

(ix) Sales Tax case pending with D.C. (Appeals) for 
penalty levied for non-furnishing form VAT 47A  6  2 

(x) Disputes on the various tolls for which company is 
contingently liable  243  152 

(II) Commitments

(A) Estimated amount of contracts (Net of advances) remaining to 
be executed on capital account and not provided for  2,816  8,905 

(B) Obligations

In respect of capital goods imported at the concessional rate of duty under the Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme, the 
Company has an export obligation of approximately ` 11,795 Lakhs (Previous Year ` NIL), which is required to be met at different 
dates, before 31st March, 2023. In the event of non-fulfillment of the export obligation, the Company will be liable to pay custom 
duties and penalties, as applicable. 

36. FINANCIAL AND DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Financial and Derivative Instruments (For Hedging Currency Risks) and Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure.

a) Forward contract outstanding as at Balance Sheet Date.

Particulars  Currency 2017 2016 Purpose
Forward Exchange Contract  USD 234.69 Lakhs 211.50 Lakhs Export
Forward Exchange Contract  Euro 15.00 Lakhs 9.20 Lakhs Export

 INR  16,265 Lakhs 15,203 Lakhs

		  There is no derivative contract for option which is outstanding as at 31st March, 2017.

b) Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure:-

Purpose  Currency 2017 2016
Import (Raw Materials) (USD)  USD  2.66 Lakhs  2.75 Lakhs 
Fixed Assets  (JPY)  JPY  854.76 Lakhs  - 
Fixed Assets  (Euro)  Euro  2.37 Lakhs  24.61 Lakhs 

 INR 837 Lakhs 2,009 Lakhs
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37. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

a) The gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as per 
provision of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 amounts to ` 162 Lakhs.

b) The details of the amount spent during the year on CSR activities as follow:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Expenditure 
incurred in 

cash

Yet to be paid 
in Cash

Expenditure 
incurred in 

cash

Yet to be paid  
in Cash

31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016
Construction / acquisition of any asset  -    -    -    -   
On purposes other than (i) above 81  -   23  -   
TOTAL 81  -   23  -   

(c) Out of the above ` 23 Lakhs (Previous Year ` NIL) has been spent through M/s Badri Lal Soni Charitable Trust and ` 21 Lakhs 
(Previous Year ` NIL) has been spent through M/s Kesar Bai Soni Charitable Trust, which are related parties. 

		  Breakup of the expenditure incurred through the trust during the year is as under:

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016
Environmental Sustainability 22 -
Promoting Education 1 -
Promoting Health Care 17 -
Eradication Hunger, Poverty and Malnutrition 4 -
TOTAL 44 -

38.		  In the opinion of Management, there is no impairment of assets in accordance with accounting standard (AS-28) as on Balance Sheet 
date.

39.		  The figures of the previous year have been re-grouped / re-arranged, recast wherever considered necessary.
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Cash Flow Statement 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017

(` in Lakhs)
Current Year Previous Year

 A Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit Before Tax 6,258 11,043

Adjustments for
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 7,258 7,619
Finance  Costs 6,359 6,396
Interest Income (804) (945)
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (1,000) (146)
Provision for Doubtful Debts & Advances 45 35
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) (8) (29)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 18,108 23,973

Adjustment for
Inventories (6,521) (2,940)
Trade & Other Receivables (1,155) (5,298)
Trade & Other Payables 3,173 1,378
Cash Generated from Operations 13,605 17,113

Taxes Paid (95) 3,169
Net Cash Inflow / (Out Flow) from Operating Activities 13,700 13,944

B Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets (14,003) (10,967)
Sale of Fixed Assets 109 54
Interest Income 107 220
Investment in Subsidiary Company (5)  -   
Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) from Investing Activities (13,792) (10,693)

C Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 12,275 8,927
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (8,176) (8,180)
Increased / Decreased in Short- Term Borrowings 1,841 2,457
Finance  Costs (6,410) (6,343)
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 1,000 146
Interest Income 693 657
Dividend Paid (Including Tax on Dividend) (945) (945)
Net Cash Inflow / (Out Flow) from Financing Activities 278 (3,281)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents 186 (30)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning 361 391
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End 547 361

As per our report of even date attached
For R. Kabra & Co. For B.L. Chordia & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 104502W)    (Registration No. 000294C)

(R.L. Kabra) (B.L. Chordia) (R.P. Soni) (S.N. Modani) (V.K. Sodani)
Partner Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO Executive Director
M.Ship No. 016216 M.Ship No. 010882 (DIN 00401439) (DIN 00401498) (DIN 00403740)

Camp  : Bhilwara                                                Place : Bhilwara (Anil Jain)
Date: 30th May, 2017                  Date: 30th May, 2017 CFO & Company Secretary 

(M No.: F-3147)
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To the Members of 

Sangam (India) Limited 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of Sangam (India) Limited (hereinafter referred to as 
the “Company”) and its subsidiary Company (the Company and 
its subsidiary company together hereinafter referred to as the 
“the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at 31st March, 2017, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year 
then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the 
consolidated financial statements”.)

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of 
the requirements of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”), that give a 
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated 
financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, as applicable. The respective Board of Directors of 
the Company and its subsidiary company are responsible for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been 
used for the purpose of preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements by the Board of Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated 
financial statements based on our audit. While conducting the 
audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the 
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required 
to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those 

Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding 
Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by Holding 
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements.

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements, give the information required by the Act in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India;

a)	 in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of 
affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2017;

b)	 in the case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, 
of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

c)	 in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the 
cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary Company 
whose financial statements reflect Total Assets of ̀  367 Lakhs as at 
31st March, 2017, Total Revenues of ` 84 Lakhs for the year ended 
on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements 
of holding company. These financial statements of subsidiary 
company have been audited by other auditors whose reports have 
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the 
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 
disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary company is based 
solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our 
report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements below, is not 
modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance 
on the work done and the reports of the other auditors. 

Independent Auditor’s Report  
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

	 a) 	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

	 b)		 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 
law relating to preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of the other 
auditors.

	 c)		 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss, and Consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are 
in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements.

	 d) 	 In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements 
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act, as applicable.

	 e) 	 On the basis of the written representations received from 
the Directors of the Holding Company as on 31st March, 
2017 and taken on record by the Board of Directors of 
the Holding Company, and the reports of the statutory 
auditors of its subsidiary company incorporated in 
India, none of the Directors of the holding company and 
its subsidiary incorporated in India is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2017, from being appointed as a director in 
terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

	 f) 		 with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate report in “Annexure A” which is based on 
the auditors’ reports of the Holding Company and the 
subsidiary company; and

	 g) 	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and per the 
explanations given to us: 

			   i.	 The consolidated financial statements disclose the 
impact of pending litigations on the consolidated 
financial position of the Group - Refer Note 36 to 
the consolidated financial statements.

			   ii.	  The Group does not have any long-term contracts 
including derivatives contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses.

			   iii.	 There are no amounts which are required to 
be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the holding company and its 
subsidiary company.

			   iv.	 The group has provided requisite disclosures in 
its financial statements as to holdings as well 
as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the 
period 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 
2016 and these are in accordance with the books 
of account maintained by the group- Refer Note 
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

For R. Kabra & Co. For B L Chordia & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.104502W) (Firm Registration No.000294C)

(R L Kabra) (B L Chordia) 
Partner Partner
Membership No. 016216 Membership No. 010882
Place: Bhilwara Place: Bhilwara
Date:  30th May, 2017 Date:  30th May, 2017
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Annexure referred to in Point (f) of the Auditor’s Report of even date 
to the members of Sangam (India) Limited for the year ended 31st 
March 2017.
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Sangam (India) Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st 
March, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Holding Company’s management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
“the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding 
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by ICAI and the 
Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we and the other auditors have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that: 
(1) 	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 

detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

(2) 	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the Company; and 

(3) 	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 
2017, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India”.

Annexure “A”TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SANGAM (INDIA) LIMITED

For R. Kabra & Co. For B L Chordia & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.104502W) (Firm Registration No.000294C)

(R L Kabra) (B L Chordia) 
Partner Partner
Membership No. 016216 Membership No. 010882
Place: Bhilwara Place: Bhilwara
Date:  30th May, 2017 Date:  30th May, 2017
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(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Note As at 31st March, 2017

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ Funds

Share Capital 3 3,942
Reserves and Surplus 4 45,252

49,194

Non-Current Liabilities

Long Term Borrowings 5 32,711
Deferred Tax Liability (net) 6 5,071

37,782

Current Liabilities

Short Term Borrowings 7 31,991
Trade Payables 8 10,223
Other Current Liabilities 9 13,592
Short Term Provisions 10 718

56,524

TOTAL 1,43,500

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets 11 65,397
Intangible Assets 11 69
Capital Work-in-Progress 11 1,098
Non-Current Investments 12 585
Long Term Loans and Advances 13 1,811

68,960

Current Assets

Inventories 14 36,077
Trade Receivables 15 25,498
Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 569
Short Term Loans and Advances 17 9,641
Other Current Assets 18 2,755

74,540

TOTAL 1,43,500

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements 1 to 41

Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at 31st March, 2017

As per our report of even date attached
For R. Kabra & Co. For B.L. Chordia & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 104502W) (Registration No. 000294C)

(R.L. Kabra) (B.L. Chordia) (R.P. Soni) (S.N. Modani) (V.K. Sodani)
Partner Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO Executive Director
M.Ship No. 016216 M.Ship No. 010882 (DIN 00401439) (DIN 00401498) (DIN 00403740)

Camp : Bhilwara Place : Bhilwara (Anil Jain)
Date: 30th May, 2017 Date: 30th May, 2017 CFO & Company Secretary 

(M No.: F-3147)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss  
for the year ended 31st March, 2017

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Note 2016-17

INCOME

Revenue from Operations 19 1,59,113

Other Income 20 2,334

Total Revenue 1,61,447

EXPENDITURE :

Cost of Materials Consumed 21 90,676

Purchases of Traded Goods 22 4,657

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Process and Stock-in-Trade 23 (4,279)

Employee Benefits Expense 24 16,024

Power & Fuel 25 17,293

Finance Costs 26 6,359

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 27 7,260

Other Expenses 28 17,372

Total Expenses 1,55,362

Profit Before Exceptional Item and Tax 6,085

Exceptional Items

Provision for Doubtful Debts/ Advances 45

Profit Before Tax 6,040

Tax Expenses

Current Tax (Net of MAT Credit Entitlement) 685

Deferred Tax 866

Tax Expense for Earlier Years (780)

Profit for the year 5,269

Earnings per equity share of face value of `10 each

Basic and Diluted (in `)  13.37 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements 1 to 41

As per our report of even date attached
For R. Kabra & Co. For B.L. Chordia & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 104502W)  (Registration No. 000294C)

(R.L. Kabra) (B.L. Chordia) (R.P. Soni) (S.N. Modani) (V.K. Sodani)
Partner Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO Executive Director
M.Ship No. 016216 M.Ship No. 010882 (DIN 00401439) (DIN 00401498) (DIN 00403740)

Camp : Bhilwara Place : Bhilwara (Anil Jain)
Date: 30th May, 2017 Date: 30th May, 2017 CFO & Company Secretary 

(M No.: F-3147)
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1.	B asis of Accounting

	� The Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) are prepared in 
accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 21 “Consolidated 
Financial Statements”, as specified in the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

1.1	 The CFS comprises the financial statements of Sangam India 
Limited, the parent company and its wholly owned subsidiary 
company.

1.2	 The notes including significant policies to the CFS are 
intended to serve as a guide for better understanding of the 
Group’s position. In this respect, the Company has disclosed 
such notes and policies which represent the required 
disclosure.

1.3	 The list of subsidiaries included in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements are as under: 

Sl. 
No.

Name of subsidiary 
company

Country of 
incorporation

Proportion 
of ownership 
interest and 
voting power 

(%)

1.
Sangam Lifestyle 
Ventures Limited

India 100%

	 The subsidiary company was incorporated on 14thJune, 2016 
and became the subsidiary of the parent company from the 
date of incorporation.

1.4	 Reserves and surplus shown in the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet and profit in the Statement of Profit & Loss is after 
setting off the Group’s share in the loss of the wholly owned 
subsidiary.

2.	 Significant Accounting Policies

2.1	P rinciples of consolidation

	 The financial statements of the parent company and its 
subsidiary have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by 
adding together the book values of the like items of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-
group balances and the unrealized profits/losses on intra-
group transactions, and are presented to the extent possible, 
in the same manner as the Parent Company’s independent 
financial statements.

2.2	B asis of Accounting

	 a)		 The financial statements have been prepared under 
the historical cost convention on an accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India (“GAAP” or “Indian 
GAAP”) and as per the Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 and the 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

	 b)  	 Accounting policies not specifically referred to 
otherwise, have been followed consistently and are 
in consonance with generally accepted accounting 
principles.

2.3	U se of Estimates

	 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with 
Indian GAAP requires the management to make estimates 
and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of 

assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and 
the reported income and expenses during the year. The 
management believes that the estimates used in preparation 
of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. 
Future results could differ due to these estimates and the 
difference between the actual results and the estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the results are known/
materialized.

2.4	 Fixed Assets

	 a)		 Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of Cenvat/ VAT, if any, 
less accumulated depreciation/impairment if any. 

	 b)		 Cost includes purchase price, taxes and duties as 
applicable, freight, and other incidental expenses incurred 
till the commencement of commercial production. 
Incidental expenses include establishment expenses, 
interest on borrowed funds used for qualifying assets and 
other related direct costs attributable to the same.

	 c)		 Capital Work in Progress includes pre-operative 
and other incidental expenses pending allocation/ 
apportionment in respect of the uninstalled/ incomplete 
fixed assets.

2.5	 Intangible Assets

	 Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty 
credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortization and 
cumulative impairment. 

	 Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the 
future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset 
will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be 
measured reliably. 

	 Intangible assets are amortized over their useful life. 
Accordingly useful life of software is considered and 
amortized over 5 years 

2.6	D epreciation

	 a)		 Depreciation is provided under straight line method 
(SLM) over the estimated useful lives of the Fixed 
Assets as prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies 
Act, 2013 on all assets, except in case of the following 
assets, where useful life is estimated to be different 
than those prescribed under Schedule II, based on 
technical evaluation :

Particulars Useful Life
Plant & Machinery and Electric 
Installations (for Textile)

9.19 Years

Plant & Machinery and Electric 
Installations (for Power Generation)

18 Years

			   Depreciation on addition/deletion to/from fixed assets 
during the year is computed on pro rata basis. 

	 b) 	 Intangible Assets

			   Intangible assets comprise of computer software and 
are amortized on straight line basis over a period 
of 5 years, based on estimated useful life, which in 
management’s view represents the period during which 
economic benefits will be derived from the software.

Consolidated Notes  
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2.7	 Revenue Recognition

	 a)		 Sales is recognized, net of returns and trade discounts, 
on transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership 
to the buyer, which generally coincide with the delivery 
of goods to the customers. 

			   Sales include income from services, export incentives 
and exchange fluctuations, other recurring and non-
recurring incentives from the Government at the 
national and state levels. Sale of products is presented 
gross of excise duty where applicable, and net of other 
indirect taxes.Turnover is excluding Inter Division Sales 
and Sales tax

	 b)		 Claim lodged with insurance companies are recognized 
as income on acceptance by the Insurance Company. 
The Excess / Shortfall of claims passed are adjusted in 
the year of receipt.

	 c)   	 Dividend income from investments, if any, is accounted 
on the receipt basis.

2.8	 Inventories

	 Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, 
after providing for obsolesce and damages as follows:

	 Cost is ascertained as under:

a) Raw Material, Packing 
Material & Stores and 
Spares

At cost, on FIFO/ weighted 
average basis.

b) Finished goods At cost, plus appropriate 
production overheads, 
including excise duty 
paid/ payable on such 
goods if applicable.

c) Material in Process At Cost, plus appropriate 
production overheads.

	 Net realizable value is estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business less estimated cost of completion and 
selling expenses.

2.9	 Foreign Exchange Transaction/Translation

	 a)		 Monetary and Non-monetary items /transactions 
denominated in foreign currencies are normally 
recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of 
transaction.

	 b)		 Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies 
at the year end and not covered by forward exchange 
contracts are translated at the year-end rates and those 
covered by forward exchange contracts are translated at 
the rate ruling on the date of transaction as increased 
or decreased by the proportionate difference between 
the forward rate and exchange rate on the date of 
transaction. Such differences are recognized over the 
life of the contract.

	 c)		 Exchange differences in respect of monetary and non-
monetary items are recognized as income or expense in 
the profit and loss account for the relevant year except 
otherwise disclosed in other notes.

	 d)		 Outstanding derivatives contracts, other than those 
covered under AS-11, at the year-end are marked to 
market rate, and loss, if any, are accounted for in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. As prudent accounting 
policy, gain on marked to market at the end of year are 
not accounted for.

2.10	 Research and Development 

	 Revenue expenditure on research is expensed under respective 
heads of account in the period in which it is incurred. Capital 
expenditure is shown as addition to fixed assets.

2.11	 Retirement Benefits

	 a) 	 Defined Contribution Plan

			   The Company contributes to Government Provident 
Fund Scheme. The Company’s contribution paid/ 
payable under the scheme is recognized as an expense 
in the statement of profit and loss during the period in 
which the employee renders the related service.

	 b)  	 Defined Benefit Plan

			   The Company’s liabilities on account of gratuity and 
leave encashment are determined at the end of each 
financial year on the basis of actuarial Valuation as per 
requirements of Accounting Standard 15 (revised 2005) 
on “Employee Benefits”.

2.12	B orrowing Costs

	 Borrowing costs relating to acquisition/ construction of 
qualifying assets are capitalized until the time all substantial 
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their 
intended use are complete. A qualifying asset is one that 
necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

2.13	A ccounting for Taxes on Income

	 a)		 Current tax is provided as per the provisions of the 
Income Tax Act 1961 as applicable.

	 b)		 Tax expenses comprise of current and deferred tax. 
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected 
to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the 
Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax reflects the 
impact of current year timing differences between book 
profit and taxable income for the year and reversal of 
timing differences of earlier years.

	 c)		 The deferred tax for timing differences between the 
book profit and taxable income for the year is accounted 
for using the tax rates and laws that have been 
substantially enacted as of the Balance Sheet date. 
Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent 
that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such 
deferred tax assets can be realized. If the Company 
has carry forward unabsorbed depreciation and tax 
losses, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the 
extent there is virtual certainty supported by convincing 
evidence that sufficient taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

Consolidated Notes  
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			   Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognized 
as an asset only when there is a convincing evidence 
that the Company will pay normal income tax during 
the specified period. In the year in which the MAT 
credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset 
in accordance with the recommendations contained 
in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of 
a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown 
as MAT Credit entitlement. The Company reviews the 
same as at each Balance Sheet date and write down the 
carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent 
there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that 
the Company will pay normal income-tax during the 
specified period.

2.14	 Impairment of Assets 

	 Factors giving rise to any indication of impairment of the 
carrying amount of the Company’s assets are appraised at 
each Balance Sheet date to determine and provide/revert an 
impairment loss, if any. 

2.15	P rovisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

	 Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in 
measurement are recognized when there is present obligation 
as a result of past events and it is probable that there will 
be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not 
recognized but are disclosed by way of the notes. Contingent 
assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial 
statements.

2.16	E arning Per Share 

	 Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit 
or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after 
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 
is adjusted for events of preferential issue/ allotment of equity 
shares. For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per 
shares, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.

2.17	 Cash Flow Statement

	 The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method 
set out in Accounting Standard 3 on Cash Flow Statements 
and presents the cash flows by operating, investing and 
financing activities of the Company. Cash and cash equivalents 
presented in the Cash Flow Statement consist of cash on 
hand and demand deposits with banks.

2.18	 Investments:

	 Long term investments are carried at cost less provision for 
permanent diminution, if any, in value of such investments. 
Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair 
value.

2.19	G overnment Grants

	 Capital grants relating to specific fixed assets are reduced 
from the gross value of the Fixed Assets and those relating to 
revenue are netted from the related expenditure. Government 
grants are recognized when the right to receive is established.

2.20	M iscellaneous Expenditure

	 Miscellaneous Expenditure is debited fully in the year in which 
expenditure is incurred.

2.21	 Segment Reporting

	 Primary Segments are identified based on the nature of 
products and services, the different risks and returns and 
the internal business reporting system. Revenue, Expense, 
Assets and Liabilities, which relate to the Company as a whole 
and cannot be allocated to segments on a reasonable basis, 
are classified as unallocated.

	 Secondary segment is identified based on geography by 
location of customers i.e. in India and outside India.

	 Inter-segment revenue are accounted for based on the 
transaction price agreed to between the segments, which is 
primarily market based.

2.22	 Leases

	 (i) 	 Finance lease

			   Assets acquired under finance leases are recognized 
as an asset and a liability at the commencement of the 
lease, at the lower of the fair value of the assets and 
the present value of minimum lease payments. The 
finance expense is allocated to each period during the 
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate 
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Assets given under finance leases are recognized as 
receivables at an amount equal to the net investment in 
the lease and the finance income is based on a constant 
rate of return on the outstanding net investment.

	 (ii) 	 Operating lease

			   Leases other than finance lease, are operating leases, 
and the leased assets are not recognized on the 
Company’s Balance Sheet. Payments / rental income 
under operating leases are recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the lease

2.23	E xtraordinary and Exceptional Items

	 Income or expenses that arise from events or transactions 
that are clearly distinct from the ordinary activities of the 
Company are classified as extraordinary items. Specific 
disclosure of such events/transactions is made in the 
financial statements. Similarly, any external event beyond 
the control of the Company, significantly impacting income or 
expense, is also treated as extraordinary item and disclosed 
as such. On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence 
of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary 
activities of the Company, is such that its disclosure improves 
an understanding of the performance of the Company. Such 
income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and 
accordingly disclosed in the notes to accounts.
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(` in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2017

3. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized Share Capital:

6,40,00,000 Equity share of ` 10 each fully paid up 6,400

1,85,00,000 Non - Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 1,850
8,250

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up:

3,94,21,559 Equity share of ` 10 each fully paid up 3,942
TOTAL 3,942

3.1 The details of Shareholders' holding more than 5% shares:

As at 31st March, 2017

Name of the Shareholder No. of Shares % held

Sangam Business Credit Limited 59,82,812 15.18

Nidhi Mercantiles Limited 48,98,833 12.43

Mentor Capital Limited ( formerly known as Pacific Corporate Services Limited) 31,53,602 8.00

Hawamahal Finance Private Limited 23,35,500 5.92

Sangam Fincap Limited 22,16,145 5.62

TOTAL 1,26,04,080 47.15

3.2 The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:

Particulars As at 31st March, 2017

No. of Shares
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 3,94,21,559
Add: Shares Issued During the year  -  
Equity Shares at the end of the year 3,94,21,559

3.3 Rights, Preferences and Restrictions:

i) The Company has only one class of shares referred to as Equity Shares having par value of ` 10 Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled 
to one vote per share.

ii) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by 
the shareholders.

(` in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2017

4. RESERVES & SURPLUS
Capital Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet 297

Securities Premium Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet 5,868

Preference Share Capital Redemption Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet 1,178

General Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet 19,818

Add: Transferred from Profit & Loss Account 3,000

Closing Balance 22,818
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(` in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2017

4. RESERVES & SURPLUS (Contd.)
Profit & Loss Account

As per last Balance Sheet 12,822
Add: Profit for the year 5,269
Less: Appropriations
Transferred to General Reserve 3,000
Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares (Refer Note 4.1) -
Tax on Dividend -
Closing Balance 15,091
TOTAL 45,252

4.1 		P  roposed Dividend: Equity Share

		�  According to the revised AS 4 – Contingencies and events occurring after the balance sheet date as notified by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs through amendments to Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendments Rules, 2016 , the company has not accounted for 
proposed dividend ( including tax) as a liability for the year ended 31st March, 2017

		�  The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30th May, 2017 has recommended a dividend of ` 2/- per equity share for the year ended  
31st March, 2017 . The declaration and payment of dividend is subject to requisite approvals.

(` in Lakhs)

 Non - Current 
 Current 

Maturities 
As at 31st 

March, 2017
As at 31st 

March, 2017

5. LONG TERM BORROWINGS
(A) Secured

(a) Term Loans From Banks 

Rupee Loans 32,533 5,988

(b) Vehicle Loans From Banks 165 111

(c) Vehicle Loans From Others 13 25

TOTAL (A) 32,711 6,124

(B) Unsecured
Term Loans From Banks 

Foreign Currency Loans (Buyers Credit)  -   -  

TOTAL (B)  -   -  

TOTAL (A)+(B) 32,711 6,124

5.1	 	� All Term Loans from banks (including current maturities) except vehicle loan are secured by a joint equitable mortgage by deposit 
of title deeds in respect of all immovable properties and first hypothecation of the entire moveable properties of the Company , both 
present and future (save and except book debts) subject to prior charges created/to be created in favour of bankers for securing working 
capital borrowing, ranking pari-passu with the charges created/to be created in favour of other participating bankers. The above Term 
Loans are further secured by personal guarantee of two directors of the Company.

5.2		  Vehicle Loans (including current maturities) are secured by hypothecation of respective vehicle(s) and are repayable over the term of 	
	 the loan ranging from 2 to 7 years.

5.3		  Foreign Currency Loans (Buyers Credit) ` NIL obtained @ 0.46-0.85% p.a. was repayable over 90-91 days. The ultimate payment of the 	
	 above loan of ` 1,663 Lakhs is made from the term loans during the year.

5.4		  There is no default in repayment or interest of any loans on due dates.
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 Term Loan from Banks 
 As at 31st March, 2017 Repayments

5.5 Terms of Repayment :
(` in Lakhs)

No. of due 
Installments

Periodicity

1,463 12 - 16 Quarterly Equal
34,326 16 - 32 Quarterly Graded

2,732 34 Quarterly Graded

TOTAL 38,521

Less: Current Maturity 5,988
32,533

Note:	 Rate of Interest is Base Rate / MCLR + Spread of 0.15% to 2.25% on the above different term loans.

 Vehicle Loan from Banks 
 As at 31st March, 2017 Repayments

(` in Lakhs)
No. of due 

Installments
Periodicity

199 1 - 45 Monthly

77 83 Monthly

TOTAL 276

Less: Current Maturity 111
165

Note:  Rate of Interest is 8.51% to 11.00%

 Vehicle Loan from Others 
As at 31st March, 2017 Repayments

(` in Lakhs)
No. of due 

Installments
Periodicity

38 8 - 45 Monthly

Less: Current Maturity 25
13

Note: Rate of Interest is 7.01% to 10.50%

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017

6. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (Net)
A) Deferred Tax Liability

Related to fixed assets 5,601
TOTAL (A) 5,601

B) Deferred Tax Assets

Disallowance u/s 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 443
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 87
TOTAL (B) 530

C) Deferred Tax Liability (Net) (A-B) 5,071
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(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017

7. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Secured

Loans Repayable on Demand
From Banks (Rupee) 27,880
From Banks (Foreign Currency) 4,111
TOTAL 31,991

7.1		  Borrowings from Banks for working capital are secured by hypothecation of inventories and charge on book debts both present and 
future and second charge on all the immovable and movable fixed assets of the Company. The above borrowing are further secured by 
personal guarantee of two directors of the Company. There is no default in repayment or interest of any loans on due dates.

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017

8. TRADE PAYABLES
Dues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises (Refer Note No. 8.1)  -   
Dues to other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 10,223
TOTAL 10,223

8.1		D  ues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises:-

		  The Company has not received any intimation from its suppliers being registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 (MSME). Since the relevant information is not readily available, necessary disclosure required under MSME 
Act, 2006 can not be made. However, the Company generally makes payment to its suppliers within agreed credit period and thus the 
management is confident that the liability of interest under this Act, if any, would not be material.

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017

9. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturities of long term debt 6,124
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 2
Unpaid Dividends # 30
Creditors for Capital Expenditure 1,058
Security Deposit 504
Advance from Customers 341
Liability towards Staff and Workers 1,168
Commission Payable on Sales 1,186
Liablilities for Expenses 2,907
Income Tax Payable (Net)  -   
Statutory Dues 272
TOTAL 13,592

		  # 	 There is no overdue  amount to be credited to investor education & protection fund.

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017

10. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Provisions for Gratuity/ Leave Encashment (Refer Note No. 24.1) 718
Proposed Dividend on Equity Share -
Tax on Dividend -
TOTAL 718

Consolidated Notes  
on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017 (Contd.)
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(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017

12. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
(Long Term Investments)

(Valued at Cost)
Unquoted Non - Trade Investment
In Equity Shares -
Unquoted, fully paid up

Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid
Keti Sangam Infrastructure (India) Limited 581

580600 at premium of ` 90/- per share
PKSS Infrastructure Private Limited  -   
3900 at par

` 39000 
Kalyan Sangam Infratech Limited 4
37500 at par

Equity Shares of ` 20/- each fully paid
AP Mahesh Co-Operative Bank Limited  -   
50 at par

` 1000
TOTAL 585

Agreegate Amount of Unquoted Investments  585  585 
Agreegate Provision for diminution in value of Investments (Refer Note 12.1)  -    -   

12.1	 	 As per the management, The Investment in Keti Sangam is long term investment and has potential to give huge appreciation in future. 
The vehicular traffic is increasing day by day and the concession period is about 24 years. Further there is provision of hike in toll 
charges of 15% in every 3 years. Considering the potential of the project the banks have securitised the project from ` 225 Crores to  
` 313 Crores. Hence this investment is a long term valuable asset of the Company, Accordingly diminution is not provided.

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017

13. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured and Considered Good)
Capital Advances - Related Party 227
Capital Advances - Others 906
Security Deposit 593
Other Loans & Advances 20
Less : Provision for Doubtful Debts 20  -   
Prepaid Expenses 85
TOTAL 1,811

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017

14. INVENTORIES
Raw Materials 12,413
Stock-in-Process 6,252
Finished Goods 14,311
Traded Goods 26
Stores, Spares & Fuel 3,075
TOTAL 36,077

Consolidated Notes  
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(` in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2017

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Current)

(Unsecured and Considered Good)

Due over six months

Considered Good 4,563

Considered Doubtful 232

Other Trade Receivables (Refer Note No. 15.1) 20,935

25,730

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts 232

TOTAL 25,498

15.1		 Included in the above Receivables due from Companies / Firms in which directors are interested is ` 22 Lakhs

(` in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2017

16 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

Earmarked Balances # 29

Balance with Banks 508

Cash on Hand 27

Fixed Deposits with banks ## 5

TOTAL 569

		  # Balance with Banks against Unclaimed Dividend 

		  ## Fixed Deposits Earmarked with Banks including above 12 Months Maturities ` NIL 

		D  isclosure as required under Notification no. G.S.R. 308(E) dated  30th March, 2017 as per the enclosed sheet:

(Amount in `)

Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) Other Denomination Notes Total

Closing cash in hand as on 08th, 
November 2016 520500 1101359 1621859

(+) Permitted receipts  -   8732393 8732393

(-) Permitted payments 40000 8419895 8459895

(-) Amount deposited in Banks 480500 294670 775170

Closing cash in hand as on 30th, 
December 2016  -   1119187 1119187

16.1 		 (i)	 ` 4 Lakhs deposited directly by agent against Tax Payment in SBN Currency, which is not included in above.

16.1 		 (ii)	Opening & Closing Cash in Hand includes Employee Imprest A/C.

Consolidated Notes  
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(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017

17. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 
(Unsecured and Considered Good)
Balance with Central Excise Authorities 2,347
Advance tax, MAT Credit Receivables & TDS/Refund Receivable (Net) 1,248
Advance against Supplies / Expenses 3,113
Subsidy Receivable 974
Excise Rebate Claim Receivable 1,000
VAT / TED Receivable 477
Security Deposits 267
Prepaid Expenses 126
Advance to Employees 56
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind 33
TOTAL 9,641

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017

18. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured and Considered Good)
Interest Receivable - From Trade Debtors/ Others 95
DEPB, DBK Incentive Receivable 686
Export Growth Entitlement Receivables (Refer Note No.34) 408
Recoverable from Govt. / Others 99
Recoverable from NHAI UP (Refer Note No.32) 1,367
Insurance Claim Receivable 100
TOTAL 2,755

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17

19. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products/ Income from Services 1,62,786

1,62,786

Less: Excise Duty 3,673
TOTAL 1,59,113

(` in Lakhs)
19.1 Particulars of Sale of Products/Service 2016-17

Yarn 93,003
Fabrics 27,684
Denim Fabric 29,565
Readymade Garments 313
Seamless Garments 795
Waste 584
Job Charge 6,023
Electricity Income (Wind Power) 201
SHIS / IEIS Benefits  -   
Traded Goods - Yarn 1,470

Consolidated Notes  
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(` in Lakhs)
19.1 Particulars of Sale of Products/Service (contd.) 2016-17

Traded Goods - Fabric 3,078
Traded Goods - Readymade Garment 70
TOTAL 1,62,786

19.2		 During the year, exchange fluctuation gain on export sales included in sales is ` NIL 

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17

20. OTHER INCOME
Interest

From Trade Debtors 723
From Others 81
Other Non-Operating Income

Toll Arbitration Award (Refer Note No.32)  -   
Earlier Years Income (Export Growth Entitlement) (Refer Note No.34) 408
Miscellaneous Receipts 114
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain (Other than considered as finance cost) 1,000
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) 8
TOTAL 2,334

2016-17

21. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED  ` in Lakhs % of Consumption
Imported 2,199 2.43
Indigenous 88,477 97.57
TOTAL 90,676 100.00

(` in Lakhs)
21.1 Particulars of Material Consumed 2016-17

Man Made Fibre 51,665
Cotton 21,552
POY Yarn 2,871
Yarn 7,307
Fabrics 697
Dyes & Chemicals 6,462
Others 122
TOTAL 90,676

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17

22. Purchases of Traded Goods
Traded Goods – Yarn 1,437
Traded Goods – Fabric 3,041
Traded Goods – Readymade Garment 168
Traded Goods – Seamless Garment 11

4,657

Consolidated Notes  
on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017 (Contd.)

117

Sangam (India) Limited 31st Annual Report 2016-17



(` in Lakhs)
2016-17

23. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-PROCESS AND STOCK-
IN-TRADE

Inventories (at close)

Finished Goods 14,311

Stock-in-Process 6,252

20,563

Inventories (at commencement)

Finished Goods 11,325

Stock-in-Process 4,959

16,284

TOTAL (4,279)

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17

24. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries and Wages 14,771

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 1,125

Staff Welfare Expenses 128

TOTAL 16,024

24.1		 As per Accounting Standard 15 (Revised) “Employee benefits”, the disclosure as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below:-

		D  efined Benefit Plans

		  The following tables set out the details of amount recognized in the financial statements in respect of Employee benefit schemes.

(` in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars As at 31st March, 2017

 Gratuity 
 Leave 

Encashment 

I. Assumptions as at

Mortality
 IALM (2006-

08) Ult. 
 IALM (2006-

08) Ult. 

Discount Rate 7.44% 7.44%

Rate of increase in compensation 5.50% 5.50%

Rate of return (expected) on plan assets 8.15% 8.15%

Withdrawal rates
 Upto Age 30: 3% 31-44 2%  

45 & Above: 1% 

II. Changes in present value of obligations

PVO at beginning of period  1,123.22  345.94 

Interest cost  84.58  24.29 

Current Service Cost  297.32  235.35 

Benefits Paid (131.88) (84.89)
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on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017 (Contd.)

118

Sangam (India) Limited Corporate overview  II  Statutory section  II  Financial section



(` in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars As at 31st March, 2017

 Gratuity 
 Leave 

Encashment 

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation 34.22 (116.72)

PVO at end of period  1,407.46  403.97 

III. Changes in fair value of plan assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of period  776.18  224.89 

Adjustment to Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets  -    -   

Expected Return on Plan Assets  65.44  18.83 

Contributions 147.05 86.32

Benefit Paid (131.87) (84.89)

Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets (6.00) (1.60)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of period  850.80  243.55 

IV. Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of period  776.18  224.89 

Adjustment to Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets  -    -   

Actual Return on Plan Assets  59.44  17.23 

Contributions 147.05 86.32

Benefit Paid (131.87) (84.89)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of period  850.80  243.55 

Funded Status (556.67) (160.42)

Excess of actual over estimated return on Plan Assets (6.00) (1.60)

V. Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) Recognized

Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) for the period (Obligation) (34.22)  116.72 

Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) for the period (Plan Assets) (6.00) (1.60)

Total Gain/ (Loss) for the period (40.22)  115.11 

Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) recognized for the period (40.22) 115.11

Unrecognized Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) at end of period  -    -   

VI. Amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and statement of P&L A/c 

PVO at end of period  1,407.46  403.97 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of period  850.80  243.55 

Funded Status (556.67) (160.42)

Unrecognized Actuarial Gain/ (Loss)  -    -   

Net Asset/ (Liability) recognized in the balance sheet (556.67) (160.42)

VII. Expense recognized in the statement of P&L A/c

Current Service Cost  297.32  235.35 

Interest Cost  84.58  24.28 

Expected Return on Plan Assets (65.44) (18.84)

Net Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognized for the period 40.22 (115.11)

Expense recognized in the statement of P&L A/c 356.68 125.68

VIII. Movements in the Liability recognized in Balance Sheet

Consolidated Notes  
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(` in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars As at 31st March, 2017

 Gratuity 
 Leave 

Encashment 

Opening Net Liability  347.04  121.05 

Adjustment to Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets  -    -   

Expenses as above  356.68  125.68 

Contribution Paid (147.05) (86.32)

Closing Net Liability 556.67 160.42

IX. Experience Analysis - Liabilities

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss due to change in bases  83.91  23.09 

Experience (Gain)/ Loss due to Change in Experience (49.68) (139.81)

Total  34.22 (116.72)

Experience Analysis - Plan Assets

Experience (Gain)/ Loss due to Change in Plan Assets 6.00 1.60

X. Schedule III Details

Current Liability  556.67  160.42 

Non-Current Liability  850.80  243.55 

(` in Lakhs)

2016-17

25. POWER & FUEL

Power & Fuel 17,293

TOTAL 17,293

(` in Lakhs)

2016-17

26. FINANCE COSTS

Interest Expenses 6,007

Bank Charges 466

Applicable (Gain) / Loss on foreign currency transactions and translation (Net) (114)

TOTAL 6,359

(` in Lakhs)

2016-17

27. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Depreciation and Amortization 7,260

TOTAL 7,260
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(` in Lakhs)
2016-17

28. OTHER EXPENSES
A. Manufacturing Expenses

Stores & Spares Consumed 3,361
Packing Material Consumed 1,908
Processing and Other Job Charges 3,106
Repairs To: Plant & Machinery 410

 Building 85
 Others 42

Other Manufacturing Expenses 1,341
TOTAL (A) 10,253

B. Administrative Expenses

Rent 207
Rates & Taxes 41
Payments to Auditors : Statutory Audit Fees 13

Taxation Matters 9
Reimbursement of Expenses 2

Cost Audit Fees 1
Insurance Premium 144
Directors' Travelling 35
Travelling & Conveyance 341
Telephone & Postage 96
Directors' Remuneration 471
Printing & Stationery 47
Legal & Professional Fees 218
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 506
Director's Sitting Fees 8
Charity and Donations 13
Miscellaneous Expenses 181
Contribution towards CSR (Refer Note No.38) 81
TOTAL (B) 2,414

C. Selling and Distribution Expenses

Sales Incentive, Commission & Brokerage 1,832
Rebates & Claims 164
Design & Development Expenses 22
Freight, Octroi and Other Selling Expenses 2,684
TOTAL (C) 4,702

D. Other Expenses

Preliminary Expenses Written Off 3
3

TOTAL (A+B+C) 17,372

2016-17

28.1 Value of Stores & Spares Consumed:
(` in Lakhs)

 % of 
Consumption

Imported 370 11.01
Indigenous 2,991 88.99
TOTAL 3,361 100.00
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(` in Lakhs)
2016-17

28.2 Value of Imports on CIF Basis in Respect of

Raw Materials 1,856
Stores & Spares 512
Capital Goods 2,782

5,150

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17

28.3 Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Travelling Expenses 50
Other Expenses 781

831

2016-17

29. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
i) Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders (` 

in Lakhs) 5,269

ii) Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating EPS  3,94,21,559
iii) Basic and Diluted Earning per share (` ) 13.37
iv) Face Value per equity share (` ) 10

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17

30. EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE

FOB value of exports 41,920
41,920

31.		  The Company operates mainly in one segment i.e. Textiles. The Company is also having wind power plant, operation of which is not a 
reportable segment as per AS-17 issued by ICAI.

Secondary Segment Information : (` in Lakhs)
2016-17

Revenue

Domestic 1,20,369
Export 42,417
TOTAL 1,62,786

32.		  The Company had executed a toll user fee collection contract with NHAI for Usaka Toll Plaza in U.P. on N.H.25 which commenced on 
9th March, 2013. However due to breach of contract terms and conditions by NHAI, resulting in continued losses, the Company disputed 
and terminated the contract and went into arbitration. The losses incurred by the Company due to the said contract were fully provided 
in the earlier years. After due proceedings, the arbitrator has given award in favour of the Company during the F.Y. 2015-16. Accordingly, 
the principal amount of the award of ` 1247 Lakhs was recognized as income by the Company and included in other income during  
F.Y. 2015-16. NHAI has filed an appeal against the said Arbitration award in the Hon’ble Delhi High Court. On the basis of the arbitration 
award and legal counsel, the management is virtually certain that the matter will be decided in Company’s favour. The case is yet to be 
decided by the Hon’ble Delhi High Court.
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33.		  The Company is entitled to interest subsidy on certain term loans obtained under Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme (“TUFS”) of 
Central Government and Incentive from Rajasthan Govt. under Rajasthan Investment Promotion Policy (RIPS) 2003, which has been 
hitherto claimed as revenue instead of capital receipt while computing the total income, however based on the judicial decisions the 
same has been now been claimed as capital receipt by filing the revised return. The effect thereof on tax is shown as earlier years tax 
adjustments.

34.		  In the F.Y. 2010-11, the Company had written off ` 408 Lakhs export incentive receivable under the Target Plus Scheme related to 
F.Y. 2005-06 due to Notification dated 12th June, 2006 by which Govt. reduced the incentive from 15% to 5% on incremental exports 
with retrospective effect from 01.04.2005. Subsequently based on the Hon’ble High Court Judgement passed on dated 5th May, 2016 
with regard to Target Plus Scheme Scrips for the exports pertaining to the F.Y. 2005-06 where by the Hon’ble High Court has ordered 
that incentive can not be withdrawn with retrospective effect. the Company had filed its claim in view of the said Hon’ble High Court 
judgement, Based on this the Company is entitled to receive the differential incentive and have therefore accounted for the same in 
current Financial Year 2016-17. 

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

(i) Related Party Transactions

As per Accounting Standard (AS-18) on Related Party Disclosures issued by ICAI, the disclosures of related parties as defined in 
the Accounting Standard is given below:-

Enterprises over which Directors and Relatives of such 
personnel exercise significant influence

Group Companies

Sangam Business Credit Limited

Mahalaxmi TMT Private Limited

Raj Rajeshwar Enterprises Private Limited

Nikita Credits Private Limited

Fashion Funda.Com Private Limited

Key Management Personnel

Shri R.P. Soni Chairman

Shri S.N. Modani Managing Director & CEO

Shri V.K. Sodani Executive Director

Shri Anil Jain CFO & Company Secretary

Relative of Key Management Personnel Relationship

Smt. Radha Devi Wife of Director Shri R.P. Soni

Ms. Antima Soni Daughter of Director Shri R.P. Soni

Shri Anurag Soni Son of Director Shri R.P. Soni

Shri Pranal Modani Son of Director Shri S.N. Modani

Smt. Mamta Modani Wife of Director Shri S.N. Modani

Smt. Archana Sodani Wife of Director Shri V.K. Sodani

Smt. Anjana Thakur Daughter of Director Shri R.P. Soni

Others

Shri R.P. Soni HUF

M/S Badri Lal Soni Charitable Trust

M/S Kesar Bai Soni Charitable Trust
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35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES: (Contd.)

(ii) Transactions during the year with related parties:

(` in Lakhs)

Nature of Transaction Salary Exp. Insurance 
Premium Rent CSR Expenses Total

Key Management Personnel  503  9  -  -  512 
Relatives of Key Management 
Personnel  64  5  65  -  134 

Others  -  -  6  44  50 
TOTAL  567  14  71  44  696 

(` in Lakhs)
Sale of Goods / Job Charges / 
Interest Received

2017

Group Companies 1499

(` in Lakhs)
Purchase / Job Charges 2017

Group Companies 54

(` in Lakhs)
Purchase of Capital Goods 2017

Group Companies 140

(` in Lakhs)
Rent Received 2017

Group Companies 1

(` in Lakhs)
2016-17

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(I) Contingent Liabilities

(A) Guarantees
Outstanding Bank Guarantees 912

(B) Other Money for which the Company is contingently liable
(i) Liability in respect of bills discounted with Banks (including third party bills 

discounting)
154

(ii) Stamp Duty case with respect to the merger of SPBL & Sangam India Limited 
pending with Rajasthan High Court, Jodhpur.

109

(iii) Various cases pending with Central Excise & Service Tax (Net of amount fully 
provided)

318
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(` in Lakhs)
2016-17

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Contd.)

(iv) Case pending with Rajasthan High Court, Jodhpur under Electricity Act, 2003 20
(v) Entry Tax matters for the year 2013-14 and 2014-15 under dispute with regard to 

interest / penalty.
28

(vi) Sales Tax case pending with Tax Board, Ajmer. The Demand raised for input tax 
credit not reversed properly.

94

(vii) Sales Tax case pending with Tax Board, Ajmer. The demand raised for VAT with 
RIPS Incentive on export.

341

(viii) Sales Tax case pending with D.C. (Appeals). The demand raised due to sales tax 
incentive benefit calculation procedure. 35

(ix) Sales Tax case pending with D.C. (Appeals) for penalty levied for non-furnishing 
form VAT 47A 6

(x) Disputes on the various tolls for which company is contingently liable 243
(II) Commitments

(A) Estimated amount of contracts (Net of advances) remaining to be executed on capital account 
and not provided for 2,816

(B) Obligations

In respect of capital goods imported at the concessional rate of duty under the Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme, 
the Company has an export obligation of approximately ` 11,795 Lakhs, which is required to be met at different dates, before 
31st March, 2023. In the event of non-fulfillment of the export obligation, the Company will be liable to pay custom duties and 
penalties, as applicable. 

37. FINANCIAL AND DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Financial and Derivative Instruments (For Hedging Currency Risks) and Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure.
a) Forward contract outstanding as at Balance Sheet Date.

Particulars  Currency 2017 Purpose
Forward Exchange Contract  USD 234.69 Lakhs Export
Forward Exchange Contract  Euro 15.00 Lakhs Export

 INR  16,265 Lakhs

		  There is no derivative contract for option which is outstanding as at 31st March, 2017.

b) Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure:-

Purpose  Currency 2017

Import (Raw Materials) (USD)  USD  2.66 Lakhs 
Fixed Assets (JPY)  JPY  854.76 Lakhs 
Fixed Assets (Euro)  Euro  2.37 Lakhs 

 INR  837 Lakhs

38. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

a) ‘The gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as per 
provision of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 amounts to ` 162 Lakhs.

b) The details of the amount spent during the year on CSR activities as follow:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Expenditure 
incurred in 

cash

Yet to be paid 
in Cash

31st March, 2017

Construction / acquisition of any asset  -    -   
On purposes other than (i) above 81  -   
Total 81  -   
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(c)		  Out of the above ` 23 Lakhs has been spent through M/s Badri Lal Soni Charitable Trust and ` 21 Lakhs has been spent through M/s 
Kesar Bai Soni Charitable Trust, which are related parties. 

		  Breakup of the expenditure incurred through the trust during the year is as under:

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2017
Environmental Sustainability 22
Promoting Education 1
Promoting Health Care 17
Eradication Hunger, Poverty and Malnutrition 4
Total 44

(d)		  Provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 related to CSR is not applicable to Sangam Lifestyle Ventures Limited.

39.		  In the opinion of Management, there is no impairment of assets in accordance with accounting standard (AS-28) as on Balance Sheet 
date.

40.		  Sangam Lifestyle Ventures Limited became a wholly owned subsidiary company w.e.f. 14th June, 2016 on its incorporation. Hence 
previous year figures are not given in consolidation in accordance with Para 30 of AS-21.

41.		  General Information:

41.1		 Disclosures mandated by Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013, by way of additional information:

Net Assets i.e. Total Assets 
minus Total Liabilities Share in Profit / (Loss)

Name of the Entities As a % of 
Consolidated 

Net Assets

Amount (` in 
Lakhs)

As a % of 
Consolidated 

Profit

Amount (` in 
Lakhs)

Parent : Sangam India Limited 100.40% 48,436 103.62% 5,460
Subsidiary : Sangam Lifestyle Ventures Limted (0.12%) (58) (1.20%) (63)
Sub Total 48,378 5,397

Inter - Company Elimination & Consolidation Adjustments (0.28%) (133) (2.42%) (128)
Grand Total 100.00% 48,245 100.00% 5,269

41.2		 The Consolidated Financial Statements present the Consolidated Accounts of Sangam India Limited with its Subsidiary Company:

Name Country of 
Incorporation

Proportion of 
Ownership of 

Interest
As at31st 

March, 2017

Sangam Lifestyle Ventures Limited India 100%

41.3		� Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to these Consolidated Financial Statements are intended to serve as a means of informative 
disclosure and a guide to better understand the consolidated position of the Companies. Recognizing this purpose, the Company has 
disclosed only such Policies and Notes from the individual financial statements, which fairly present the needed disclosures.

As per our report of even date attached
For R. Kabra & Co. For B.L. Chordia & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 104502W) (Registration No. 000294C)

(R.L. Kabra) (B.L. Chordia) (R.P. Soni) (S.N. Modani) (V.K. Sodani)
Partner Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO Executive Director
M.Ship No. 016216 M.Ship No. 010882 (DIN 00401439) (DIN 00401498) (DIN 00403740)

Camp : Bhilwara Place : Bhilwara (Anil Jain)
Date: 30th May, 2017 Date: 30th May, 2017 CFO & Company Secretary 

(M No.: F-3147)
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(` in Lakhs)
Current Year

A Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit Before Tax 6,040

Adjustments for
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 7,260
Finance Costs 6,359
Interest Income (804)
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (1,000)
Provision for Doubtful Debts & Advances 45
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) (8)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 17,892

Adjustment for
Inventories (6,628)
Trade & Other Receivables (810)
Trade & Other Payables 3,195
Cash Generated from Operations 13,649
Taxes Paid (95)
Net Cash Inflow / (Out Flow) from Operating Activities 13,744

B Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets (14,003)
Sale of Fixed Assets 109
Interest Income 107
Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) from Investing Activities (13,787)

C Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 12,275
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (8,176)
Increased / Decreased in Short- Term Borrowings 1,841
Finance Costs (6,410)
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 1,000
Interest Income 693
Dividend Paid (Including Tax on Dividend) (945)
Net Cash Inflow / (Out Flow) from Financing Activities 278

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents 235
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning 361
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End 596

As per our report of even date attached
For R. Kabra & Co. For B.L. Chordia & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 104502W) (Registration No. 000294C)

(R.L. Kabra) (B.L. Chordia) (R.P. Soni) (S.N. Modani) (V.K. Sodani)
Partner Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO Executive Director
M.Ship No. 016216 M.Ship No. 010882 (DIN 00401439) (DIN 00401498) (DIN 00403740)

Camp : Bhilwara Place : Bhilwara (Anil Jain)
Date: 30th May, 2017 Date: 30th May, 2017 CFO & Company Secretary 

(M No.: F-3147)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017
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Notice To the Members,

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 31ST ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF SANGAM (INDIA) LIMITED WILL 
BE HELD ON FRIDAY, THE 29TH SEPTEMBER, 2017 AT 4:00 P.M., 
AT REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT “SANGAM HOUSE”, 
ATUN, CHITTORGARH ROAD, BHILWARA-311001 (RAJASTHAN) TO 
TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

A.	 ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. 	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 
Statements (including the consolidated financial statements) 
of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2017 and Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors 
thereon.

2.	 To declare Dividend for the financial year 2016-17.

3. 	 To appoint a Director in place of Shri S.N. Modani (DIN: 
00401498), who retires by rotation and being eligible offer 
himself for re-appointment.

4. 	 To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company and to consider 
and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 139, 142 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to the 
recommendation of Audit Committee of the Company and 
Board of Directors of the Company, M/s Rajendra & Co.  
(FRN: 108355W) and M/s O.P. Dad & Co. (FRN: 002330C) 
be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company for a period of 5 years to hold the office from the 
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion 
of 36th Annual General Meeting (subject to ratification of 
their appointment by the members at every Annual General 
Meeting held after this Annual General Meeting) in place 
of the retiring statutory auditors M/s R. Kabra & Company, 
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 104502W) and M/s B.L. Chordia 
& Company Chartered Accountants (FRN: 000294C), on such 
remuneration as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors of 
the Company.”

B.	 SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification, the following Resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 
197, 198, 203, and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the 
time being in force) read with schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and provisions of Article of Association of the 
Company and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, consent of members of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Shri V.K. Sodani  
(DIN:00403740) as Whole Time Director designated as 
Executive Director of the Company for a period of 5 years 
with effective from 1st October, 2017 to 30th September 2022 
upon such terms and conditions including remuneration 
and perquisites as are set out in the draft agreement to be 
executed between the Company and Shri V.K. Sodani.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy 
of profits in any financial year during the aforesaid period, 
the Company shall pay Shri V.K. Sodani, remuneration, 
perquisites, benefits and amenities not exceeding the ceiling 
laid down in Schedule V and Section 197 of the Act as may 
be decided by the Board, subject to necessary sanctions and 
approvals.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any relaxation 
in the guidelines or limits on managerial remuneration, 
the Board of the Company (hereinafter called “the Board”) 
may in its absolute discretion alter and vary the terms of 
remuneration of Shri V.K. Sodani within the limits permissible 
under the law for the time being.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and execute 
all such documents, instruments and writings as may be 
required and to delegate all or any of its powers herein 
conferred to any Committee of Members to give effect to the 
aforesaid resolution.”

6.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification, the following Resolution as an Special 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 188 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 15 of Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, and other 
applicable statutory provisions, rules, regulations and 
guidelines (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), and subject to 
such approvals as may be required, approval of the members 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the revision in 
the terms of remuneration of Shri Anurag Soni, Son of Shri 
Ram Pal Soni, Chairman (DIN: 00401439) of the Company, to 
hold an office or place of Profit as Chief Business Strategist 
(or any other designation and roles which the Board/
Committee of the Board may decide from time to time) on 
such remuneration, increments and positions and other 
terms and conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement 
attached to the Notice with effect from 01st October, 2017.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and execute 
all such documents, instruments and writings as may be 
required and to delegate all or any of its powers herein 
conferred to any Committee of Members to give effect to the 
aforesaid resolution.”
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7.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification, the following Resolution as an Special 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 188 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 15 of Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, and other 
applicable statutory provisions, rules, regulations and 
guidelines (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), and subject to 
such approvals as may be required, approval of the members 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment 
of Mr. Pranal Modani, son of Shri S.N. Modani, CEO & 
Managing Director (DIN: 00401498) of the Company, to hold 
an office or place of profit as Chief Business Development (or 
any other designation and roles which the Board/Committee 
of the Board may decide from time to time), on such 
remuneration, increments and other terms and conditions 
as specified in the relevant explanatory statement annexed to 
the notice of this meeting with effect from 01st October, 2017.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and execute 
all such documents, instruments and writings as may be 
required and to delegate all or any of its powers herein 
conferred to any Committee of Members to give effect to the 
aforesaid resolution.”

8.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification, the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force) and the following Firms 
of Cost Accountants appointed by the Board of Directors of 
the Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the 
various units of the Company for the financial year ending 
31st March, 2018 be paid the remuneration as set out in the 
statement annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting:

	 a.		 M/s K.G. Goyal & Co., Cost Accountant (Firm 
Registration No. 000017), Jaipur, to conduct the audit 
of the cost records of Company’s units (i) SANGAM 
(INDIA), Bhilwara (ii) Sangam Spinners, Vill. Billiya 
Kalan, Dist. Bhilwara (unit of- Sangam (India) Limited) 
(iii) Sangam Spinners, Vill. Sareri, Dist. Bhilwara (unit 
of - Sangam (India) Limited) (iv) Sangam Suitings, Vill. 
Atun, Dist. Bhilwara (unit of - Sangam (India) Limited) 
(v) Sangam Denim, Vill. Billiya, Dist. Bhilwara (unit of- 
Sangam (India) Limited)

	 b.		 M/s V.K. Goyal & Co., Cost Accountant (Firm Registration 
No. 000550), Bhilwara to conduct the audit of the cost 
records of Company’s unit Sangam Process (Unit of 
Sangam (India) Limited), Outside Octroi Post, Atun, 
Bhilwara.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/ or 
the Company Secretary, be and are hereby authorized to 
settle any question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving 
effect to this resolution and to do all such acts, deeds and 
things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the 
purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sangam (India) Limited

Anil Jain
Place: Bhilwara (CFO & Company Secretary)
Date: 16th August, 2017 M.No. F-3147

Notice (Contd.)
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1.	 The explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in respect of the business 
under Item No. 5 to 8 set out above and details as required 
under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial 
Standard on General Meeting issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India in respect of Directors seeking 
re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting are annexed 
hereto.

2.	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is 
entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on a poll 
instead of himself and such proxy need not be a member of 
the Company. Pursuant to Section 105 of the Act, a person 
can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty 
(50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the 
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights 
may appoint a single person and such person cannot act as 
a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

	 The instrument of proxy, in order to be effective, should be 
duly stamped, completed and signed and must be deposited 
at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 
hours before the time for holding the aforesaid meeting.

3.	 Corporate members intending to send their authorized 
representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send 
to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution 
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their 
behalf at this Meeting.

4.	 The Company’s Register of members and share transfer 
books shall remain closed from Saturday the 23rd September, 
2017 to Friday the 29th September, 2017 (both days inclusive) 
to decide the entitlement of shareholders for the payment 
of dividend in accordance with the recommendation of the 
Board of Directors.

5.	 Members are requested to:

	 a.		� Notify the change in address if any, with Pin Code 
numbers immediately to the Company (in case of 
shares held in physical mode).

	 b.		� Quote their Regd. Folio Number/DP and Client ID Nos. 
in all their correspondence with the Company or its 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (“RTA”). 

6.	 Members are requested to address all their correspondence 
including demat/remat applications, request for share 
transfers, intimation of change of address and other 
correspondence to the Company’s RTA.

7.	 During the period beginning 24 hrs. before the time fixed 
for the commencement of the AGM and until the conclusion 
of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the 
proxies lodged during the business hours of the Company, 
provided that not less than three days of notice in writing is 
given to the Company.

8.	 Members/proxies/authorized representatives should bring 
the duly filled attendance slip enclosed herewith to attend the 
meeting. 

9.	 The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) and their shareholding and Register of Contracts or 
Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained 
under Sections 170 and 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 
respectively will be available for inspection by the members 
at AGM.

10. 	 All documents referred to in the accompanying notice are 
open for inspection at the registered office of the Company in 
all working days except Saturday and holidays, between 11.00 
A.M. to 1.00 P.M. up to the date of Annual General Meeting.

11.	 The dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors for 
the year ended 31st March, 2017, if declared at the meeting 
will be paid after 29th September, 2017 to those members:-

	 a.		 Whose names appear as the beneficial owners at the 
end of the business hours on Friday, 22nd September, 
2017 in the list of beneficial owners to be furnished by 
depositories (NSDL & CDSL) in respect of the shares 
held in electronics form; and

	 b.		 Whose names appear as members on the Company’s 
register of members on Friday, 22nd September, 2017 
after giving effect to valid transfer requests, received on 
or before Friday, 22nd September, 2017. 

12.	 Investors holding the shares in physical form should provide 
the National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS) mandate to 
the Company and investors holding the shares in demat form 
should ensure that correct and updated particulars of their 
bank account are available with the Depository Participant 
(DP). This would facilitate in receiving direct credits of 
dividends, refunds etc., from companies and avoid postal 
delays and loss in transit. Investors must update their new 
bank account numbers allotted after implementation of Core 
Banking Solution (CBS) to the Company in case of shares 
held in physical form and to the DP in case of shares held in 
demat form.

13. 	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(5) of the Act, the 
amount of dividend which have remained un-encashed or 
unclaimed for a period of seven years are required to be 
transferred to the “Investor Education and Protection Fund” 
(IEPF) constituted by the Central Government under section 
125(1) of the Act. Therefore, shareholders who have not 
encashed their dividend for the financial year 2009-10 to 2015-
16 should lodge their request for the same to the Company. 
The new Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Amendment 
Rules, 2017 (the “IEPF Rules”) mandate the companies to 
transfer the shares of shareholders whose dividends remain 
unpaid/unclaimed for a period of seven consecutive years 
to the demat account of Investor Education and Protection 

Notes:
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Notes: (Contd.)
Fund Authority of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“IEPF 
Authority”). In accordance with the aforesaid IEPF Rules, 
the Company has sent notices to all the shareholders whose 
shares are due to be transferred to the IEPF Authority and 
has also published newspaper advertisement. Hence, the 
Company urges all the shareholders to en-cash /claim 
their respective dividend during the prescribed period. 
The details of the unpaid / unclaimed amounts lying with  
the Company as on the date of the last Annual General Meeting,  
i.e., 30th September, 2016 are available on the website of  
the Company www.sangamgroup.com.

14. 	 As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, facility for 
making nomination is available for the members in respect of 
the shares held by them. Members holding shares in single 
name and who have not yet registered their nomination are 
requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-
13, if member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and 
record fresh nomination, he/she may submit the same Form 
No. SH-14. Members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to submit the forms to the Company.

15.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has 
mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members 
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to 
submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom 
they are maintaining their Demat Accounts. Members holding 
shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to  
the Company along with the proof thereof.

16.	 Electronic copy of the Annual Report for the financial year 
2016-17 is being sent to all the members, whose email IDs 
are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) 
for communication purposes unless any member has 
requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who 
have not registered their email address, physical copies of 
the Annual Report for the financial year 2016-17 is being sent 
in the permitted mode.

17.	 To support the “Green Initiative” Members who have not 
registered their e-mail addresses are required to register the 
same with the Company/Depository. Members may note that 
this Notice and the Annual Report 2016-17 will also be available 
on the Company’s website viz. www.sangamgroup.com.

18.	 Voting Options

	 Voting through electronic means:

	 (I)		 In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as 
amended by the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and regulation 
44 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015, the Company is pleased to provide 
members facility to exercise their right to vote on 
resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the 
business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. 
The facility of casting the votes by the members using 
an electronic voting system from a place other than 
venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided 
by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

	 (II)	 The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be 
made available at the AGM and the members attending 
the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote 
e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the 
meeting through ballot paper.

	 (III)	 The members who have cast their vote by remote 
e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but 
shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

	 (IV)	 The instructions for members for voting electronically 
are as under:-

			   (i)	� The voting period begins on Monday, the 
25th September, 2017 (9:00 am) and  ends 
on Thursday, the 28th September, 2017 (5:00 
pm). During this period shareholders’ of  
the Company, holding shares either in physical 
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off 
date Friday, the 22nd September, 2017 may cast 
their vote electronically. The e-voting module 
shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

			   (ii)	 Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.
com during the evoting period.

			   (iii)	 Click on “Shareholders” tab

			   (iv)	� Now, Select the “COMPANY NAME” from the drop 
down menu and click on “SUBMIT”.

			   (v)	 Now Enter your User ID 

				    a.	 For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

				    b.	 For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 
Digits Client ID,

				    c.	 Members holding shares in Physical Form 
should enter Folio Number registered with 
the Company.

			   (vi)	� Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and 
Click on Login.

			   (vii)	� If you are holding shares in demat form and had 
logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted 
on an earlier voting of any company, then your 
existing password is to be used.
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Notes: (Contd.)
(viii)	 If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by 
Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat 
shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

•	 Members who have not updated their PAN 
with the Company/Depository Participant 
are requested to use the first two letters of 
their name and the 8 digits of the sequence 
number (refer serial no. printed on the name 
and address sticker/Postal Ballot Form/mail) 
in the PAN field.

•	 	In case the sequence number is less than 
8 digits enter the applicable number of 
0’s before the number after the first two 
characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. 
E.g. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with 
serial number 1 then enter RA00000001 in 
the PAN field.

Dividend 
Bank Details

 OR Date of 
Birth (DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth 
(in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat 
account or in the Company records in order to 
login.

•	 If both the details are not recorded with the 
depository or company please enter the 
member id / folio number in the Dividend 
Bank details field as mentioned in instruction 
(v).

(ix)	 After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” 
tab.

(x)	 Members holding shares in physical form will then reach 
directly the Company selection screen. However, members 
holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password 
Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily 
enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly 
note that this password is to be also used by the demat 
holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on 
which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for 
e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended 
not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(xi)	 For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can 
be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this 
Notice.

(xii)	 Click on the EVSN for the relevant SANGAM (INDIA) LIMITED 
on which you choose to vote.

(xiii)	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” 
and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select 
the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that 
you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you 
dissent to the Resolution.

(xiv)	 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view 
the entire Resolution details.

(xv)	 After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, 
click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you 
wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your 
vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi)	 Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not 
be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvii)	 You can also take out print of the voting done by you by 
clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xviii)	If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password 
then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and 
click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by 
the system.

(xix)	 Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app 
m-Voting available for android based mobiles. The m-Voting 
app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and 
Windows phone users can download the app from the App 
Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively on or after 
30th June, 2016. Please follow the instructions as prompted by 
the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

(xx) 	 Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

•	 	� Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, 
HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on 
to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as 
Corporates.

•	 	� A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the 
stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

•	 	� After receiving the login details a Compliance User 
should be created using the admin login and password. 
The Compliance User would be able to link the 
account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

•	 	� The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed 
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of 
the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

•	 	� A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of 
Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the 
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in 
the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xxi)	 In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, 
you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and 
e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under 
help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com. or you may contact Mr. Anil Jain, CFO & Company 
Secretary, Sangam (India) Ltd. at 01482-305028 or at email 
ID - secretarial@sangamgroup.com,

(xxii)	 Please follow all steps from sl. no. (i) to sl. no. (xix) above to 
cast vote.
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(V)	 A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising 
his right to vote through remote e-voting but shall not be 
allowed to vote again at the AGM.

(VI)	 The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their 
shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company as 
on the cut-off date of 22nd September, 2017

(VII)	 A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members 
or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the 
depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to 
avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the 
AGM through ballot paper.

(VIII)	 Mr. S.P. Jethlia, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership 
No. FCS-3464) and Proprietor of M/s. S.P. Jethlia & 
Co., Company Secretaries has been appointed for as 
the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of  
the Company to scrutinize the polling at Annual General 
Meeting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent 
manner.

(IX)	 The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on 
the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting with 
the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of Ballot Paper for all 
those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast 
their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

(X)	 The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the 
general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the meeting 
and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote 
e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in 
the employment of the Company and shall make, not later 
than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated 
scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, 
if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in 
writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the 
result of the voting forthwith.

(XI)	 The Results declared along with the report of the 
Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company 
www.sangamgroup.com and on the website of CDSL 
immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman 
or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall 
also be immediately forwarded to the Stock Exchange(s) 
where equity shares of the Company are listed.

Notes: (Contd.)

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item no. 5:

Shri V.K. Sodani was re-appointed as Whole-time Director 
designated as Executive Director of the Company for a period of five 
years w.e.f. 01.10.2012 on the remuneration including perquisites 
set out in the resolution passed at the 26th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company held on 28th. September, 2012.

On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of the Board, the Board of Directors of the Company 
has resolved in it meeting dated 16th August, 2017 to re-appoint 
Shri V.K. Sodani as Whole-time Director designated as Executive 
Director of the Company for a period of five years effective from 
1st October, 2017 upon the terms and conditions which are set 
out in the draft agreement. By the proposed resolution, approval 
of the shareholders is sought to the appointment of Shri V.K. 
Sodani as Whole-time Director designated as Executive Director 
of the Company for a term of 5 years from 1st October, 2017 at 
the remuneration and upon the terms and conditions set out in the 
agreement.

Shri V.K. Sodani, Executive Director of Sangam (India) Limited 
is responsible for managing business of P/V Suiting, Seamless 
Garment, manufacturing with Domestic & Overseas marketing. He 
initially joined the Company to take charge of the Home furnishing 
& Dress Material business of Sangam Group.

In the year 2006, he was assigned additional charge of Sangam 
Processors to manage the Processing Division. As his career graph 
grew in Sangam, in the year 2006 he was handed over the charge of 
P/V Suiting Business of Domestic Marketing and within two years, 

he was also handling P/V Suiting Business of Overseas Marketing.

Thus, with time his profile and key areas of responsibilities 
increased. He moved from the processing business to marketing 
which has enabled him to have in-depth knowledge about  
the Company and its operations.

As for his educational qualifications, he is a B.Com graduate 
and has completed his Chartered Accountancy. Apart from his 
professional expertise, he has been also the President of Mewar 
Chamber of Commerce & Industry. He is member of All India 
Maheshwari Mahasabha, Trustee of Smt. Kesarbai soni Hospital 
and Member of Pushkar Seva Sadan, Pushkar. 

The remuneration payable to Shri V.K. Sodani as recommended 
by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board of 
Directors of the Company in pursuance to the Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 is as under:

The principal terms of the said agreement are as follows: -

1.	 SALARY PER MONTH:

	 ` 3,00,000 per month with an annual increase of 10% 
thereafter.

2.	 COMMISSION:

	 Not more than 0.25% of the net profits of the Company as 
computed in the manner laid down in Section 197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013

3.	 CONTRIBUTION TO PROVIDENT FUND

	 12% of Salary per month.
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4.	 PERQUISITES AS MENTIONED BELOW:

	 a.		 Suitable residential accommodation, free of cost with 
all facilities, amenities and services (including gas, 
electricity, water and furnishing). In case he does not 
opt for company provided accommodation at any time, 
he shall be paid house rent allowance of a sum not 
exceeding 25% of his basic salary. The expenditure 
incurred by the Company on gas, electricity, water and 
furnishings provided to him shall be evaluated as per 
the Income-tax Rules, 1962.

	 b.		 Reimbursement of all medical expenses incurred, 
including premium paid on health insurance policies, 
whether in India or abroad, for self and family including 
hospitalization.

	 c.		 Personal accident insurance premium.

	 d.		 Subscription to clubs.

	 e.		 Encashment of leave at the end of his tenure as per 
policy of the Company.

	 f.		  Contribution to provided fund, superannuation fund or 
annuity fund and any other retirement benefits.

	 g.		 Gratuity payable should not exceed half month’s salary 
of each completed year of the service.

	 h.		 Leave travel concession for self and family once in a 
year anywhere, as per company’s policy.

	 i.		  Such other perquisites and allowances in accordance 
with the rules of the Company or as may be agreed to 
by the Board of Directors and Shri V.K. Sodani.

MINIMUM REMUNERATION:

Wherein any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits 
are inadequate, the Company may pay Shri V.K. Sodani, above 
remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and other allowances 
subject to the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, if any.

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY:

Shri V.K. Sodani, Executive Director has been entrusted with 
substantial powers of managing the affairs of the weaving, 
processing and seamless garment divisions of the Company and 
to supervise and administer overall working thereat and other 
responsibility as may be delegated to him by the Board from time 
to time.

MEMORANDUM OF INTEREST OF DIRECTORS:

Apart from Shri V.K. Sodani, Shri R.P. Soni may be deemed to be 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. Shri V.K. Sodani is 
son in law of Shri R.P. Soni, Director of the Company.

None of the other Directors of the Company is in any way concerned 
or interested in the said resolution.

There is one listed entity in which he is holding directorship on the 
board. He has no shareholding in the Company.

The foregoing may be treated as an abstract of the draft agreement 
for the re-appointment of Shri V.K. Sodani as required under 
section 190 of the companies Act, 2013.

Item no. 6:

The Company had appointed Shri Anurag Soni as Chief Business 
Strategist with effect from 1st April, 2012 in the Company. The 
role encompasses areas of business integration and establishing 
information and business related systems.

Shri Anurag Soni is a well-qualified by profession and has adequate 
experience of process of system integration practices, establishing 
Management Information Systems, establishing IT and database 
infrastructures, strategic planning, business restructuring, 
resources raising and investor relations.

Taking into consideration the increased business activities of 
the Company and the increased responsibilities cast on Shri 
Anurag Soni and subject to necessary approval by the Members 
in the General Meeting, on recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors has revised/
amended the following terms in the remuneration of Shri Anurag 
Soni as Chief Business Strategist.

The appointment would be on the following broad remuneration, 
terms and conditions: 

(a) 	 ` 2,65,000/- per month with authority to the Board of Director 
of the Company to give increment from time to time, such 
that the total increments in one financial year does not 
exceed 10% of the basic salary.

(b)	  Perquisites & Allowances:

	 In addition to Basic Salary, a basket of allowances/ perquisites 
upto 60% of each years basic salary which will also include 
HRA, variable pay/performance linked incentives, Company 
Car, pension insurance, life insurance, insurance guaranteed 
income, personal accident insurance and any other 
allowances, perquisites or reimbursements in terms of the 
rules of the Employer Company or as may be agreed to, by the 
Managing Director of the Employer Company.

	 For the purpose of calculating the above ceilings, perquisites 
and allowances shall be evaluated in accordance with 
valuation principles adopted by the Employer Company for 
Income-tax purposes or reasonable estimates with respect to 
personal use, as applicable.

	 The above remuneration may be varied from time to time by 
the Employer Company as it may, at its discretion, deem fit, but 
shall always remain within the limits specified above.

	 The information as required in accordance with Rule 15 of 
Companies (Meetings of Board & its Powers) Rules, 2014, as 
well as pursuant to Section 102 of the Act is as under:

(a)	 Name of the related party: Mr. Anurag Soni;

(b)	 Name of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel who is 
related: Shri Ram Pal Soni, Chairman of the Company; 
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By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sangam (India) Limited

Anil Jain
Place: Bhilwara (CFO & Company Secretary)
Date: 16th August, 2017 M.No. F-3147

(c)	 Nature of relationship: Mr. Anurag Soni is Son of Shri Ram Pal 
Soni Chairman of the Company. 

(d)	 Nature, material terms, monetary value and particulars of the 
contract or arrangement:

Shri Anurag Soni has been appointed as Chief Business Strategist of 
the Company on remuneration and terms & conditions as embodied 
in the resolution given in item no. 6 and his remuneration is proposed 
to be revised annually as per terms set out in the said.

Item no. 7:

Shri Pranal Modani was appointed as “Chief Business Development” 
in the Company with effect from 01st November, 2014 to look after 
the operations and marketing of seamless division.

Shri Pranal Modani did his Masters in Management from London 
Business School and his engineering from Georgia Institute of 
Technology, Atlanta, USA. He did a minor in Economics along with his 
engineering and was selected to do a 6-week research program at 
Oxford University, UK. He held several leadership positions during his 
time in college in the Family Business Club, Investments committee 
and Entrepreneurship society. He is actively involved in Community 
service projects and was awarded a certificate of appreciation from 
Nelson Mandela for a water harvesting project done in Thailand. 
He has a keen interest in sports and represented London Business 
School in Squash at the MBAT tournament held in HEC, Paris.

Taking into consideration the increase business activities of the 
Company and the increased responsibilities cast on Shri Pranal 
Modani and subject to necessary approval by the members in 
the General Meeting, on recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, the Board has amended the following 
terms in the remuneration of Shri Pranal Modani w.e.f 01st October, 
2017. 

The appointment would be on the following remuneration, terms and 
conditions: 

1.	 Salary Per Month:

	 ` 2,00,000/- per month with annual increase of 10% of the 
basic salary thereafter

2.	 House Rent Allowance 

	 25% of Salary

3.	 Contribution to Provident Fund

	 12% of Salary per month

He is presently heading the Sangam group initiatives to expand their 
international and domestic presence through strategic alliances and 
partnerships with a key focus on a more consumer centric approach. 
In line with that, he is heading Sangam’s first retail venture “C9”, an 
aspirational brand for women’s clothing. 

Shri Pranal Modani is a related party within the definition of Section 
2(76) of the Companies Act 2013. Pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 188 of the Act, read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings 
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, appointment of any related 

party to any office or place of profit in the Company, its subsidiary 
company or associate company requires prior approval by way of 
special resolution of the Company. Hence; approval of members 
is sought for his appointment in and payment of remuneration to 
him by the Company as proposed in the resolution under this item 
of business.

The information as required in accordance with Rule 15 of Companies 
(Meetings of Board & its Powers) Rules, 2014, as well as pursuant to 
Section 102 of the Act is as under:

(a)	 Name of the related party: Shri Pranal Modani;

(b)	 Name of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel who 
is related: Shri S.N. Modani, CEO & Managing Director of  
the Company; 

(c)	 Nature of relationship: Shri Pranal Modani is Son of Shri S.N. 
Modani CEO & Managing Director of the Company.

(d)	 Nature, material terms, monetary value and particulars of the 
contract or arrangement:

Shri Pranal Modani has been appointed as Chief Business 
Development of the Company on remuneration and terms & 
conditions as embodied in the resolution given in item no. 7 and his 
remuneration is proposed to be revised annually as per terms set 
out in the said.

Item no. 8:

The Board on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has 
approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s K.G. Goyal & 
Co, Cost Accountants, Jaipur (Firm Registration No. 000017) and 
M/s V.K. Goyal & Co., Cost Accountants, Bhilwara (Firm Registration 
No. 000550), as Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit 
of cost records of the Company’s various units respectively for the 
financial year 2017-18 at a fee of ` 80,000/- to M/s K.G. Goyal & Co 
and ` 30,000/- to M/s V.K. Goyal & Co. subject to TDS, GST etc., as 
applicable, apart from out of pocket expenses, as remuneration for 
cost audit services for the financial year 2017-18.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors have to be ratified by 
the shareholders of the Company Hence, the Members’ approval is 
being sought by way of Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise 
in the resolution.
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PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 (3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015, 
INFORMATION ABOUT THE DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE APPOINTED / RE-APPOINTED IS FURNISHED BELOW:

Name of Directors Shri S.N. Modani Shri. V.K. Sodani
DIN No. 00401498 00403740
Date of Appointment 1st October, 2014 1st October, 2012
Qualification MBA, Masters in Science (M.Sc), with honours 

in Chemistry, Post-Graduate Diploma in Cement 
Technology from NCBM, Faridabad.

B.Com, FCA,

Expertise in specific functional areas He has 28 years of experience in the textile industry, 
having previously held positions in key organizations 
in the industry, such as Deputy Chairman of the 
The Rajasthan Textile Mills Association, as well as 
Director, Indian Cotton Mills Federation. He has also 
held positions as President, Mewar Chamber Of 
Commerce & Industry and Vice President, Rajasthan 
Chamber Of Commerce & Industry.

Managing business of P/V suiting 
with domestic & overseas marketing, 
process division and seamless 
garments division. He is also past 
president of Mewar Chamber of 
Commerce & Industry. 

Directorship held in other public companies 
(excluding foreign companies)

Nil Suchitra Finance & Trading Co. 
Limited

Sangam Lifestyle Ventures Limited

Sangam Infratech Limited
Membership/Chairmanship of committees 
of other Indian public Companies

Nil Audit Committee - Member

1. �Suchitra Finance & Trading Co. 
Limited

    �Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee – Member 

1. �Suchitra Finance & Trading Co. 
Limited

    �Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee – Member

1. �Suchitra Finance & Trading Co. 
Limited

Number of share held in the Company 99,779 Nil

Annexure
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(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014)

Name of Shareholder(s) : .............................................................................................................................................................................................................

Registered Address          : .............................................................................................................................................................................................................

Email-id                               : .............................................................................................................................................................................................................

Folio No./Client ID           : .............................................................................................................................................................................................................

DP ID : .............................................................................................................................................................................................................

I/We, being the Member(s) of ..................................................................................................... shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:

1. Name : ……………………………………………………………………………...  Address: ………………………………………........................................................................................................

E-mail Id : ………………………………………......................................Signature: ……………………………….................................. or failing him/her :............................................

2. Name : ……………………………………………………………………………... Address: ………………………………………........................................................................................................

E-mail Id :………………………………………..................................... Signature: ……………………………….................................. or failing him/her :...........................................

3. Name : ……………………………………………………………………………... Address: ………………………………………........................................................................................................

E-mail Id :………………………………………..................................... Signature: ……………………………….................................. or failing him/her :...........................................

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us on my/our behalf at the 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at “Sangam House”, 
Atun, Chittorgarh Road, Bhilwara-311001 (Rajashtan) on Friday, the 29th September, 2017 at 4:00 PM and at any adjournment in respect of such resolutions as are 
indicated below:

Name of Shareholder(s) : ............................................................................................................................................................................................................

Registered Address          : ............................................................................................................................................................................................................

Email-id                               : ............................................................................................................................................................................................................

Folio No./Client ID           : ............................................................................................................................................................................................................

DP ID : ............................................................................................................................................................................................................

I hereby record my presence at the 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Friday, the 29th September, 2017 at 4:00 PM. at “Sangam House”, Atun, 

Chittorgarh Road, Bhilwara-311001 (Rajashtan).

Note :-  1. Please bring this Attendance Slip to the meeting and hand over at the entrance duly filled in.

....................................................................

Signature of the Shareholder/ proxy

Sangam (India) Limited
(CIN: L17118RJ1984PLC003173)
Registered Office:  Atun, Chittorgarh Road, Bhilwara - 311 001 (Rajashtan)
Ph.: +91 1482 305000 Fax: +91 1482 304120,
Email: secretarial@sangamgroup.com, website: www.sangamgroup.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Sangam (India) Limited
(CIN: L17118RJ1984PLC003173)
Registered Office:  Atun, Chittorgarh Road, Bhilwara - 311 001 (Rajashtan)
Ph.: +91 1482 305000 Fax: +91 1482 304120,
Email: secretarial@sangamgroup.com, website: www.sangamgroup.com

FROM NO. MGT - 11
PROXY FORM

Resolution No.  Resolution *  Optional
Ordinary Business For Against
1 Adoption of Audited Financial Statements (Including the Consolidated Financial Statements) for the year ended 31st 

March, 2017
2 Approval of dividend for the financial year 2016-17
3 Re-appointment of Shri S.N. Modani, Managing Director, who retires by rotation 
4 Appointment of statutory auditors and fixing their remuneration

Special Business
5 Re-appointment of Shri V.K. Sodani as Whole Time Director designated as Executive Director
6 Approval of Revision in terms of remuneration of Shri Anurag Soni, to hold an office or place of profit of the Company
7 Appointment of Shri Pranal Modani, to hold an office or place of profit of the Company 
8 Approval of Remuneration to the Cost Auditors.

Notes: 	 1.	� This form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before 
the commencement of the meeting.

		  2.	 For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the 31st Annual General Meeting.
		  3.	� It is optional to put a “X” in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the box. If you leave the “For” or “Against” column blank against 

any or all Resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.
		  4.	� A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not-exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the 

Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or Member.

................................................. ......................................................
Signature of first proxy holder (s)     Signature of second proxy holder (s)

Affix a ` 1
Revenue
Stamp

Signature across the stamp

Signed this.............................................. day of.............................. 2017.

http://www.sangamgroup.com/
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